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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B E I E

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

HER

The following is a summary of the audited consolidated results of MU TAXREBR T HBFE 2 EBZEEEE
the Group for the respective years as hereunder stated. BEHLE o
For the year ended 31 December
BZ+-A=+t-HLFE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ZEZZH T —Z-_—F ZT-TFE —T-NF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx FHET FHET FHET FHET
Revenue Wz 64,989 89,668 61,119 80,022 145,846
Profit/(loss) attributable FERARAEAEALZ
to the owners wH,(EBER)
of the Company 2,313 (904) 6,055 (11,487) (825,678)
Dividends % 5 = = = = -
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION B % AR R R 3R

statement of financial position of the Group as at the respective AR RERME o

dates as hereunder stated.

The following is a summary of the audited consolidated MU TFAAREERTIHEBEHR 2 EEFEXELH

As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E_= === B ZT-THF —NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FAL FET FHET FATL
Plant and equipment B 5 K 5% 1,125 1,519 1,652 1,370 339
Investment properties BEME 25,295 24,411 26,001 30,523 -
Right-of-use assets CHREEE 10,668 1,265 4,832 1,156 1,172
Interest in joint ventures REEhE Z$& - 80 5,753 3,504 1,598
Deposits, prepayments e ENE IE&
and other receivables H e A
(non-current portions) GERBHH) = = = 62,691 38
Financial assets at fair value RAVEBB
through other comprehensive Eft2EW AR 2
income SHMEE 5,847 9,859 56,877 73,345 603,385
Financial assets at amortised 1Z# # 5k A A R ~
cost i@aﬁﬁ = = = = 59,755
Loan and interest receivables & U &z & &l 8 177,732 172,289 217,864 167,440 154,196
Trade receivables JEE 2 B 3R 2,141 654 19 - 55,788
Financial assets at fair value #AFEFBEZR
through profit or loss ARZeREE = = - - -
Other current assets Hipmeh&E 286,446 274,762 204,497 138,211 352,895
Current liabilities mBAE (73,344) (63,353) (44,539) (21,752) (261,797)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEAR (1,236) (637) (766) (1,207) =
Other non-current liabilites ~ HE At IR B & E (4,209) - (1,472) (395) =
Representing: ¥
Share capital & A< 4,554 4,257 3,870 3,870 3,870
Reserves ] 398,849 389,572 439,878 424,962 938,687
Non-controlling interests FEPE R = 27,062 27,020 26,970 26,054 24,812
Shareholders’ equity % R AE = 430,465 420,849 470,718 454,886 967,369
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CHAIRMAN STATEMENT
TERE

Dear Shareholders,

Year 2023 marked the first year where global economy started to
show signs of recovery in the aftermath of COVID-19 pandemic.
[t was also the initial year from which Zhong Ji Longevity
Science Group was able to operate under somewhat normal
circumstances, and under which it might endeavour and fully
commit itself in establishing a world-leading longevity science
transformation and application platform.

In 2023, Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group had faithfully
implemented the directional strategy of “leading technology as
foundation; expansion through joint ventures, mergers and
acquisitions; development principally empowered by business
model featuring brand building, industry-finance integration and
member-based partnership”, and had continued to consolidating
its various strengths and resources and reinforcing its research,
development and production efforts in the United States as well
as strengthening its global market presence and services, and
had also been meticulously working on achieving various
operational goals. All these initiatives were implemented to
ensure healthy and sustainable development of the Company and
form a solid foundation for becoming the world’s leading global
cellular medical sciences platform along the whole industry
chain.

In 2023, the Company remained focusing on its principal
business of “longevity biological products and longevity
management” and to enhance its operational efficiency and
quality while strengthening and refining its industry and product
chains.

In terms of longevity biological products, we were fully
committed to providing members with the best quality products
around, while continuing its expansion into the market by way of
joint venture and merger and acquisition, and striving to take up
the world’s leading position by 2024 in terms of revenue from
sale of lipid-lowering biological products with global
competitiveness. Our “ZJ1 VC sustained-release tablet” product
has eventually been made available for sale to over 50 million
consumers in 117 countries worldwide, for which we are striving
to gain the world’'s top position in terms of sale revenue in
2024.

=R 0R-S VA

TECZF O EREBNEMARRBXEREN
RERBEHRNE—F LREPERSHESR
BMAALEE&EE  2HERITEERELENE
EMRBLEATASIHBENE—F -

R =F PERBSMBEEBRBWTIRN
BERK ALEHERE mHAERESS
EABABRERA/T INEEH - THES
EREZER THNARXEHNHE L£E =
BRMis RBNAE REZETKEHEIE
BE REARFARE SERER AKAH
REAENERUEZ2EXENAREEFET
TEEEWY -

—EC=F A RRIBRREETEEKIRSEE
PMEGERSEE | ERtZSEXENER
EHORE  THRAILEXEZMNIERE -

ERSEVEREE —THESREERH
EREERENER Z— T H MBALEHE
BATEHETS  EBE2REFNNE M AE
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BRBFKRE  HmZ VCEBRELSER K17
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CHAIRMAN STATEMENT
ETE®RE

In terms of longevity management, the Company has been
dedicated to providing the highest quality longevity management
services in the world on the basis of membership scheme and
member-partnership scheme. Riding on the market's attention
being attracted by our strategic partners, all being high-end
wealth management institutions as represented by Ping An
Private Banking, we have adopted the joint venture, merger and
acquisition approach to step up the establishment of longevity
management centres in major cities around the world with our
members and strategic partners, so as to continuously optimise
and enhance our brand image as the preferred longevity
management platform for high net-worth individuals around the
world. With ongoing improvement in longevity management
services’ standard in Hong Kong, Shenzhen, Los Angeles, Tokyo,
Wuhan etc., we have also been progressively replicating our
international standardised longevity management services in 26
major cities around the world.

For our initial business of lending and financing consultation, in
the context of further restrictive policy amendments by the State
on lending and financing consultation business, as well as the
adversity of economic recession and substantially higher risk of
the initial business in 2023, we remained committed to gradually
develop the supply chain financing model principally in longevity
management field under the guidance of our strategy, value and
goal and building around the industry chain and product chain in
longevity sciences, so as to improve the quality and efficiency of
operation.

Looking ahead to 2024, we remain totally confident in the
Company's future development. The Company will focus on its
strategic development plan and the long-term interests of
shareholders, and will continue, as always, to give our utmost
effort to provide the world’s best quality products and services,
to reward the steadfast support of the society at large towards
Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group.

Last but not least, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to
the Board of Directors and our members of staff for their loyalty,
hard work, professionalism and valuable contribution.

YAN Li
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B2 B am S DT

INTRODUCTION

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited (the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) have
been focusing on expanding its longevity science business. In
addition to operating and managing its existing businesses of
money lending & financial advisory business, securities and other
investment business, and property investment business.

In 2023, the Group continued to enhance its financial
performance by diversifying into promising longevity medical
health businesses, providing, among others, registered medical
tests or laboratory tests on advanced tumor cells screening,
immunity/killer cell tests, Joint health blood & micronutrients
tests, female & male fertility & salivary hormone Tests,
Comprehensive Thyroid assessments, and patent third generation
whole genome sequencing genetic tests.

The longevity medical business further provides the world’s most
advanced and highest-standard personalized longevity
management based on testing to fundamentally achieve cancer
prevention, anti-aging and knee health. At the same time,
increase the product sale of high potency antioxidant
supplements, ZHJ vitamin C, nicotinamide mononucleotide
("NMN"”) supplement tablets, thereby generating primary sales
income and membership revenue for Zhong Ji Longevity Science
Health business. Through our patented longevity
healthcare solutions, the Group is committed to advancing the
medical business in the PRC and Hong Kong.

innovative

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (“FY2023"), our Group
recorded (i) provision of diagnostic and medical test services of
approximately HK$26.9 million; and (i) sales of health and
medical products of approximately HK$4.4 million.

In 2023, the money lending & financial advisory business
emerged from the ex-post P2P loans Business transition phase
and continued on a steady recovery path. However, there were
constraints in physical brokerage of home loans or secured loans
accessibility due to subdued property transaction levels in both
the PRC and Hong Kong.

e

FEERSMEEEERAA(F2T DL EME
AR(ABAEE]) —EEFIRRESHER
Beltih TREREEEBFEERSRE
AER  BHEREMREXRBRDEREER

R-BE-_=F AEEEBEMREFBERR %
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BR)EENERARGESNEMESNAXE
BREAR 2%/ REARIR  BEHREED
BMBETERAS  KENBHEOEENER
BEAF  2EANFRABRIEME=ZR2ER
ARFERBAEZRN -

ESEBEREXKE—SPERAMNER L =2
REEE SERENEMECEESER KR
AEERMGE BHRMBEBEEE - RN
BRMAE  ZHIEERC  EMmRERE R
(NMN)BRAFFERNEE  RTERSHE
BEEXEBELTZNHELAMEBKRA - B
BEANENAFTESREBRTER  A&HE
HARBTEMBESRELCENEBRERRS -

REBEE-_ZE_=F+_A=+—HLEFE(=%
—EHBRFEE]) AEESSOIREDEHKES
B3t AR %5 #4926,900,00078 7T ¢ K (ii) $5 & fd 5F & B8
& B fn #94,400,00078 7T °
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KIREEHERY - A AR PEXRERER
MEMERZKFER EEERNERRE
KEREFNHEXZIBR -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB R

During 2023, the Company regained possession of all necessary
Company chops and seals of Company PRC subsidiary X717 42 7T
(4t =) 8 % B B & R 2 7 (“TianXi”) for operations and
normalized its relationship with the Beijing Commerce
Department LR M MIZEEEER with no objections from
Beijing Police. However, the restoration of normal operations with
business partners and banking authorities has been slow,
hampering the Company’s ability to execute legitimate recovery
actions on overdue loans. To expedite this recovery process with
Strategic Partners’ loans to overdue borrowers, the Company
engaged and designated the PRC law firm Dongwei 1t 5 /7 3R A&7
(BAR)EMEMFT for the next 16 months since June 2023,
working in collaboration with Strategic Partners’ enforcement
team and the borrowers. The progress on recovery administration
hassles was finally resolved by the end of July 2023.

Despite the PRC property market slump and stringent conditions
for FY2023, the Company’'s major portfolio, comprising FOTIC
loans secured by residential properties, was booked at historically
low values since as early as 2016 and 2017, compared to present
market prices. Hence, the Company has maintained confidence in
pursuing the recovery of these residential loans.

In the future, the Company will continue to respect the laws of
scientific development and do our utmost to provide
world-leading and state-of-the-art longevity biological products
and longevity management services, for giving back to the
community’s support for Zhong Ji Longevity Science.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group was principally engaged in the longevity science
business, money lending & financial advisory business, securities
and other investments, and property investments. Given such
restraint trading environment and sluggish sentiment in PRC
property market, in mitigate the volatility risk, the Group took a
rather prudent approach in operating the Money Lending
business except via Strategic Partners loans originated, thus a
static performance was observed. FY2023, riding on its existing
finance-related businesses, the Group strives to venture into the
field of longevity science in an exhaustive and diversified manner
to improve its product chains, via membership and distribution
channels. The Company focusing on developing and expanding
its longevity science business, which has a bright future and can
develop into a large-scale, viable and sustainable business in the
future.
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For FY2023, the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
HK$64,989,000 (For the year ended 31 December 2022
("FY2022"): HK$89,668,000) with profit for year amounted to
approximately HK$2,523,000 (FY2022: HK$701,000). During
FY2023, (i) the longevity science business contributed revenue of
approximately HK$31,326,000 and a segment loss of
approximately HK$24,016,000; and (i) the money lending and
financial advisory business demonstrate a static revenue of
approximately HK$33,663,000 and a segment profit of
approximately HK$25,354,000.

The basic and diluted earnings per share were approximately
HK$0.15 cents (FY2022: loss per share of HK$0.06 cents).

As at 31 December 2023, the consolidated net assets of the
Group were approximately HK$430,465,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$420,849,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Longevity Science Business

The Group recognises the strong growth potential of the
longevity science segment. Focusing on its main business
“longevity biological products and longevity management”, the
company continues to improve work efficiency and quality while
strengthening and improving the industrial chain and product
chain. During the reporting year, the Group’s longevity science
business delivered stable performance despite difficult pandemic
operation environment.

The revenue of this segment amounted to approximately
HK$31,326,000 for FY2023 (FY2022: HK$43,920,000), of which,
approximately HK$26,879,000 was generated from diagnostic
consultation and medical testing, and approximately
HK$4,447,000 was contributed by the sales of longevity
biological products. The Group recorded a segmental loss for
longevity science business of approximately HK$24,016,000 for
FY2023 (FY2022: profit HK$8,957,000). Indeed the COVID-19 and
the aging population have aroused public high concern for health
across the globe, resulting in unprecedented potentials for the
development of Longevity products and testing services in the
healthcare and medical industry. The segmental loss was mainly
due to the increased related expenses of marketing, advertising
and promotion activities for the longevity science business
amounted to approximately HK$19,105,000 invested by the Group
during the reporting year. The Directors believe that the related
marketing, advertising and promotion expenses invested can
stimulate the income of the longevity science business in the
future.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENHEAN

R-E-_ZFREE ASEEHBHERKTY
64,989,000 L (B E-_ZE-_—F+=-_A=+—
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB R

For FY2023, the PRC customs imposed more stringent scrutiny
on American-made products, causing hurdles and delays in the
clearance and importation of longevity NMN and vitamin C
supplement products into the PRC. These customs clearance
delays inevitably affected the sale of longevity health and
medical supplements, resulting in a decrease to approximately
HK$4,447,000 for FY2023 (FY2022: HK$17,550,000).

For FY2023, revenue generated from diagnostic and medical test
services remained stable, amounting to approximately
HK$26,879,000 (FY2022: HK$26,370,000). Additionally, revenue
from medical treatment services under the discontinued
operation of the Zhong Ji Longevity Day Procedure Centre (“the
Centre”) amounted to approximately HK$2,443,000 (FY2022:
HK$ Nil), included in the revenue nature of diagnostic and
medical test services of the longevity science business segment.

The cancellation of the license of the Centre will not affect the
Group’s operations and has no significant impact on the Group's
current longevity science business operations and financial
position. For more details, please refer to the Company's
announcement dated 11 December 2023.

The management of the Group is optimistic on the development
of the longevity science business, and believes that the longevity
science business will be the driver of the Group’s revenue
growth in the future, together with existing license money
lending business steady growth.

Money Lending & Financial Advisory Business

During FY2023, a segmental revenue of approximately
HK$33,663,000 (FY2022: HK$45,748,000) and a segmental profit
of approximately HK$25,354,000 (FY2022: HK$30,913,000) were
recorded. The decrease in segmental results was due to a
decrease in interest receivables balances derived by the strategic
partners loan portfolio in the PRC stated in other receivables for
FY2023. The majority of the existing strategic partners loan has
been active but the collection on expired loan repayments were
slow or derail by PRC Government announced deferred loans
repayment relief arrangement compensate salaries workers loss
of income due to COVID-19 isolation measures.

10 Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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During FY2023, pursuant to regulatory authority past guidance
letters in recover of Hong Kong, Joy Wealth Finance Limited
("Joy Wealth”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
outlined 36 loans, being priorly impaired as, of aggregate
outstanding amount approximately HK$1,076,000,000 as at
31 December 2019, the Independent Recovery Committee was
negotiating with the borrowers to recover the outstanding loan
and interest receivables, assess the effectiveness of proceeding
existing or potential legal procedures for taking over the
ownership of pledged assets from the borrowers and guarantors.
There was proceeds amounted HK$30,000,000, which was
successfully recovered from a entity by the
Independent Recovery Committee.

borrower

Securities and Other Investments Business

As at 31 December 2023, the Group was holding several
investments which are equity securities listed on the Stock
Exchange for long term investment, the fair value of equity
securities listed on the Stock Exchange held by the Group
amounted to approximately HK$5,847,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$9,859,000). The decrease in fair value for FY2023 was due
to the decrease in the market value of certain listed equity
investment during the year.

Property Investment Business

For FY2023, the Group continued to operate the property
investment business, with properties located in the PRC and the
Island of Saipan. These properties, acquired in the previous year,
remained vacant due to the pandemic, comprising commercial
shops, residential units, and multiple-room apartments, thus not
generating any revenue for the Group. A segmental profit of
approximately HK$1,070,000 was recorded in FY2023 (FY2022:
loss of HK$314,000), primarily driven by an increase in fair value
gain of investment properties of approximately HK$1,070,000
(FY2022: loss of HK$314,000).

The Group will continue to monitor market conditions and seek
suitable tenants to generate stable rental income or consider
disposing of investment properties to capture profitable capital
appreciation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Regarding the unlawful and unauthorized transfer of Saipan
Leasehold Interest discovered during last year's audit, as
referenced on page 25 of the annual results announcement for
FY2022 dated 18 April 2023, the Company has authorized a
Saipan law firm (“Saipan Legal Advisor”) to commence legal
actions to recover possession of the Saipan leasehold interest.
The Saipan Legal Advisor is currently in the process of (i)
obtaining copies of documents filed with the Saipan Registrar; (ii)
preparing and filing corporate documents with the Saipan
registrar to correct incorrect information and/or false documents;
(iii) submitting a criminal report/complaint to the law enforcement
authorities in Saipan; (iv) evaluating the claim of Keen State
Global Saipan for fraudulent/forged conveyance; (v) filing and
prosecuting a lawsuit in the CNMI Superior Court to recover
possession, potentially seeking damages from individuals involved
in the alleged fraud/forgery.

The Company will continue to actively engage with the Saipan
Legal Advisor to address these matters and will provide timely
disclosures regarding any developments.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had recorded net current
assets of approximately HK$250,127,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$246,217,000); and cash and cash equivalent of approximately
HK$81,075,000 (31 December 2022: HK$60,069,000). The Group
did not enter into financial instruments for hedging purpose.

Capital Structure

On 2 May 2023, a total of 297,300,000 new shares of the
Company had been successfully placed by the placing agent to
not less than six placees at the placing price of HK$0.049 per
placing share under the general mandate granted to the Directors
by ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 29 July 2022. Upon the completion of the
aforesaid placing of new shares, the total number of issued
shares of the Company increased from 4,257,112,915 shares to
4,554,412,915 shares. Details of the placing of shares were set
out in the announcements of the Company dated 21 April 2023
and 2 May 2023 (collectively, the “Placing Announcements”).
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On 31 July 2023, the Company held an special general meeting
and an ordinary resolution was passed to approve the
consolidation of every ten issued and unissued ordinary shares of
par value of HK$0.001 each in the share capital of the Company
into one consolidated share of par value of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company. The share consolidation became
effective on 2 August 2023 (the “Share Consolidation”) and the
total number of issued shares of the Company became
455,441,291 shares. For details of the share consolidation, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 27 March
2023 and the circular of the Company dated 14 July 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the total number of issued shares of
the Company was 455,441,291 with par value of HK$0.01 each
(FY2022: 425,711,291 shares (as adjusted taking into account the
effect of the Share Consolidation) with par value of HK$0.01
each).

BUSINESS MODEL FOR MONEY LENDING &
FINANCIAL ADVISORY BUSINESS AND LOAN
PORTFOLIOS

The Money Lending & Financial Advisory Business would operate
in the following two models:

1. The “Strategic Partners Business Model” — offering related
financial management and consulting service in the PRC via
cooperation with PRC licensed strategic partners (without
Company assuming role of a direct lender) with sizeable
loans portfolio (including outstanding principals and
interests) secured by residential assets. Such loan assets
were accounted for as “Other receivables” under the
category of “Deposits, Prepayments & Other receivables”
set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

2. The "“Corporate and personal borrowers Business Model” —
wherein the Group act as a direct lender and such loan
assets (including outstanding principals and interests) were
accounted for as “Loans and interest receivables” set out in
note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, our Group had 432 (31 December
2022: 432) active accounts, of which 423 (31 December 2022:
423) of them were individual customers and the remaining of 9
(2022: 9) were corporate customers; and of which 418 (31
December 2022: 418) of them were under the strategic partners
business model and 14 (31 December 2022: 14) of them were
under the corporate and personal borrowers business model.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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For FY2023, our top five customers (as determined by interest
income generated) accounted for approximately 23% (FY2022:
16%) of our total revenue, and our single largest customer
accounted for approximately 14% (FY2022: 9%) of our total
revenue.

As at 31 December 2023, the largest and top five customers (as
determined by loan receivable balance) of the total gross loan
receivables balance accounted for 36% and 81% (31 December
2022: 36% and 81%) respectively.

(a)

14

The Strategic Partners Business Model

The strategic partners under this model are PRC regulated
trustee & fund manager companies of material sizes
licensed in offering legitimate short to medium-term
secured home loans (1st and 2nd mortgages) to individual
borrowers across the regions of: Chongging, Chengdu,
Suzhou, Wuhan, few at Shanghai, Tianjin and Wuxi cities.
All underlying borrowers under this model are independent
third party (within the meaning of Chapter of 14A of the
Listing Rules), and were not connected persons or senior
management of the Group.

Below are the current strategic partners in co-operation
with the Company’s wholly-owned Beijing subsidiary X717
LGt R) M BERAER AR (“TianXing”) in PRC:

(i) "HEHIINEBEEZEEER AR China Foreign
Economy and Trade Trust Co., Ltd.” (“FOTIC"”) a
state-owned asset management company in the PRC)
operating at Beijing City; and

(i) “FIZEHEKESEER AR Shenzhen Fanhua
Joint Investment Group Co., Ltd.” (“Fanhua”) a
sizeable financial services company listed on the New
York Stock Exchange (stock code: CNF); and

(i) "EEBRMBHLCEEREBRAR v EEESRNEER
AAMBAR" ("Haier”) established since 2014 and
owned by the electronic conglomerate Haier Group;
and

iv), "BRAEAZEBEREFERERHGAE R 2 A Shanxi
International Trust co. Ltd” (“Shanxi”) a state-owned
trustee assets management company established
since 1985 and listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 00563).
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Strategic Partners Corporation Agreements were performed
in two kinds of arrangement:

Arrangement 1. strategic co-operation with FOTIC, Shanxi
as outlined below:

FOTIC, Shanxi set up registered regulated trust funds (the
“Trusts”) to which they would act as trustee. The
Company through its wholly-owned Beijing subsidiary
TianXing invested monies into these Trusts of FOTIC,
Shanxi, whereby trustee through licensed strategic partners
in PRC grant legitimate mortgage loans to borrowers.
These Trusts typically run for a period of two to five years
or longer on a pre-arranged return rate of 12% annually.

The Group would co-manage the Trusts with FOTIC, Shanxi
to monitor the risk profiles of individual borrowers,
collaborate to pursue loan collection, assist FOTIC, Shanxi
to take collateral enforcement actions, and provide
management services including but not limited to client
procurement, client's background check and credit rating
due diligence. The Group would receive a management
service fee from the Trusts and others assistance fees (if
any) from individual borrower for the aforesaid services.

As at 31 December 2023, all these trust units were
redeemed hence the Group would receive those Trust
underlying loans accrued interests, after FOTIC Shanxi's
expenses, pursuant to debts transfer contracts, but the
underlying loans security were still registered under Trustee
name per loan license regime of PRC. Hence any legal
mortgagee recovery or security realization would still lodge
together with strategic partners. Nevertheless, the Group
takes over all benefits from the post-redemption on all
proceeds of mortgagee sale of any residual assets of
mortgages registered in the Trustee name (including but not
limited to collection of any outstanding loans receivables).

Arrangement 2: The Strategic cooperation with Fanhua,
Haier is summarized below:

The Group would procure potential borrowers and, after
performing credit assessment, refer them to Fanhua, Haier.
In return, the Group would receive loan origination fees/
referral/agency fees from Fanhua, Haier or from individual
borrowers depending on the amount of actual interest
income received by Fanhua, Haier and the repayment
status of the loans.
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As a protection to Fanhua, Haier, the Group would be
required to maintain a sum equivalent to 20-30% of the
initial loan principals borrowed by customers referred to
Fanhua, Haier as “a risk provision top-up fund”. Such sum
in the risk provision fund will be used to settle the
payment of principals and/or interests in the event of the
borrower’s default or in case of long-terms arrears. (At
present, the Group was disputing with Fanhua and/or Haier
on implications PRC National Covid-19 mortgage reliefs
Policy triggered some loans in technical defaults or arrear
repayments in postpone).

The Group shall, following the liquidation of a particular
borrower, take over the benefits from the post-liquidation of
any residual assets in the loans (including but not limited to
collection of any outstanding loans receivables and interest
income, default interest and penalty fees). The Group may
choose to acquire the entire defaulted loan principal balance
from Fanhua, Haier their portions and seek recovery of the
whole defaulted loans using its own means and resources.

Subject to terms and clauses of each strategic partners
agreement, the Group earns: (1) loans origination fees; (2)
management service fee rendered including services as
client procurement, client’'s background check and credit
rating due diligence; (3) recovery fees or penalty fees/
interest for deferred loans; and (4) accrued interest income
by providing whole/partial funding secured loans via
strategic partner’s license. The Group subsidiary attributes
10% loan principal sum of each small secure loans offer by
two strategic partners of Fanhua and Haier, while such
Strategic Partners would attribute the 90% remaining loan
principal themselves; and the Group subsidiary attributes
100% loan principal sum of each home loans made under
FOTIC.

Size and diversity of borrowers under the
Strategic Partners Business Model

The strategic partners act as direct lender with the
Company as co-manager.

In case of FOTIC and Shanxi, the average loans size (of 1st
mortgage) was approximately RMB0.86 million. The loans
were made within Beijing city or major cities. For FY2023,
the interest rate chargeable by FOTIC and Shanxi Trust to
borrowers ranged from 8.4% to 19.2% (FY2022: 8.4% to
19.2%).
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(b) The Corporate and personal borrowers Business
Model
The Company's corporate and personal borrowers loan
business comprises of loans made to corporate entity and/
or wealth personal borrowers via the Company wholly
owned subsidiary in PRC and/or Hong Kong acting as a
direct lender via loan agreements with security mostly,
except few loans in past on were trade credits or
unsecured or intangible security basis alike dividends rights.
All underlying borrowers under this model are independent
third party (within the meaning of Chapter of 14A of the
Listing Rules), and were not connected persons or senior
management of the Group.

Size and diversity of borrowers under the
Corporate and personal borrowers Business
Model

The Group acts as direct lender and manages these over
14 corporate and personal borrowers loans, despite some of
the loans have been already impaired before the year of
2022. The loans principal size ranges from approximately
HK$47.9 million for personal borrower to a corporate loan
principal size of approximately HK$64.4 million, with
interest rates ranged from 6% to 18%, mostly with
security, but some are unsecured or secured with certain
company dividend or secure intangible assets. These loans
were accounted for as Loans and interest receivables set
out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

(b) HERMBABRAXHEER
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As at 31 December 2023, the corporate and personal
borrowers business loan assets were accounted as loan and
interest receivables for approximately HK$819,455,000
before impairments (31 December 2022: HK$819,403,000),
with net carrying value approximately HK$177,732,000 (31
December 2022: HK$172,289,000). The top five loans
borrower under Corporate and Personal borrowers Business
Model was accounted for approximately total 79.93% of
the entire loan and interest receivables of the Group as at
31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: 79.93%), and their
collaterals value leverage ratio range from 31.79% to
74.69% secured on properties, financial assets and dividend
rights or unsecured. These loans were made in prior years
on exiting P2P old business and subsequently impaired in
later prior years. Nevertheless, the Group has recently
initiated recovery actions on these previously partially or
wholly impaired loans as above mentioned.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIEE RN

MN-Z-—=F+-"A=1+—8  3EAELK
BEREFENBEEHEEREELRTER
ER1%)74819,455,0008 L (ZE - —F +—
B =4+ —H8 :819,403,000/ 7t) * BRE F(E
#7/177732,0008 L (ZE=Z_F+=H=
+—H : 172,289,000/ 7T) ° 1% KA A&
TAEBEEATHAEXNERAGEAEBR
—E-=F+-_A=t+—HE2BEKERK
F EBREL)TI.93% (ZE-—FE+=-A=+
—H:7993%) L\¥E  cREERRKE
BEEEERENREBLRNERERL
RN F3179% E74.69% ° ZEERRBAE
FEADHRENPPEA XS NMEL » £18
RBENBEFETRAE BV
AREBRAEEY LT DH2RMEER
HERUKEITE °

DIFFERENCE ON STRATEGIC PARTNERS MODEL BHBAERNEGERBAAEXN ZEN
VERSUS CORPORATE & INDIVIDUAL MODEL =5

“Corporate & Personal “Strategic Partners

Borrowers Model”

[EEREAERAER]

Business Model”

[ B R K

Brief description of Target
customers

BREFPE2HEM

loan financing.

Lending to corporate client:

target Subject to Strategic Partners
customers are enterprises having need of Model with different Strategic

partners, individual borrowers of
(1st and/or 2nd mortgage) home

Supply Chain Trade (valuable metals or  loans of tenure 10 to 20 years
materials) Financing: target customers are or small secured loans of
suppliers selling goods on e-commerce tenure 1 to 5 vyears with

platform.

CELES

average loan size less than
HK$1.5m, over a wide spread
of individual borrowers across
mainly Beijing, Chongging,
Chengdu and other PRC cities.

ERTEEEFP BEREFPRAEENRE BIETRAEBBHHOBER

HEAME  DABTE_+F
W(BE—R/RE_RB)ERE

HERZEZ (EESBIMABRE-BRE EBERIR/RP—Z=Z0F . FHE

EFREERYEHERmOEER -

RBELIMBEEETHN/NESR
ERERNBEABRA EHE
ETENMIbR  BE - #BR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R

“Corporate & Personal
Borrowers Model”

[ RMEAERAES]

“Strategic Partners
Business Model”

[EmE R EBEN

Source of customers

EFERIR

Revenue Recognition

W 8 HERR

20

Lending to corporate client: originating
from sales team of Joy Wealth (Hong
Kong) and X774t (UL ) B EM AR
‘A A TianXing and Katar Global Limited.

ERTEERFP:RBEMEB) X
TR M BBEBR AR & INERK
ERDBIHERK -

Accrued interest income (of Corporate &
Personal loans originated recognized under
Money Lending & Advisory Business
segment and “Loan & interest receivables”.

ERENRGERAERD BT R &ERD
EREAESRN) B BWA - ARE
WERREME] -
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Originating from team of
financial Advisory business
brokers of Group subsidiary (JV
companies) and third-party
brokers firms.

RKEAEEWB AR (EERQR)
NeRABAAEBLLEERRE
=R EBRE] -

Accrued interest earned from the
loans originated by Financial
Advisory Business (via Strategic
Partners Model). Referral and/or
loan origination fees for loan
application of client, management
service fees, debts recovery fees,
penalty fees; all of above said
fees are payable by individual
borrowers/broker firms to the
Group subsidiary recognized as
revenue under Money Lending &
Advisory Business segment and
“Other receivables”.
BeRABAERCRBBKENF
R EERE AT HREA B
ME - HEFPEFBHFHNEN
R/KERERE BERS
E WEE - ZIXE LMMA
ERYEARBEABRA LR
RAZFNTFAEEWBE AR - I
BRARBERDBRAEBSHT
B s R [ E e kIR ] o



INTERNAL CONTROL FOR MONEY LENDING
BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL ADVISORY BUSINESS

The Group follows similar loan approval procedures outlined as:

(1)

(2)

Receiving and processing loan applications, due
diligence, background check of loan applicants

Loan application form should be completed by customers
and the customers need to fill their loan information,
personal information, employment information and financial
information for the preliminary due diligence and
background check of loan applicants. Besides, customer is
requested to submit all original supporting documents as
required by the Company to make photocopy. The due
diligences documents include HKID/Passport Copy/PRC ID,
address proof, certificate of incorporation copy etc. If
necessary, external professional parties are engaged to
perform the legal search, company search, land search,
annual returns search and personal credit report search etc.

Credit risk Assessment
Default Rate Assessment (Credit Risk
management)

Default rate is defined as gross amount of loan and interest
receivables which are 180 days past due over the gross
amount of loan and interest receivables as at each financial
year end. In making this assumption, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when:

(@) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full; or

(b)  the loan receivables are 180 days past due.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEwm MO

BEEBR BB EL RN IEES

REHE

(1)

(2)

REUERELRERF  ABRHROT:

BRUREEER $m‘ﬁﬁ
ETERELE ERAE

EFHBREHEPER EPFEEAER
ERER EAEH REEREUBKE
B AESERRBAETNTERES
RESHE - LI BEFNFTRARAR
RERMAEBRAMFLEAR - AEEE - &
H‘&%EX@E’?%E/?‘%%TJ}E’E EREIA
FEEME  WUFER  AREMESE
AE-WMAKE  ZASEFINBEEXEA
BETEREM [FEM  LEM -
FERRBRLBAAGERERRE -

qanﬁ*

ERARTE
BYEFE(ERAREE)

BEHNRATEESYREE LRI - 85
180EMEKREREF B BAELHEKER
DA BABEALLE - EHZBRE A&

ERASELRUATERNELEOSE
(@) BRATHREEZH(TEHAEEN
EEAEME: %

(b) EWEZHEBE180H -

a
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB R

(3)

22

According to Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9 —
Financial Instruments, there is a rebuttable presumption
that default does not occur later than when a financial
asset is 90 days past due unless an entity has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

The Group adopts a longer period (180 days) as loan
receivables in default because the majority of loan
receivables are secured by pledged assets and based on
repayment history, the borrowers settled loan balances
between due date and 180 days past due, therefore, there
are still have probability for settlement of loan from
borrowers with loan balance which are less than 180 days
past due.

Request for collateral

Based on the creditability of customer, collateral is
requested in a loan application. It is assessed case by case
on a qualitative basis. Normally, if the borrower is a Person
and/or a corporate entity borrower, a collateral is requested
unless the loan has other guarantors and supporting
documents of financial ability of borrower and/or guarantors
could be provided for satisfactory assessment. Besides, for
some potential borrowers who bargain for a better
agreement terms like lower loan interest rate etc., collateral
is normally requested for entering into a final loan
agreement. As it is determined on a case-by-case basis,
there is no direct internal policies or guidelines for this
matter.
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(4)

(5)

Approval of loan applications

The Group will consider all necessary supporting
documents provided by the clients and conduct all
necessary borrower background credits checking, legal &
financial due diligence, before approving loan application
into grant the funds withdrawn.

Monitoring and follow-up action on borrowers’
repayment

The Group continues to monitor the loan and will take any
necessary follow-up action on borrowers’ repayment. For
“Corporate & Personal Borrowers model” the Company
acting as Lender, the monthly repayments banking was
arranged under the Company, inter alia, the Company credit
team monitor our bank accounts on these mortgages’
repayments, liaison and reconcile (adjustments on some
minor lateness, if any) payments with these borrowers. If
three or four consecutive mortgage repayments are in
arrear such borrowers will follow-up by Recovery team to
resolve with more complex repayment scheme, extension
terms or other avenues. Under “Strategic Partners model”
of present license regime and pursuant to the Strategic
Partner Agreements the monitor on loans monthly
repayments were executed by Strategic Partners (FOTIC,
Fanhua, Haier) repayments banking arrangements
were set-up under these License Strategic Partners. There
were quarterly review meetings on arrear loan repayments
between Strategic Partners and the Company subsidiary
team, whom follow-up reported arrear loans and its
recovery.

since

(4)

(5)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREENREDN
(6) Receiving, processing and approving time

(7)

extension of loan maturity (Extension)

For the process of extension procedure but in practice,
borrowers who seek for loan extension due various reasons
need to submit a written request for loan extension to the
Company. Extensions of loan could be made subject to the
criteria and processes on a case-by-case basis. Normally,
the repayment of outstanding loan interests is one of the
conditions for granting the loan extension to the borrowers.
Besides, updated financial condition of borrowers has to be
investigated before considering the approval of loan
extension, including but not limited to interviewing with
borrowers and asking for reasons for extension, and
requesting to provide updated personal and financial
information if necessary. Besides, the borrowers have to
demonstrate that they are able to settle the loan and
interest in the extended period according to the terms of
agreement. If thought fit, all members of the credit
committee formed by all directors of money lending
company at the material time would approve the extension,
and the extension agreement/extension letter would be
executed.

Recovery action of debts

Following assessment on the long overdue loan
repayments (except rare exemptional reasons), the Group
procedurally will take necessary loan recovery actions in
PRC and in Hong Kong, not limited but including legal
statement of claims, mareva injunction, mortgagee sale,
liquidation petitions, borrowers Company or living site visits
and/or borrowers’ employer or Company suppliers visit.

Segment Information
Details of segment information of the Group for FY2023 are set
out in note 6 to this report.
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Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group had approximately 33 employees as at 31 December
2023 (31 December 2022: 30). The employee benefits expense,
excluding Directors’ emoluments, of the Group were
approximately HK$12.6 million (FY2022: $9.8 million) in FY2023
and increased by approximately 28.6% compared to FY2022. The
increase was due to the increase of the number of employees.

The Group regularly reviews and determines the remuneration
and compensation package of the Directors and the Senior
Management with reference to, among other things, the market
level of salaries paid by comparable companies, the respective
responsibilities of the Directors and the Senior Management and
the performance of the Group. In order to attract and retain high
quality staff, competitive remuneration package is offered to
employees (with reference to market norms and individual
employees’ performance, qualification and experience). On top of
basic salaries, bonuses may be paid with reference to the
Group’'s performance as well as individual employees’
performance. In addition, training and development programmes
are provided on an on-going basis throughout the Group. The
remuneration policy of the Group was reviewed regularly, making
reference to current legislation, market condition and both the
performance of individual employees and the Group.

In order to align the interests of staff with those of shareholders
of the Company, share options were granted to relevant
grantees, including employees of the Group, under the
Company’s share option scheme adopted on 29 July 2022. Share
options carrying rights to subscribe for a total number of
3,868,000 shares (as adjusted taking into account the effect of
the Share Consolidation) of the Company remained outstanding
as at 31 December 2023. A share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme"”) was also adopted by the Company on 18 May
2021. The Company may from time to time, allot and issue new
shares in the share capital of the Company to the trustee as
directed by the Board and/or share award committee, which shall
constitute part of the trust fund, for the grant of restricted
shares to selected participant(s) as set out in the rules of the
Share Award Scheme and the trust deed. No Restricted Shares
have been granted under the Share Award Scheme up to the
date of this Announcement and thus no shares in the Company
would be issued accordingly. No shares were awarded under the
Share Award Scheme of the Company during FY2023 and
FY2022. The Award Scheme expired on 18 May 2031.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB R

Details of Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not pledge any assets
to banks or other financial institutions nor did the Group have any
corporate guarantee given to any entity (31 December 2022: Nil).

Treasure Policy

The Group has adopted a treasury policy on 24 May 2011 in
relation to the Group's investments in securities of other listed
companies on the Stock Exchange. The objective of the policy is
to enable the Group to control and govern the possible future
securities investments (if any, which may or may not occur).

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2023 (defined
as the Group's total interest-bearing borrowings divided by the
Group’s total equity) was approximately 1.6% (31 December
2022: 1.6%).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Business transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Group has not
implemented any foreign currency hedging policy at the moment.
However, in the view of the fluctuation of Renminbi in recent
years, continuous monitoring on the foreign exchange exposure is
carried out and the management will consider hedging the
foreign exchange exposure if it has material impact on the
Group.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided for in its financial statements (31
December 2022: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2022: Nil).

Significant Investment Held, Material Acquisition or
Disposal of Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies and
Plans for Material Investment or Capital Assets

There was no significant investment held, material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies during FY2023.
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Securities in Issue

As at 31 December 2023, there were 455,441,291 ordinary
shares in issue. The Company has allotted and issued additional
29,730,000 Shares (as adjusted taking into account the effect of
the Share Consolidation) during FY2023. Details of which are set
out below with sub-heading “Placing of New Shares under
General Mandate".

OUTLOOK

In the new year, the market environment is still unpredictable,
the Group will operate in a light asset model to reduce
operational pressure and operational risk, and will continue to
expand the existing longevity science business, including the
establishment of joint venture with strategic partners for
longevity science business when opportunities arise, taking into
account the Group's available with the aim to
maximize the return to its Shareholders. The Board is confident
that it can bring more positive benefits and possibilities to the
Company, and lead the Company to realize maximum operational
benefits and enhance shareholders’ confidence in the Company's
future prospects.

resources,

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE PLACING
Placing of New Shares under General Mandate (the
“Placing”)

Reference is made to the Placing Announcements. The Company
has successfully placed on 2 May 2023 a total of 29,730,000
new Shares at the placing price of HK$0.49 (as adjusted taking
into account the effect of the Share Consolidation) to not less
than six places under the general mandate granted to the
Directors by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 29 July 2022. The net proceeds (after
deducting the placing commission, professional fees and all
related expenses) were approximately HK$14.0 million.

For details of the Placing, refer
Announcement.

please to the Placing

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB R

As at 31 December 2023, the net proceeds from the Placing R-ZE-_=F+—-"A=+—H BEEEBEHME
were applied as follows: KIEFEBAMT

Planned use of
net proceeds

as stated in the Actual use of

Placing net proceeds

announcement up to 31 December

dated 20 April 2023 2023

Bl A
—E-=£ BHZE
MA=+HKH =—®==

BEASHAMBE +=—A=+—H

HIEFHE W9 FT 18 =X 18

T8I A& FHERAR

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET
For general working capital repaying p—REEELmE B
these resumption exercise incurred BRZEERIEELEN
expenses, rental and salary operating X - HekFeEE
expenses, in strengthening the A AiNsAEEA

Group's financial position. B RO o 14,000 14,000

As at 31 December 2023, all net proceeds from the Placing had R-ZZE—_=F+_-_A=+—H BEEZTHENZI
been used in accordance with the planned usage as detailed FISFIEFREOBE FXFRMEHGRERS -
above.

28 Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
2023 Annual Report



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESNEREEEGE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yan Li (“Mr. Yan"”), aged 53, joined the Company as an
executive Director in November 2020, was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Board in December 2020 and was appointed
the chairman of share award committee of the Board in May
2021. He received the award of International Honorary Fellow of
Greenville University in the United States in 2020, was the vice
president of Shenzhen Non-Governmental Organization Federation
and the vice president of Shenzhen General Chamber of
Commerce. Mr. Yan has over 8 years’ experience in the
management and administration in the fields of advanced medical
and biological technology. In 2014, he founded Zhong Ji 1
International Medical Group (HK) Ltd. (“HK Zhong Ji 1”) and is
currently a director and the chief executive officer of HK Zhong
Ji 1. HK Zhong Ji 1 is dedicated to integrate leading resources
about the health of knee joint around the globe and establish the
world’s leading international advanced medical transformation
platform through cell testing, cell storage and enhancement, cell
and gene therapies and the research and development,
transformation and sale of biotechnology products. The Asian
Integrated Cell Laboratory under HK Zhong Ji 1 is the world's
leading autoimmune cell bank. Currently, Mr. Yan also holds
directorships in the Company’s subsidiaries.

Mr. Yan Yifan, aged 33, joined the Company as an executive
Director and the chef executive officer in April 2022. Mr. Yan
Yifan graduated from Henan University of Economics and Law.
He has served as the general manager of Mailyard Health Group
(Hubei) Company Limited since April 2021 and served as the
general manager of Zhong Ji 1 International Medical Group (Hong
Kong), the shares of which are beneficially owned by Mr. Yan Li,
the chairman of the Board and an executive director, from July
2013 to March 2021. Mr. Yan Yifan is also the nephew of
Mr. Yan Li.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESNRAEEERE

Mr. Li Xiaoshuang (“Mr. Li"”), aged 50, joined the Company as an
executive Director in August 2021. Mr. Li is an EMBA from
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business, was appointed as a
consultant of the Company in December 2020 and is currently an
executive director of Zhong Ji 1 International Medical Group (HK)
Limited (a company which shares are beneficially owned by
Mr. Yan Li, the chairman of the Board and executive Director). He
was elected as a member of the National Committee of the
Chinese People’'s Political Consultative Conference for two
consecutive terms in 1993 and 1997. Mr. Li was granted the
titles of one of the top 10 athletes in China, in Asia and in the
world on several occasions. In 1992, he won the gold in the
men’s floor (gymnastics) at the 25th Olympic Games in
Barcelona and became the leading figure of the Chinese men's
gymnastics team. In 1996, Mr. Li won another gold in the men'’s
artistic individual all-around at the 26th Olympic Games in
Atlanta. After retiring from the Chinese gymnastics team, Mr. Li
started his own business in January 2000 and he has extensive
experience and abilities in business operation and corporate
management.

Ms. Cao Xie Qiong (“Ms. Cao Xie"”), aged 55, joined the
Company as an executive Director in December 2020. Ms. Cao
Xie holds a Master of Business Administration from the Business
School of The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
and is an honorary professor of the College of Business & Public
Management of Wenzhou-Kean University. She is a founding
member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association and a member of the Zhejiang Provincial Committee
of the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference. She
was a tourism ambassador for Zhejiang Province, a tourism
spokesperson of Anhui Province, an overseas promotion
ambassador for the Expo in Shanghai, a host at TVB in Hong
Kong as well as a film and TV producer. She invested in the food
and beverage industry in 2011 and was the brand director and
group vice president of two listed companies. She entered the
advanced biomedical technology sector in 2017 and is currently
the executive chairperson of the Weissman Cancer Prevention
Foundation.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. He Yiwu (“Dr. He"), aged 60, joined the Company as a
non-executive Director in August 2021. Dr. He obtained his PhD
in 1993 from Boston University. He is currently chief innovation
officer and senior advisor to the president of The University of
Hong Kong, chairman of the board and managing director of HKU
Innovation Holdings Limited and senior advisor to the chairman of
China National Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (Sinopharm). He
was formerly senior program officer and deputy director of the
Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation, chair professor at the University
of Science and Technology of China, global head and senior
director of GlaxoSmithKline, senior vice president of BGI Group,
executive director of the International Vaccine Association and
director of the P4 Medicine Institute in the United States.

Mr. Lyu Changsheng (“Mr. Lyu”), aged 63, join the Company as
an independent non-executive Director in August 2022. He has
extensive leadership experience in investment consulting. Over
the past 20 years, he has proven to possess progressive and
comprehensive corporate development knowledge. Mr. Lyu is
familiar with a variety of management functions of an
organization including initiating, developing and implementing
procedures to improve business performance. He has experience
in the past serve in various listing entity as chairman of the
board or as executive director, no limited to but includes DeTai
New Energy Group Limited (stock code: 559).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee See Barry (“Mr. Lee”), aged 57, joined the Company as
an independent non-executive Director in March 2022. He is also
the chairman of the audit committee and a member of each of
the nomination committee, the remuneration committee, the risk
management committee and the share award committee of the
Board. Mr. Lee graduated from Lingnan University, Hong Kong, in
1990 with a diploma (honours) in the financial service profession.
Currently, he is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Lee has over 30 years of experience
in audit, accounting and financial management. He has served as
a senior partner of Sysble Consultants since 2005, during which,
he provided financial controller services to major customers
including China CBM Group and Oriental Speech Therapy* (3% 77
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESNRAEEERE

Mr. Wang Ning (“Mr. Wang"), aged 45, joined the Company as
an independent non-executive Director in April 2022. She is also
the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of
each of the audit committee, the nomination committee, the risk
management committee and the share award committee of the
Board. Mr. Wang obtained an EMBA from Fudan University,
Shanghai, and graduated from Anhui Normal University, majoring
in hotel management. He served as an independent non-
executive director of RMH Holdings Limited, a company listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8437), the vice
president of Youth Committee of Shenzhen International Chamber
of Commerce and the president of Shenzhen Youth Entrepreneur
Promotion Association. Mr. Wang is experienced in real estate
development, corporate management, venture capital, and the
management of real estate and investment companies listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Professor Huang Cibo (“Prof. Huang”), aged 61, joined the
Company as an independent non-executive Director in April
2022. He is also a member of each of the audit committee,
nomination committee, the remuneration committee, the risk
management committee and the share award committee of the
Board. Prof. Huang graduated from the Department of Medicine
of Xiangya School of Medicine, is among the first batch of
renowned doctors in the PRC. He currently serves as the
director of the Internal Medicine Branch of the Chinese Medical
Association, the vice president of the Rheumatology and
Immunology Branch and the director of the Immunosorbent
Branch of the Chinese Medical Doctor Association, the director of
the Rheumatology Branch of the Cross-Straits Medical and Health
Exchange Association, and the special consultation expert of the
Central Health Care Committee. He has worked in 301 Hospital,
Southern Hospital, People’s Hospital of the Guangdong Province
and Beijing Hospital for nearly 40 years, mainly engaged in
clinical diagnosis and treatment of internal medicine and
rheumatic immune diseases, scientific research and teaching, and
health care work for local senior cadres of the military.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

HONORARY CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF SCIENTIST
Academician Randy Wayne Schekman (“Academician
Schekman”), is a profound cell biologist. He received a BA in
Molecular Sciences from the University of California, Los Angeles
in 1971 and received a doctorate in biochemistry in 1975 from
Stanford University for research on DNA replication. He has been
a member of the National Academy of Sciences since 1992, and
was elected the President of the American Society for Cell
Biology in 1999. He was the founding director of the Stem Cell
Center of the University of California, Berkeley in 2015. He was
former editor-in-chief of Proceedings of the National Academy of
Sciences. In 2011, he was announced as the editor-in-chief of
elLife, a high-profile open-access journal published by the Howard
Hughes Medical Institute, the Max Planck Society and the
Wellcome Trust launching in 2012. He shared the 2013 Nobel
Prize for Physiology or Medicine with James Rothman and
Thomas C. Sudhof and received the Golden Plate Award of the
American Academy of Achievement in 2017. Academician
Schekman is currently the Chairman of Zhong Ji 1 International
Medical Group (USA) and the President of World Life Sciences
and Healthcare Association.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged an external service provider, Mr.
Yeung Yuk Hong (“Mr. Yeung”) as its company secretary to fill
the casual vacancy left by the resignation of Mr. Wan San Fai,
Vincent with effect from 31 May 2023. Mr. Yeung, aged 33,
holds a bachelor degree of Business Administration (Honours) in
Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Yeung has more than 10 years’ experience in
auditing, accounting, initial public offering and company
secretarial matters.
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DIREGTORS" REPORT

EESHE

The Directors present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for FY2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange. The address of its registered office is Victoria
Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street Hamilton, HM 10, Bermuda.
The principal place of business of the Company is Suite Nos.
01-03, 19/F., Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
through its subsidiaries, engaging in the business of longevity
science business, money lending and financial advisory business,
securities and other investments and property investments. The
activities and the particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The discussion and analysis of principal activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including financial key
performance indicators, a fair review of the Company’s business,
a description of principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company and future development in the Company’s business,
can be found in “Financial Results”, “Business Review"” and
“QOutlook” sections under the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
POLICIES

It is the Company’s belief that improvements in environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) matters will enhance the
long-term performance of the Company as well as the benefits of
the Company’'s primary stakeholders, which include the
Shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers and other
business partners. Taking environmental policy as an example,
the Group is committed to build up an environmental-friendly
working environment by promoting energy savings in the offices
and collecting waste papers for recycling. The Group will
continue to make efforts to minimise its operational impact on
the environment and the use of natural resources. An ESG report
will be published separately on the Company’s website to report
the Company’s ESG policies and its compliance with the “comply
or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide
contained in Appendix C of the Listing Rules for FY2023. The
said ESG report is expected to be published on the Company’s
website no later than the end of April 2024.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
Save as the non-compliance set out in the sections headed
“Corporate Governance Report”, for the FY2023, the Group, to
the best of our knowledge, has complied with the Money
Lenders Ordinance, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the
Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ"),
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and other relevant laws and
regulations.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for FY2023 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 84 and page 85
respectively.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, form, frequency and amount of any dividend
payout of the Company must be in accordance with relevant
laws, rules and regulations and subject to the bye-laws of the
Company. Subject to compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and the bye-laws, in deciding whether to propose any
dividend payout, the Board will take into account the Group’s
financial results, the earnings and distributable reserves, the
operations and liquidity requirements, the debt ratio and possible
effects on the credit lines, and the development plans of the
Company.

DONATIONS
There was no donation made by the Group during the FY2023

(FY2022: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL AND MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE
NOTES

Details of the movement in share capital of the Company and the
convertible notes during FY2023 are set out in note 31 and note
32 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as the Share Option Scheme and the convertible notes
issued, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFgWmE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Movements in the distributable reserves of the Company and the
Group during FY2023 are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 88.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the
Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in or exercising of any
rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
professional advisers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-Laws and the laws in Bermuda.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during FY2023 and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. YAN Li (Chairman)

Mr. YAN Yifan (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. CAO XIE Qiong

Mr. LI Xiaoshuang

Non-Executive Directors
Dr. HE Yiwu
Mr. LYU Changsheng

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LEE See Barry

Mr. WANG Ning

Prof. HUANG Cibo

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
29 to 33 of this annual report. Mr. Yan Li holds 49,143,517
Shares (as adjusted taking into account the effect of the Share
Consolidation) and through his wholly and beneficially owned
company, 90.76% shareholding interest in HK Zhong Ji 1, which
in turn holds convertible notes issued by the Company in a
principal amount of HK$1,840,000,000, the conversion rights of
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which, if exercised in full, are convertible into 920,000,000
Shares (as adjusted taking into account the effect of the Share
Consolidation). Mr. Yan Yifan is the nephew of Mr. Yan Li. Other
than the aforesaid, none of the Directors has any relationship
with the substantial shareholders as at the date of this report.

Mr. Yan Li, Mr. Li Xiaoshuang, Mr. Wang Ning and Prof. Huang
Cibo, who was appointed by the Board since the last annual
general meeting, shall retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting pursuant to clause 97 of the Company’s
Bye-laws and being eligible, has offered herself for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company, which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

The Board has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its
fellow subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTOR’'S RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the section of “Share Options” disclosed below, at no
time during FY2023 was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS
To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors
and their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) is considered to have any interests in the businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, other than those
businesses where the Directors were appointed as directors to
represent the interests of the Company and/or the Group.

INTERESTS IN A COMPETING

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Save as the details of the Group's related party transactions are
disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements,
there was no connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions undertaken by the Company during the FY2023 and
up to date of this report which was required to be disclosed
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to clause 178 of the Company's Bye-Laws, every
Director, secretary and other officers shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of assets of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
he/she may incur or sustain by reason of any act execution of
their duty in their offices.

Such provision was in force during the course of FY2023 and
remained in force as of the date of this report. The Company has
taken out and maintained Directors’ and officers’ liabilities
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover
for the Directors.

SHARE OPTIONS

2012 Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted two share option schemes, namely,
2012 Share Option Scheme and 2022 Share Option Scheme.
2012 Share Option Scheme expired on 11 June 2022. As at
31 December 2023, there was 3,868,000 outstanding share
options exercisable under 2012 Share Option Scheme. To the
best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiries, save for Mr. Li Xiaoshuang, who
was an independent third party at the time of the grant of the
share options, and subsequently resigned as consultant and was
appointed as an executive Director on 30 August 2021. The
period during which these share options can be exercised is from
31 December 2023 to 30 December 2030. In respect of 2022
Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, grant
options to any qualifying participant to subscribe for Shares,
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subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. The
exercise price must be in compliance with the requirements
under the Listing Rules. In addition, the option vesting period is
determined by the Board provided that it is not later than the last
day of a 10-year period after the date of grant of options.

The following are the details of the options granted under 2012
Share Option Scheme:

31 December 2020 (the “Date of
Grant”)

Date of grant:

HK$4.00 per new Share (as adjusted
taking into account the effect of the
Share Consolidation)

Exercise price of the
options granted:

3,868,000 Options (as adjusted taking
into account the effect of the Share
Consolidation)

Number of the
outstanding share
options granted:

The closing price of the
Shares immediately
before the date on
which share options
were granted:

HK$3.90 per Share (as adjusted
taking into account the effect of the
Share Consolidation)

2022 Share Option Scheme

On 29 July 2022, the Company adopted 2022 Share Option
Scheme for a term of 10 years. Under 2022 Share Option
Scheme, the Board shall be entitled to grant options to any
eligible participant (as defined hereinafter) as the Board may in its
absolute discretion select.

The number of share options available for grant under 2022
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2023 was 38,701,026
Shares (as at 31 December 2022: 38,701,026 Shares (as adjusted
taking into account the effect of the Share Consolidation)).

Summary of 2022 Share Option Scheme disclosed in accordance
with the Listing Rules are set out below:

(1) Purpose of 2022 Share Option Scheme
The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group to:

(a) motivate the participants of 2022 Share Option
Scheme to utilise their performance and efficiency for
the benefit of the Group;
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(b) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an ongoing
relationship with the participants whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of
the Group, it is important that the Group should be
permitted to provide them, where appropriate, with an
incentive by offering them an opportunity to obtain an
ownership interest in the Company; and

(c)  reward the participants for contributing to the success
of the business of the Group.

Eligible participants of 2022 Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
full time or part time employees of the Group (including
any directors, whether executive or
whether independent or not, of the Group), and service
contractors, agents or representatives, consultants,
advisers, suppliers and customers of the Group (collectively
the “Eligible Participants”) to subscribe for the share
options by the Board in its absolute discretion under 2022
Share Option Scheme.

non-executive and

The Company considers that the grant of Options to the
Participants will offer incentives for (i) employees to
improve their performance and efficiency; (ii) advisors,
service contractors and consultants to provide better
services to the Group (for example in terms of special skills
or technical knowledge to fill any void experienced by the
Group) and offer discounted service and consultant fees; (iii)
suppliers to offer more economic, quality and priority
supplies to the Group; (iv) customers to maximise the
quantity of their orders and increase loyalty to the Group;
and (v) agents and representatives to maximise the quality
of their service offerings to the Group, thereby optimising
performance efficiency and benefiting the long-term growth
of the Group. It is important for the Group to provide them
with opportunities to obtain a shareholding interest in the
Company and to reward them for contributing to the
Group’s long-term success and prosperity. In assessing the
eligibility of the participants, the Company will consider
whether the participants will or have contributed to the
Group on a continuing or recurring basis in its ordinary and
usual course of business which are material to the long-
term growth of the Group. Such assessment will be based
on various factors including but not limited to (i) the
individual performance, time commitment, responsibilities or
employment conditions according to the prevailing market
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(3)

(4)

practice and industry standard (ii) the length of
engagement and/or business relationship with the Group;
(iii) the materiality and nature of the business relationship
with the Group (such as whether they relate to the core
business of the Group and whether such business dealings
could be readily replaced by third parties); (iv) track record
in the quality of services provided to and/or cooperation
with the Group; and (v) the scale of business dealings with
the Group with regard to factors such as the actual or
expected change in the Group's revenue or profits which is
or may be attributable to the participants.

Total number of shares available for issue under
2022 Share Option Scheme and percentage of
issued shares as at the date of this Annual
Report

The total number of share options available for grant under
the scheme mandate of 2022 Share Option Scheme upon
its adoption on 29 July 2022 and as at 31 December 2023
were both 38,701,026 Shares (as adjusted taking into
account the effect of the Share Consolidation).

For FY2023, no share option was granted under 2022
Share Option Scheme. Accordingly, as at 31 December
2023, there was no share option outstanding under 2022
Share Option Scheme and no shares of the Company that
might be issued pursuant thereto.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the total number of
shares available for issue under 2022 Share Option Scheme
remained at 38,701,026 Shares, which represented
approximately 8.50% of the ordinary shares of the
Company in issue.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under
2022 Share Option Scheme

Unless approved by the Shareholders, the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the share
options granted to each eligible participant in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant must not exceed 1% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue at the date
of such grant.

No service provider sub-limit was set under 2022 Share
Option Scheme.
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The period within which the option may be
exercised by the Grantee under 2022 Share
Option Scheme

A period to be notified by the Board to each Grantee and
not more than 10 years from the date of grant.

The vesting period of options granted under 2022
Share Option Scheme
As determined by the Board on a case-by-case basis.

The amount payable on application or acceptance
of the option and the period within which
payments or calls must or may be made or loans
for such purposes must be repaid

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by the
grantee upon acceptance of an option within 21 days from
the date of grant.

The basis of determining the exercise price of
options granted

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board and
stated in the offer letter, which must be at least the higher
of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; and
(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant and
(iii) the nominal value of the shares on the date of grant.

The remaining life of 2022 Share Option Scheme
The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on the effective date, i.e. 29 July 2022
and shall expire on the tenth anniversary thereof, i.e. 29
July 2032.
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Movements of the aforesaid share options during the period

were as follow:

Number of share options under 2012 Share Option Scheme

RE-S-—ERRESHNERENE

Outstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding Exercise Exercise price
as at  Date of grant Granted Exercised lapsed as at Vesting period of share
1 January  of share during the during during the 31 December  period of (both days options
Category 2023  options Year the Year Year 2023  share option inclusive) HK$ per share
R=B==% R=B==% BRE
-A-H FRE# T-ASt-B BRE TRe(EE ke
Bl HRTE BRERLEE  FARE ERfTE VZs: HRTE BEH EEMA) BRER
Director — LI Xiaoshuang 3,868,000 31 December - = - 3,868,000 Vested on 31 31 December 4.00
2020 December 2023 to 30
2023 December
2030
EX %8 “T_%F ZECZFtD ZBIZETC
+=A A=T-H A=t-AZ
=t-H EGE —E=%%
tZA=1A
Save as disclosed above, there were no share options granted K EXFIHEHIN RS- =—FHRFEANK

and exercised under 2022 Share Option Scheme during FY2023. ERE T - —_FBEREFII T Z2EBRELER
ek LT -
SHARE AWARD SCHEME % 17 5% B 5t &

The Company adopted the share award scheme (the “Share AR Tﬁ’\fyf—iﬁﬂ‘?‘/\lfl%%ﬂxf’ﬁﬁiﬁbﬁr
Award Scheme”) on 18 May 2021. The Company shall comply 2| ([RR#HEBEHE ) - KAAF F LR R B ZE\
with the relevant Listing Rules when granting the Awarded =5 EmiRAIARE ° *E B D ZE A ElE
Shares. Under the transitional arrangements before the Share RIMBEMZH  AFE T _=F—H— Elﬁ?ﬁ
Award Scheme are amended to comply with the new Chapter 17 ixﬁ(ﬁ’\]tm BMAIEI7E WL TAEEEEN
of the Listing Rules that became effective on 1 January 2023, if FERFEEE H BE FHHNFETHASZ  BH
awards are made to the directors or substantial shareholders of B EKXBEERS > A A aBEST EHR L
the Group, such awards shall constitute connected transaction MBRET - BTSN EZERB T
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the Company shall

comply with the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules.

The principal terms of the Plan were summarised as follows:

=]: )

R REASNENNEREREET
Eﬁi%¥T$’$lE’ﬁ*}?€ﬂiEﬁﬂ’EﬁE’lﬁ
Bl Y ARERERE  ABTREERLE
MER FAERIIGENAT  REXE
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(a) Purpose (a)
The purpose and objective of the Share Award Scheme are
to recognise the contributions by the certain Participants to
the development and growth of the Group and to provide
them with incentives in order to retain them for the
continual operation and development and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.
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Eligible Participants

The eligible participants under the Share Award Scheme
shall include any person, being a consultant, advisor,
distributor, contractor, customer, supplier, agent or service
provider of any member of the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Award Scheme is 38,701,026 Shares (as adjusted
taking into account the effect of the Share Consolidation),
which represented approximately 8.50% of the issued
shares of the Company as at the date of this annual report.

The maximum entitlement of each participant
under the Share Award Scheme and Scheme
Limit

The Board shall not make any make any further award
which will result in the aggregated number of restricted
shares granted pursuant to the Share Award Scheme
(excluding restricted shares that have been forfeited in
accordance with the Share Award Scheme) exceeding 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company (the maximum
number of restricted shares that may be awarded shall not
exceed 38,680,000 shares (as adjusted taking into account
the effect of the Share Consolidation)) as at the adoption
date. The maximum number of shares in the Company
which may be awarded to a selected participant under the
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the 18 May 2021 (the
“Adoption Date").

No service provider sub-limit was set under the Share
Award Scheme.

Vesting period

The Share Award Scheme does not specify a minimum
period but the Board may in its absolute discretion set a
minimum period before the awarded shares are vested.

Duration

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board pursuant to the rules of the Share Award
Scheme, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a term of 10 years commencing Adoption
Date.
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(9)

(h)

Administration

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the
administration of the Board and the Trustee in accordance
with the rules of the Share Award Scheme and the Trust
Deed. The Share Award Committee (and/or the Trustee
pursuant to its powers under the Trust Deed) is authorized
by the Board, from time to time, at its absolute discretion
select any participant (excluding any participant who is
resident in a place where the Award and/or the vesting and
transfer of the shares of the Company pursuant to the
terms of the Share Award Scheme is not permitted under
the laws and regulations of such place or where in the
view of the Share Award Committee or the Trustee (as the
case may be) compliance with applicable laws and
regulations in such place make it necessary or expedient to
exclude such participant (the “Excluded Person”)) as a
selected participant pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.
In respect of each proposed Award, the Share Award
Committee will consider, amongst others, the number of
restricted shares, the vesting period and conditions for
vesting.

Vesting & Lapse

In relation to a selected participant, subject to the fulfilment
of all vesting conditions (if any) to the vesting of the
restricted shares on such selected participant, the restricted
shares held by the trustee on behalf of the selected
participant shall vest in such selected participant pursuant
to the rules of the Share Award Scheme. The Board shall
have absolute discretion to waive the fulfilment of any
vesting condition. Any restricted shares granted under the
Share Award Scheme but not yet vested shall be personal
to the selected participant to whom it is made and shall not
be assignable or transferrable and no selected participant
shall in any way sell, transfer, charge, mortgage, encumber
or create any interest in favour of any other person over or
in relation to any Award, or enter into any agreement to do
so.

(g)

(h)
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In the event that prior to or on the vesting date, a selected
participant is found to be an Excluded Person or is deemed
to cease to be an eligible person or any event of lapse is
applicable to such selected participant pursuant to the rules
of the Scheme, the relevant award made to such selected
participant shall automatically lapse and the
restricted shares shall not vest on the relevant vesting date
but shall remain part of the Trust Fund and would be used
for further awards subject to relevant terms of the Share
Award Scheme and compliance with the Listing Rules and
all applicable laws.

relevant

Restriction

The Board or Share Award Committee may not grant any
award to any selected participants in any of the following
circumstances under the Share Award Scheme (a) where
any requisite approval from any applicable regulatory
authorities has not been granted; (b) where any member of
the Group will be required under applicable securities laws,
rules or regulations to issue a prospectus or other offer
documents in respect of such award of the Share Award
Scheme, unless the Board determines otherwise; (c) where
such award would result in a breach by any member of the
Group or its directors of any applicable securities laws,
rules or regulations in any jurisdiction; (d) where such grant
of award would result in a breach of the scheme limit as
set out in the Share Award Scheme; (e) where any Director
is in the possession of unpublished inside information in
relation to the Group or where dealings by directors are
prohibited under any code or requirement of the Listing
Rules and all applicable laws, rules or regulations.

The total number of restricted shares available for granted
under the Share Award Scheme as at 31 December 2023
was 38,701,026 Shares (31 December 2022: 38,701,026
Shares (as adjusted taking into account the effect of the
Share Consolidation)). No restricted shares have been
granted under the Share Award Scheme up to the date of
this report.

The total number of Shares that may be issued in respect
of options and awards granted under all share schemes of
the Company during FY2023 divided by the weighted
average number of Shares in issue for the year was 17.4%.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, the chief executive of the Company nor their close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interests or
short positions in the shares of the Company, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which any such Directors or the chief
executive of the Company is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required to be recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were required to be notified to
the Company or the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing rules, were as follows:
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ETRAIEE TS ETH B ITAE SR ETES
RGMZLETABANARR B RFT 2 K&
KEWT

Number of
Number of underlying Total number of
Shares held in Shares held Shares in
long position (L)/ long position (L)/ long position (L)/ Percentage
Name of Directors Capacity short position (S) short position (S) short position (S) (Note 1)
MEBEFRL iR,/ #&L) Bk
BEsns 56 BERCIRHHE ERS)IEEROGHAE ERSIRGEH (Braz1)
Mr. YAN Li (Note 2) Beneficial owner and 49,143,517 (L) 920,000,000 (L) 969,143,517 (L) 212.79% (L)
interest of controlled 920,000,000 (S) 920,000,000 (S) 202.00% (S)
corporation
Bt (HF2) EnBe AR RS
NGIE £
Ms. CAO Xie Qiong Interest of spouse 4,660,000 = 4,660,000 (L) 1.02% (L)
EE:n o {8 &
Mr. LI Xiaoshuang (Note 3) Beneficial owner - 3,868,000 (L) 3,868,000 (L) 0.85% (L)
FNERAE M E3) EmBEA
Notes: Kot -
1. This represented the approximate percentage of the total number of issued 1. LHRER_T_=F1T-A=+—BZERTRHR

Shares as at 31 December 2023.

B2BOBEDLL -
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2. Mr. Yan Li held 49,143,517 Shares and through his wholly and beneficially
owned company, 90.76% shareholding interest in Zhong Ji 1 International
Medical Group (Hong Kong) Limited, which in turn holds convertible notes
issued by the Company in a principal amount of HK$1,840,000,000, the

conversion rights of which, if exercised in full, are convertible into

920,000,000 Shares.

3. Mr. Li Xiaoshuang held 3,868,000 share options of the Company entitling
him to subscribe for 3,868,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company and/or their
respective close associates had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, so far as being known to the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, the interests and short
positions of the substantial Shareholders or other persons (other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) in the
Shares and underlying Shares which have been disclosed to the
Company pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and have been recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

2. B AR FL9143 517N EBEEEEE
BRZARBEERATPRIGEREREEEERAA
90.76% R HEH =  MEBFEGERBEEEEEGR
NEFBEARRRFTEITAS % A1,840,000,000%8 T2
AERER - MEETFEMABERE TR A
920,000,0004% f% 17 °

3. FNE L A5 H3,868,0000 AN AR BEAAE - B TER
#%3,868,000% A% 17 K9 #E 7| o

BREXF#EZREIN  RZBEZ=F+=A=1+—
H BMEARRESAHEaTHRAB R, K
EZRAZERHE N RAR R S EA [ 48
E(ExAEFLPEEEXVI) ZE MG
EERDERESFRHEEAERIAR -

FERRREG  HERORESF 28

3¢
m

RZZE-—=F+=-A=+—H8 AR5 F=%
BEETBRABMA  TERRMEMAL(ED
RIEZEZTRERSTHABRINRRDZIEEK K
FHEEREESFRBERAEXVIBE2RID E
ZIEXBERAARABFERE L ARIEES N
BIEBIE36 (AR BATEZERMzERE R
KBRS

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company: REATEBERZIEFR
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Number of underlying  Total number of issued share

Shares held in  Shares entitled in Shares in capital of the

long position (L)/ long position (L)/ long position (L)/ Company

Name Capacity short position (S) short position (S) short position (S) (Note 1)
BALT

X BETREZ

FEERL/  BAL/KAS) FRL/RAS) BOEAY

R/ #4 & KEOIRGHE RERHEE ReEH (H1)
Harmony Delight Holdings Limited Beneficial owner - 110,000,000 (L) 110,000,000 (L) 226.15% (L)

("Harmony Delight") (Notes 2 and 3)
WANERERAR (MRA) W 72k3)

Person having a security interest in shares
ERBEA
BARMEREZAL
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Approximate
Number of percentage of
Number of underlying  Total number of issued share
Shares held in  Shares entitled in Shares in capital of the
long position (L)/ long position (L)/ long position (L)/ Company
Name Capacity short position (S) short position (S) short position (S) (Note 1)
fBART
X BETRAZ
FBFRL,/ BEL/RAS) FAL/ KRS BOEY
2B/ #% g KB(SIRAEE HERAEE BGEY | (fi1)
Ma Hongyi (Note 4) Beneficial owner = 10,000,000 (L) 10,000,000 (L) 228.35% (L)
Interest of controlled corporation 1,030,000,000 (L)  1,030,000,000 (L)
SrEN24) EREAA
REG AR
Zhong Ji 1 International Medical Group Beneficial owner - 920,000,000 (L) 920,000,000 (L) 202.00% (L)
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Zhong Ji 1") 920,000,000 (S} 920,000,000 (S) 202.00% (S)
(Notes 3 and &)
EEREINERBESEFRAA EREAA
([ ) 23K5)
China International Osteoarticular Medical Interest of controlled corporation - 920,000,000 (L) 920,000,000 (L) 202.00% (L)
Group Limited (Note 6/ 920,000,000 (S) 920,000,000 (S) 202.00% (S)
China International Osteoarticular Medical REG AT ER
Group Limited (4/#6)
Batani Pap Mdharam Beneficial owner 50,630,000 (L) = 50,630,000 (L) 11.09% (L)
EREAA
Chainrai Balram Beneficial owner 50,000,000 (L) - 50,000,000 (L) 10.98% (L)
EEIE EREAA
So Hoi Wing, Jackson Beneficial owner 30,000,000 (L) = 30,000,000 (L) 6.59% (L)
Hil& EREAA
Notes: i -
1. Based on a total of 455,441,291 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2023. 1. UR=ZZFE=Z=F+=A=+—HZH& 455,441,291
BEITROBER -
2. Harmony Delight held convertible notes with conversion price of HK$2.0 (as 2. 6 A0 B AR QB BT E 1T A £ 88 4220,000,000% 7T 2
adjusted taking into account the effect of the share consolidation) per Share AMKRER LHREASRKRM2.0(KFEKNHE G
issued by the Company in the principal amount of HK$220,000,000. IR BETRAE)BTT -
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8. On 5 November 2020, a mortgage was entered into between Zhong Ji 1 as
mortgagor and Harmony Delight as mortgagee in respect of the convertible
notes in the principal amount of HK$1,840,000,000.

4. Harmony Delight was wholly owned by Mr. Ma Hongyi.

B, Zhong Ji 1 held the convertible notes in the principal amount of
HK$1,840,000,000.

6. Zhong Ji 1 was 90.76% owned by China International Osteoarticular Medical
Group Limited, which in turn wholly owned by Mr. Yan Li.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the
Company had not been notified of any other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for employment contracts, no other contracts relating to the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During FY2023, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers and the largest customer
represented approximately 54% and 34% respectively (FY2022:
46% and 23% respectively) of the Group’s total revenue.

During FY2023, the aggregate amount of cost of services
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers and the largest
supplier represented approximately 92% and 70% respectively
(FY2022: 92% and 44% respectively) of the Group's total cost of
services.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in any of the Group's five largest
customers and suppliers as at 31 December 2023.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) for all of its employees in Hong Kong and
defined contribution retirement plans for the Group's eligible
employees in the PRC. Particulars of the MPF Scheme are set
out in “Retirement benefits costs” section under note 3.2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during FY2023.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the best knowledge of the Directors, the Board
confirmed that the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules during FY2023.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The Group has not made any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries during the reporting year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE OF

31 DECEMBER 2023

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated 26
February 2024.

On 26 February 2024, Shenzhen Zhong Ji Health Science
Company Limited* CRIITT R ERFERZBHRAF) (“Zhong Ji
Health”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into
a joint venture agreement with Chengdu Guandetang
Biotechnology Group Company Limited (A% £878 = = 4 ¥ &l ik &
Bl A R 2A7]) (“Guandetang”) in relation to the establishment of
a joint venture (the “Joint Venture”) in the PRC, which, upon
establishment, will be owned as to 51% by Zhong Ji Health and
49% by Guandetang. The Joint Venture will be principally
engaged in the provision of trading of biomedical products in the
PRC.

Save for the above, the Board is not aware of any other
important event requiring disclosure that has taken place
subsequent to 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
report.
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AUDITORS

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 12
January 2023, the Board had resolved to appoint new Auditor,
Elite Partners CPA Limited (“Elite”) as the new auditors of the
Company with effect from 12 January 2023 to fill the casual
vacancy as the new auditor of the Company following the
resigned of KTC Partners CPA Limited. Details of the change of
auditors are disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 12 January 2023.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 have been audited by the auditor of the
Company, Elite, retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

who will

On behalf of the Board
Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited

Yan Li
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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The Board is committed to uphold a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence
and maximising Shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its
corporate governance practices from time to time in order to
meet the rising expectations of Shareholders and comply with
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements (both locally and
internationally), and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Current Board, with the best information available, confirmed
that the Company has applied the principles of, and complied
with, the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code ("CG Code") set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules
for FY2023, except for certain deviation as specified with
considered reasons for such deviation which are explained
below.

Financial Reporting

As announced on 31 March 2023, the Company failed to timely
publish an announcement for the annual results of the Group for
FY2022 (the “2022 Annual Results”) on a date not later than
three months after the end of the financial year of the Company,
namely, on or before 31 March 2023 in accordance with Rules
13.49(1) of the Listing Rules. Under Rule 13.49(2) of the Listing
Rules, the preliminary announcement in relation to the 2022
Annual Results shall be based on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for FY2022 which shall have been agreed
with the Company’s auditor. The delay of 2022 Annual Results
was due to the issuing and receiving of audit confirmations for
banks, creditors or debtors of the Group, could not be completed
as scheduled. Also, certain confirmations from external valuation
reports are yet be finalized. As such, the Company was not able
to publish the audited 2022 Annual Results on or before
31 March 2023 in accordance with Rule 13.49(1) of the Listing
Rules and finally published on 18 April 2023.
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Under Code Provision D.1 of the CG Code, the Board should
timely disclose sufficient information to enable shareholders to
assess the issuer’'s performance, financial position and prospects.
The Company was not able to timely comply with the financial
reporting provisions under Rule 13.49(1) of the Listing Rules in
publishing an announcement for the annual results for FY2022.
The Company has been reviewing and closely monitoring its
internal control systems to avoid delay in publication of its
periodic financial information under the Listing Rules in the
future.

Also, the Company has complied with the risk management and
internal control code provisions D.2.4 during the vyear. In
particular, the Risk management Committee monitors the
Company to disclose the following:

(@)  the process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks;

(b)  the main features of risk management and internal control
system;

(c) an acknowledgement by the Board that it is responsible for
the risk management and internal control system and
reviewing its effectiveness;

(d) the process used to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system; and

(e)  the process used to resolve material internal control defects
for any significant problems disclosed in its annual reports
and financial statements.

A comprehensive analysis of the risks affecting the business of
the Company and the mitigation measures is set out in the
section of “Risk management and internal controls” on pages 69
to 73 in this Annual Report.
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THE BOARD

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises of four
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. Formal letters of
appointment for Directors setting out the key terms and
conditions of their appointment were executed by all Directors.
Mr. Yan Li, Mr. Yan Yifan and Ms. Cao Xie Qiong were not
appointed for a specific or proposed term; and Mr. Li
Xiaoshuang, Dr. He Yiwu, Mr. Lyn Changsheng, Mr. Lee See
Barry, Mr. Wang Ning and Prof. Huang Cibo were appointed for a
term of two years but all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The key responsibility of the Board is overseeing the business
and how the management serves the interests of the
Shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board assumes
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the best
interests of the Company and its Shareholders, and ensure good
corporate governance and compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements.

The roles of the Board include reviewing and guiding corporate
strategies and policies, monitoring financial and operating
performance and setting appropriate risk management policies.
All Directors should take decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company. To achieve this, the Board has adopted corporate
governance principles aimed at ensuring that the Board is
independent and fully informed on the key strategic issues facing
the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, risk management and
internal control, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of
the Board, directing, and coordinating the daily operation of the
Company are delegated to the management.
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THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board has established five board committees, being the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Risk Management Committee and the Share
Award Committee (collectively the “Board Committees”) to
oversee different areas of the Company’s affairs. All Board
Committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense.

Under the Bye-Laws of the Company, one-third of the Directors,
or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest one-third, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation. They are required to retire from office at each annual
general meeting and their re-election is subject to a vote of the
Shareholders. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election at the
annual general meeting at which they retire. Further, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company but shall
be eligible for re-election at the meeting. Separate resolutions are
proposed for the election of each Director.

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in
pages 29 to 33 of this annual report, which demonstrates a
diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualification.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are Mr. Yan Li and
Mr. Yan Yifan respectively.
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As at the date of this report, the composition of the Board and RAREHH - EEENEEZE S HK
the Board Committees are given below and their respective R @ MEAMERERENARE R -
responsibilities are discussed in this report.

Risk
Audit Nomination Remuneration Management Share Award
Board of Directors Committee  Committee Committee Committee Committee
2 B & 5
E=g ENEEE REZES yEES EEBEZES RBEES
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. YAN Li By kE = chairman = chairman chairman
EE FE R
Mr. YAN Yifan B—i k4 = - » = -
Mr. LI Xiaoshuang =N - - . . a
Ms. CAO XIE Qiong BE2u+ = = = = =
Non-Executive FHTES
Directors
Dr. HE Yiwu Al IR B 1§+ = = = = =
Mr. Lyn Changsheng aRBEE - = 3 - -
Independent BYFHTES
Non-executive
Directors
Mr. LEE See Barry FETE chairman member member member member
B3 B 8 B8 B 8 B &
Mr. WANG Ning TELXE member member chairman member member
D= D= TE D= D=
Prof. HUANG Cibo BRBEHE member member member member member

An updated list of the Directors, identifying their roles and ZAARBUH LB BGLHERTEETLE -
functions at the Company, is available on the websites of the MHEBIHERKARE 2 A€ EBERE -
Company and the Stock Exchange.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FHITEE

Pursuant to the Bye-laws and the CG Code, every Director is HREBEARMEILRCEXEATE  SZEFHAHK
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once LV E=ZFHEERTINEBEBET X - 2EIEH
every three years. All the non-executive Directors are subject to fTE=ENMEBTEMETRTE  LRBETBB
the aforesaid retirement requirements and are appointed for a Z=FZ#ETETHEZT -

specific term of not more than three years.
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The Board has three independent non-executive Directors, and at
least one of them has the appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise as
required under the Listing Rules. The Board has received from
each of the independent non-executive Directors an annual
written confirmation of his independence pursuant to the Listing
Rules, and considered that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

The number of Board meetings, committees meetings and
general meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2023
and the Directors’ respective attendance record are summarised
as follows:

EERF-2BUIHTESF MEFTRD —
HEEBLETRAIMREZEEEXRERAE
ARAEMBEREERANE  EFECRES
BYFATEETRELTRAUMBLZFES
VHEEEHERE UIRREBBIUIFNTES
BV RBL e

BE_Z_=F+_"A=+-HIEFERETZ
Exges ZESERMERRAGRELS
ExsHFREBARIT

Number of Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend

HE/GERLERERR
Risk Special Annual
Audit Nomination Remuneration Management  General  General
Name of Director Esps Board Committee = Committee =~ Committee = Committee = Meeting  Meeting
EkREE BER BE
Exe BFNZEE REZEE §FHzZEE® Z8g® %ixg AFAE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. YAN Li ByELE 12/12 = 2/2 = 1n n A
Mr. YAN Yifan B-Mx4E 12/12 - = - i n A
Ms. CAO Xie Qiong L3 G 712 = = - = 11 1/1
Mr. LI Xiaoshuang FNELE 1212 - = - = 171 1/1
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Dr. HE Yiwu ARE B L 712 - - o i n A
Mr. Lyn Changsheng BRELAE 11/12 = = = = 171 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHITEES
Mr. LEE See Barry FREHE 12/12 4/4 2/2 2/2 n n A
Mr. WANG Ning TERAE 12/12 4/4 2/2 2/2 n n A
Prof. HUANG Cibo BRRAR 1112 4/4 2/2 2/2 n n A
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Regular Board meetings are convened and held by the Company,
and the Directors are given adequate notice to attend such
regular Board meetings or other Board meetings. The Directors
are also provided in a timely manner with appropriate information
in such form and of such quality as will enable them to make an
informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities as Directors. Minutes of regular Board meetings,
other Board meetings or other committees meetings are
recorded in sufficient details. Draft and final versions of minutes
are circulated to all Directors for comments and records
respectively, within a reasonable time after the Board meetings
or committee meetings are held. Final versions of minutes are
kept by the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) and are open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

For having a diversified Board which is regarded as an essential
element in the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development, in August 2013, the Board adopted a
Board Diversity Policy with principles as summarised below.

The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the
composition of the Board and makes recommendations to the
Board on appointment of new Directors. The Nomination
Committee also oversees the conduct of the annual review of the
effectiveness of the Board. In reviewing and assessing the
composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee will
consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity in order to
maintain an appropriate range and balance of talents, skills,
experience and background on the Board. In recommending
candidates for appointment to the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider candidates on merit against objective
criteria and with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service etc.

The Board currently comprises of nine Directors, one of which
are female, reflecting the Company’s on-going belief to achieve
gender diversity. The Company shall continue to uphold the
appointment based on merit principle while adhering to the
Board Diversity Policy on the whole, and aim to maintain a
comparable level of female representation on the Board.
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DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate
respect of the legal action against the Directors and the officers
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2023.

insurance cover in

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed Director is provided with comprehensive
induction to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of
the operations and businesses of the Group as well as his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

During the year, all Directors were provided with regular updates
on the Group's business and operation and information which
covered topics including but not limited to the CG Code, the
disclosure and compliance of inside information, updates and
changes in relation to legislative and regulatory requirements in
which the Group conducts its business for their study and
reference. During the vyear, all Directors have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills, with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code
by reading relevant news, journals, magazines and relevant
publications. The Company has provided information relating to
the regulatory update and extracted certain materials from the
website of the Stock Exchange to directors for their own study
to strengthen their understanding on the Listing Rules from time
to time.

Further pursuant to HKEX guide in respect to various matters
(unaudited Results announcement, Loan repayment extension,
settlement agreement) breach of Listing Rules 2.13(2) 13.13
13.15 14.34 and 13.09, on attempts to improve the Company
internal controls, on 17 and 24 March 2023 the Company
compliance solicitor have conducted relevant courses in training
the Company executive directors and relevant staffs on Rule 2.13
and Chapters 13 & 14 of the Listing Rules, require each director
to comply with Listing Rules to the best of his/her ability and
use his/her endeavours to procure the Company’s compliance
with the Listing Rules.
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The record of continuous professional development relating to &HE-"ZT-_=F+_-"A=+—HItFE =F&
director’s duties and regulatory and business development that SEHEFBENEEUAMERERBBANFZE
have been received by the Directors during the year ended 31 EHEZEDEEEEM AT

December 2023 are summarised as follows:

Directors = Type of training
33158 Bl
(Note)
(K1 7E)
Executive Director HITESE
Mr. YAN Li (Chairman) B E(EE) A B
Mr. YAN Yifan (Chief Executive Officer) B — k& (7T AR #) A B
Mr. LI Xiaoshuang TNE A A, B
Ms. CAO XIE Qiong EESGn A, B
Non-executive Director EHITES
Dr. HE Yiwu fa] 75 B\ 18 £ A, B
Mr. Lyn Changsheng BRBEE A B
Independent Non-executive Director BUKHTES
Mr. LEE See Barry ZREE A, B
Mr. WANG Ning EFEEAE A, B
Prof. HUANG Cibo ERVE Ed A, B
Notes: K aF
Types of training 3 5| 48 Bl
A: Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefing, seminars,  A: 2mMEIRE BEEFTRAEGHRE Mg &
conferences, forums and workshops #=omERIES
B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant  B: MEBEBLETRASHER HtEREERTERE
publications relating to the latest development of the Listing Rules, other EREREENMEABHERT - 3RE - BT - R
applicable regulatory requirements and directors’ duties and responsibilities 6 8 T %1
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules. Having
made enquiry to all Directors, they all have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards as set out in the
Model Code during the year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises of three independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Wang Ning (Chairman), Mr. Lee See Barry and Prof. Huang Cibo.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee are:

(@)  to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration;

(b)  to have the delegated responsibility to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management (i.e. the model described in the code
provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code), including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment, and make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee should consider factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration;

(c) to review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;

(d) to review and approve the compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management in connection
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment
to ensure that such compensation is determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive for the
Company;
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(e)  to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that such arrangements are determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms and that any
compensation payment is otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and

(f)  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.

The remuneration payable to the Directors and senior
management is determined by reference to their experiences and
duties with the Company and the estimated time spent by them
on the Company’'s matters. During the year, 2 meetings were
held to (a) review the Company's policy on remuneration of the
Group; (b) review the performance and recommended the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management to the
Board; and (c) recommend the remuneration of newly appointed
Directors and senior management to the Board.

Details of the Directors’ and the chief executive’'s remuneration
are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises of the chairman of the board and three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Yan Li (Chairman), Mr. Lee See
Barry, Mr. Wang Ning and Prof. Huang Cibo.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee are:

(@)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and length of service) of the
Board at least annually; and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to implement the
Company's corporate strategy;

(b)  to consider the skills mix needed in respect of the Directors
and make recommendations to the Board;

(c)  to identify and nominate candidates to fill casual vacancies
of the Directors for the Board’s approval. Academic and
professional qualifications, business experience, expertise
and knowledge as well as other requirements under the
Listing Rules will be assessed to determine if the
nomination is suitable;
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(d) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive
Directors’ annual confirmations on their independence; and
make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report;

review the

(e) to regularly review the time required from a Director to
perform his responsibilities;

(f)  to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of the
Directors and succession planning for the Directors in
particular the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive;

(g) to do any such things to enable the Nomination Committee
to discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the
Board; and

(h)  to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the Company's constitution or imposed by
legislation.

During the vyear, 2 meetings were held by the Nomination
Committee to, among other things, (a) review the structure, size
and composition of the Board, (b) make recommendation for
appointment of the Directors, (c) assess the independence of
each of the independent non-executive Directors, and (d) review
the Board Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness and
considered the Group achieved the policy since its adoption.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises of
three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Lee See Barry
(Chairman), Mr. Wang Ning and Prof. Huang Cibo.
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The role and function of the Audit Committee are:

Relationship with the Company’s auditors

(a)

(c)

to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the external auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations, and ensure co-ordination where more
than one audit firm is involved,;

to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services. For this
purpose, external auditor shall include any entity that is
under common control, ownership or management with the
audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third
party having knowledge of all relevant information would
reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or
internationally. The Audit Committee should report to the
Board, identifying any matters in respect of which it
considers that action or improvement is needed and making
recommendations as to the steps to be taken; and

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company's relations with the external auditor.
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Review of financial information of the Company

(e)

66

to monitor integrity of financial statements of the Company
and the Company’s annual report and accounts, interim
report and, if preparation for publication of quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them. In this regard, in reviewing
the Company’s annual report and accounts, interim report
and if prepared for publication, quarterly reports before
submission to the Board, the Audit Committee should focus
particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgemental areas;
(i) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumption and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

legal

as regards to (e) above:

(i) members of the Audit Committee must liaise with the
Board, the Company’'s senior management and the
person appointed as the Company’'s qualified
accountant and the Audit Committee must meet, at
least twice a year, with the Company’'s external
auditors; and

(i) the Audit Committee should consider any significant
or unusual items that are, or may need to be,
reflected in such reports and accounts and must give
due consideration to any matters that have been
raised by the Company's staff responsible for the
accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or external auditors.
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Oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems

(9)

(n)

to review the Group's financial controls, and unless expressly
addressed by a separate board risk committee, or by the
Board itself, to review the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with the management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. This discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure
coordination between the internal and external auditors, and
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Group,

and to review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management in
respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and management’'s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters set out in this terms
of reference;

to review the Company’'s arrangements for its employees
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The Audit Committee shall ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action; and

to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.
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Corporate Governance Functions

() to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board,

(N to review and monitor

professional

management;

the training and continuous
development of the Directors and senior

(s)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(t)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

(u)  to review the Company’'s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the half-
yearly and annual financial results and reports as well as the
effectiveness of the Company's risk management and internal
control systems and internal audit function. The Audit Committee
also met the external auditor and monitored the re-appointment
of external auditor. Besides, the Audit Committee performed the
corporate governance duties as delegated by the Board as
discussed above.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee during the year.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total remuneration
paid to Elite Partners CPA Limited was HK$1,400,000 for audit
services provided for the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE GROUP’S
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of financial statements of the Group which are
prepared in accordance with the relevant statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards in force, and are published in
a timely manner. The Directors are responsible for selecting and
applying on a consistent basis suitable accounting policies and
ensuring timely adoption of Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The Board understands the importance of presenting a clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group’s overall performance,
financial positions as well as prospects in a timely manner; and
the Board is pleased to report that, so far, the annual and interim
results of the Group are announced within the prescribed
periods.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Board acknowledges its responsibility in (i) maintaining the
risk management and internal control system for the Group to
safeguard the investments of the Shareholders and assets of the
Group at all times; and (ii) evaluating the effectiveness of such
system. The system of internal control aims to help achieving the
Group’s business objectives, safeguarding assets and maintaining
proper accounting records for provision of reliable financial
information. However, the design of the system is to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement in the financial statements or loss of assets and to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risks of failure when business
objectives are being sought.

The Directors acknowledge that they have overall responsibility
for overseeing the Company’s internal control, financial control
and risk management system and shall monitor its effectiveness
on an ongoing basis. A review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted by
the Board at least annually.

Aimed at providing reasonable assurance against material errors,
losses or fraud, the Company has established risk management
procedures which comprised the following steps:

o Identify risks: Identify major and significant risks that could
affect the achievement of goals of the Group;
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° Risk assessment: Assess and evaluate the identified risk
according to its likely impact and the likelihood of
occurrence; and

° Risk mitigation: activities to

mitigate the risks.

Develop effective control

Risk identification and assessment are performed or updated
annually, and the results of risk assessment, evaluation and
mitigation of each function or operation are documented to
communicate to the Board and the management of the Company
for reviews.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are,
however, designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

A review on the internal control systems of the Company,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions has been carried out by an independent
professional third party to conduct an independent review.

The Audit Committee reviewed the internal control review report
issued by the independent professional third party and the
Company's risk management and internal control systems in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 and considered
that they are effective and adequate. The Board assessed the
effectiveness of internal control systems by considering the
internal control review report and reviews performed by the Audit
Committee and concurred the same. The Risk Management
Committee, which was delegated by the Board, will review the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management system. The Audit
Committee and the Board will continue to review the need for an
internal audit function on an annual basis.

Also, the risk management committee was established on 31
March 2023. As at the date of this report, the risk management
committee comprises of the chairman of the board and three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yan Li (Chairman), Mr.
Lee See Barry, Mr. Wang Ning and Prof. Huang Cibo.
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The risk management committee is responsible for monitoring
and overseeing the risk policies and strategies of the Group, and
also support the Board in overseeing the management of climate
risks and providing directions to address the impact of climate
change and consider climate-related risks and opportunities in a
holistic manner.

During the Financial Year 2023, the risk management committee
held one meeting to review the risk management system of the
Company for the Financial Year 2023.

Main Features
Described below are the main features of the Group’s risk
management and internal control framework:

Control Environment

The Directors and senior management are committed to
developing and maintaining high professional and ethical
standards and the Group provides sufficient training to
accounting and financial personnel to keep pace with the
growth and/or complexity of the business.

Risk Assessment

Mechanisms are in place to identify and assess the risks of
fraud that affect achievement of the Group’s objectives.

Any risk identified should be reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board and be investigated. Immediate
action should be taken to mitigate the risk.

Information and Communication

Administrative information system provides necessary
information to an appropriate employee of the Group at the
necessary level of detail on a timely basis.

Channels are established for employees of the Group to
communicate suspected improprieties upstream through
other than a direct supervisor.

Control Activities

Policies and procedures are laid down for key business
processes for ensuring management directives are carried
out.

Control activities include segregation of duties, authorisation,
physical count, access control, documentation and records,
etc.
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Monitoring

° Ongoing assessment of control systems’ performance is
carried out.

o Professional third party is engaged to assess and comment

on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems.

Identifying, Evaluating and Managing Significant Risks
The management has regular meetings with officers from
different operation divisions to identify significant risks and to
discuss the likelihood of occurrence, the impact of such risks and
risk mitigation strategic. The management then reports to the
Audit Committee and the Board with recommendations and
mitigation measures. The Board is responsible for determining
the risk mitigating strategy.

Internal Audit

The Group has outsourced the internal audit function by engaging
a professional third party to assess and comment on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems during the year. There was no significant
deficiencies in risk management and internal controls reported by
such professional third party.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

In relation to the handling and dissemination of inside information
under the SFO, the Group has established the policy of
disclosure of inside information as an integrated part of its risk
management and internal control policy to provide guidance for
reporting and disclosure of inside information. Such policy,
together with the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” issued by Securities and Futures Commission, are
also distributed across all relevant divisions and employees who
are likely to be in possession of inside information. Under such
policy, the Directors or management shall report any potential
inside information to the Board as soon as possible, so that the
Board can determine whether the matter or its development is
inside information and make disclosure whenever necessary.
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Review of Effectiveness
The Audit Committee also
identified by external auditor, regulatory authorities, the
management and the outsourced internal audit function and
evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems at least annually. The
Audit Committee in turn reports any material issues to the
Board.

reviews internal control issues

The Board has conducted review on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023, covering all material controls in
the financial, operational and compliance controls. The review
also considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programs and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions. The
Board considers the risk management and internal control system
effective and adequate. The Board confirms that the Group has
complied with the Code Provisions on risk management and
internal control as set out in the CG Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2023.

On 23 February 2023 pursuant to HKEX guide on various
matters of past years (unaudited Results announcement, Loan
repayment extension, settlement agreement) breach of Listing
Rules 2.13(2), 13.13, 13.15, 14.34 and 13.09.

On attempts to improve the Company internal controls, on 17
and 24 March 2023 the Company compliance solicitor have
conducted relevant courses in training the Company executive
directors and relevant staffs on Rule 2.13 and Chapters 13 & 14
of the Listing Rules, require each director to comply with Listing
Rules to the best of his/her ability and use his/her endeavours to
procure the Company's compliance with the Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Yeung undertook
taken no less than 15 hours of professional training to update his
skills and knowledge during the reporting period.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders
through general meetings and Shareholders are encouraged to
participate.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

On 30 March 2012, the Board adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy to comply with the updated Listing Rules
and to reflect mostly the current communication practices of the
Company with its Shareholders. Such policy aims to (i) promote
effective communication with Shareholders and other
stakeholders; (ii) encourage Shareholders to engage actively with
the Company; and (iii) enable Shareholders to exercise their rights
as Shareholders effectively. However, the Board will review the
Shareholders’ Communication Policy on a regular basis to ensure
its effectiveness and compliance with the prevailing regulatory
and other requirements.

The Company established a range of communication channels to
provide its Shareholders and stakeholders with balanced and
understandable information about the Company. These include
annual general meeting, annual report, interim report, various
notices, announcements and circulars. The annual general
meeting and other general meetings of the Company are primary
forum for communication between the Company and its
Shareholders. The Company shall provide Shareholders with
relevant information on the resolution(s) proposed at a general
meeting in a timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules.
The information provided shall be reasonably necessary to enable
Shareholders to make an informed decision on the proposed
resolution(s).

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a special
general meeting shall be convened by the members of the
Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth (10%) of such of the paid-up capital of the
company as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company. The requisitionists must
submit their requisition in writing, in which it must state the
objects of the meeting, and be duly signed by the requisitionists,
mailed and deposited at Suite Nos. 01-03, 19/F., Sino Plaza,
255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (attention
of the Company Secretary).
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If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting for
a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the notice
convening the meeting is given, the requisitionists, or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date. Any reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionists by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to
convene a meeting shall be repaid to the requisitionists by the
Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings by Shareholders

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, proposals at
Shareholders’ meetings can be put forward by the members of
the Company holding at the date of the submission of the
proposals not less than one-twentieth (5%) of such of the paid-
up capital of the Company as at the date of the submission
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company;
or not less than 100 Shareholders.

The submission of the proposals must be made within 3
business days after a notice of the Shareholders’ meeting have
been served to all registered Shareholders by the Board. The
proposals must be written and must state the objects of the
proposals, and must be signed by the proposers, and mailed and
deposited at Suite Nos. 01-03, 19/F., Sino Plaza, 255-257
Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (attention of the
Company Secretary); and may consist of several documents in
like form, each signed by one or more proposers.

The proposals will be verified with the Company’s share registrar
and upon its confirmation that the proposals are proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to update the
resolutions by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all registered Shareholders, provided
that the proposers have deposited a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses involved in publishing
supplementary circular and updating related resolutions. On the
contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
proposer will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, no
resolution will be updated as requested.
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Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of the Company Secretary, by email: ir@zhongji.com.hk,
fax: (852) 2526 5733, or mail to Suite Nos. 01-03, 19/F., Sino
Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintains a website at www.irasia.com/listco/hk/
zhongjilongevity, where information of the Company including the
list of Directors, announcements, circulars and reports released to
the Stock Exchange and other information are posted.
Information on the Company's website will be updated from time
to time.

The Board conducted a review of the implementation and
effectiveness of the Shareholders’ Communication Policy during
the Year and the Board is satisfied with the results thereof given
the above measures.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company adopted by a special resolution an amended and
restated bye-laws on 29 June 2023 for the purpose of (i)
conforming with the core shareholder protection standards set
out in Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules, (ii) allowing general
meetings to be held as a physical meeting, an electronic meeting
or a hybrid meeting where Shareholders may attend by electronic
means in addition to physical attendance in person, and providing
certain powers to the Board and the chairman of the meeting in
relation thereto; and (iii) making other updates and housekeeping
changes. For further details, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 25 May 2023 and 29 June 2023 and the
circular of the Company dated 29 May 2023. The Company’s
amended and restated bye-laws are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. Save as disclosed above,
there was no change to the Company’'s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

8 A% BAD S

elite
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ZHONG JI
SCIENCE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

LONGEVITY

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhong
Ji Longevity Science Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries collectively referred to as (the “Group”) set out on
pages 84 to 212, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment of loan and interest receivables
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Impairment assessment on loan and interest receivables and other receivables

FE W B 5t R 7B R Bt W 5% 7B 2 6 1B B 1

As at 31 December 2023, the net carrying amounts of
loan and interest receivables and other receivables
amounted to approximately HK$177,732,000 and
HK$162,774,000 respectively.
RZEZ=F+ZA=+—H BEHREFREMNEE@EF
185 5l &9 /177,732,00078 7T £ 162,774,000 JT °

Management judgment is required in assessing and
determining the recoverability of loan and interest
receivables and other receivables and adequacy of
allowance made using the expected credit losses (‘ECL")
model under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”.
BEEAVHREENFSRIem T A FABHE
EER(EAHEEFEBDRATBREEEKREREH
BLUAREMBYRIEBNITKEM REHNEER TR R
W BEEAED A -

We had identified impairment assessment on loan and
interest receivables and other receivables as a key audit
matter because the assessment of the recoverability of
loan and interest receivables and other receivables and
recognition of loss allowance are inherently subjective
and require significant management judgment, which
increases the risk of error or potential management
bias.

B AP E A P W B SR R B A R H th FE Ui 3R TR Y R B BT 1
BAABARETEE RERTHERERKEINEAK
Hip KR IER AT B ML R EREERERNFAEE
Bt FTEBEBEHERAG MG MERSIE
EIRERAAE R -

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of loan and interest receivables and other
receivables included:

BFIRE IR B U E R A B DA R E At 8 U 5K T8 B R
B EETHEFBEE:

o We discussed with management and independent
external valuer engaged by the Group in relation to
the methodology, basis and assumptions used to
see whether the methodology and assumptions
used were reasonable and appropriate;

J BMEBEEER ESEZENBEINBEERM
MATANE L  BERBR  UWBERMANT AR

BRERAEREE:

o We checked the accuracy, appropriateness and
reliance of the input date used; and

J ZMREMAE ABBNERE  BEMLRAE
e

o We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent external valuer
taking into account its experience and
qualifications.

J BMEZRBILIINBEEMOLCR R ERET
HiEee N e hREEMK -

We considered the management’s conclusion to be
consistent with the available information

BMRREEENEREARAEN —H o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
forgery, intentional
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

involve collusion, omissions,

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. WWe remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’'s report is Ms. Liu Hai Jiao with Practising
Certificate number P08207.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Level 23,

YF Life Tower,

33 Lockhart Road,

Wan Chai,

Hong Kong

26 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

e =TT A%

S PN
O e

Year ended 31 December 2023
BHE—_ZT-_=fF+-A=+—HIt&EE

2023 2022
i 2 | —ZE-—
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B at FHET FE T
REVENUE Iy 25 %) 64,989 89,668
Cost of sales 8H & Bk 2N (8,709) (5,831)
GROSS PROFIT E F 56,280 83,837
Other income and gains, net H At Y A R Uk 25 75 58 7 30,358 309
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (5,714) (2,842)
Administrative expenses THRAX (69,535) (41,114)
Impairment losses under expected EHEEBBEEAT
credit loss model, net of reversal EEE - MR 9 (5,699) (28,306)
Loss on withdrawal of joint ventures B & & 1 % &5 18 = (202)
Fair value gain/(losses) on investment R EMERAFEUZ
properties (& 18) 6 1,070 (314)
Share of results of joint ventures BhEEbECEE (79) (1,628)
Finance costs 51 7% ik 2N 8 (1,936) (417)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B B A% F 9 4,745 9,323
Income tax expense Frigfi A x 10 (1,608) (8,685)
Deferred tax IR E T 18 10 (614) 63
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRREF 2,523 701
Attributable to: BB
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIEZ =N 2,313 (904)
Non-controlling interests E4E I #E = 210 1,605
2,523 701
(Restated)
(r=&E5)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE EBRAQTEBARZ
ATTRIBUTABLE BREF (E#B)
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 14
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) FRNEARKEE HKO0.15 cents HK(0.06) cents

for the year

&R (BE)

0.157%8 1l

(0.06) &1L
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A ER A ®ER

Year ended 31 December 2023
pEm e = SR B =g = (8 e 4 E

2023 2022
—E—= gy —
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 2,523 701
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE HhZ2mBAX
Other comprehensive expense AREZHEERTIERE
that may be reclassified to BEmvEmEEMAS:
profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of HMEBINEFREELE ZEHZF
foreign operations (3,718) (37,390)
Net other comprehensive expense REZBEESTSESE
that may be reclassified to BazEtr2EAZ FE
profit or loss in subsequent periods (3,718) (37,390)
Other comprehensive loss that TEREEHBEENIEE
will not be reclassified to B HME2HEEE:
profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Equity investments designated at fair EEARAFTEEBEMEE
value through other comprehensive W AR ZBEARFE
income:
Changes in fair value NSSER- ) (3,756) (32,917)
Net other comprehensive loss TeRERBEEN»ESE
that will not be reclassified to BEmsEME2HEEEFHE
profit or loss in subsequent periods (3,756) (32,917)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE FREMEEAX  KHNBRFE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (7,474) (70,307)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FRE2AEMAXZEE
EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR (4,951) (69,606)
Attributable to: BN
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIET =N (4,992) (69,656)
Non-controlling interests FE 5 R E 2 LY 50
(4,951) (69,606)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A B IS AR R R

31 December 2023
=l =4 r= B ==

2023 2022
=l = =G — T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
/oza TET T T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Plant and equipment & = & 2% 15 1,125 1,519
Investment properties B Y% 16 25,295 24,411
Right-of-use assets TRAEEE 17 10,668 1,265
Interests in joint ventures REEPEIHER 18 - 80
Financial assets at fair value through EATEEBHEHMEE
other comprehensive income W ARZERMEE 19 5,847 9,859
Loan and interest receivables JEWE K K F B 21 142,848 138,135
Total non-current assets EMBEELE 185,783 175,269
CURRENT ASSETS nBEE
Inventories FE 20 2,523 3,809
Loan and interest receivables JEWE K K& F B 21 34,884 34,154
Trade receivables JfE g BR 3% 22 2,141 654
Deposits, prepayments and other e ENREBEREM
receivables FE W R I8 23 196,602 183,983
Tax recoverable A U (B #¢ 18 3,681 3,718
Amounts due from related companies JiE U 8 B R | Iﬁ 28 2,549 23,183
Amount due from a director JiE U — %%$, 28 16 -
Cash and cash equivalents fﬁ@&ﬁ%%@i% 24 81,075 60,069
Total current assets MBEERE 323,471 309,570
CURRENT LIABILITIES wE B S
Trade payables J& 1+ BR 3% 25 206 1,087
Other payables and accruals HENRBEREFER 26 12,546 11,311
Bank and other borrowings RO HEMEES 27 9,010 10,290
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 6,978 1,472
Amounts due to related companies JE 1<) A Bt & B 5K 18 28 3,763 -
Contract liabilities EHEE 29 24,207 23,662
Tax payable F‘%H 7t 18 16,634 15,531
Total current liabilities mE B EARE 73,344 63,353
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEZFE 250,127 246,217
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHAERRBER
LIABILITIES 435,910 421,486
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BEETHIEAE 30 1,236 637
Lease liabilities fﬂ EB8E 17 4,209 -
Total non-current liabilities EnBAEAE 5,445 637
NET ASSETS EEZFE 430,465 420,849
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
iR B M AR R

31 December 2023
ST el e e =

2023 2022
—F == - —
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
K1z FET T T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARFE

Share capital fi% 7 32 4,554 4,257
Reserves i 1 398,849 389,572

Equity attribute to owners of the BEBERAQATEEA
Company 2R 403,403 393,829
Non-controlling interests I 5= iR #E == 27,062 27,020
Total equity EEERE 430,465 420,849

The consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 212 were S8AE2I2EZ A M BHREC R -_ZE-_MFE=
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on A+ AEEKE=EFSH ENEETIEILIHIAT

26 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: BEERKREE:
Yan Li Yan Yifan
E5lva -
Director Director
EZE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

/\\/ \ 4‘

—H— AN DA
/ NS /g

4=4

2R

Year ended 31 December 2023

BE_T-_=F1+-_A=+—HIFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
ERAREANEE
Equity
Share PRC Exchange Share component of Non-
Share premium Fair value ~ Contributed statutory ~ fluctuation option  convertible Accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve notes losses Total interests equity
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d) (Note e/ (Note f] (Note 31)
TRRERZ
Rx  ROEEE ATERE RERH fEiEHEFE EXRDHE BRERS BEHH RS #i  FERER ER4E
(K#a) GED (Hie) (Hitd) (Kite) UE (K31
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR iR THR THr Tz T TiEx TR FER TiEn THr Tz
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZF+ZA=+-H 4,257 951,820 (162,294) 217102 25,021 (30,647) 7 1,755,856 (2,427,358) 393,829 21,020 420,849
Profit for the year FREF ° o o o 2 ® - - 2,313 2,313 210 2,523
Other comprehensive (losslfincome for ~ £RE M2 & (F8)/ K&:
the year:
Changes in fair value of financial assets EATHEBEM2AREAE 2
at fair value through other CHEEZLTEED
comprehensive income - - (3,756) - - - - - = (3,756) o (3,756)
Exchange differences on translation of ~ HEENEREEL2EH 28
foreign operations = = = = = (3,549) = = = (3,549) (169) (3,718)
Total comprehensive (losslfincome FR2E(BR)/ hEgE
for the year = = (3,756) - - (3,549) - © 2313 (4,992) il (4,951
Transfer of fair valug reserve upon REERATERELH2AREA
disposal of equity investments at BIRERERERDTERE
fair value through other
comprehensive income = = 2,212 = = = = - (2,272) - - -
Subscription of shares RERH 297 14,270 = = = = = = = 14,567 = 14,567
At 31 December 2023 RZF==F+-A=1-H 4,554 966,090 (163,778) 217,102 25,021 (34,196) n 1,755,856 (2,421,317) 403,404 21,061 430,465
Attributable to owners of the parent
ARRREARE
Equity
Share Exchange Share  component of Non-
Share premium Fairvalue  Contributed  PRC statutory fluctuation option convertible  Accumulated controlling Total
capital account feserve surplus reserve reserve reserve notes losses Total interests equity
(Note &) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d) (Note 6] (Note 1/ (Note 31/
e ATEER  RARHR EEERE EXRDEE BRERE 23R #i  FERER
( (Hitb) GED) (Kita) (Hite) GE) ",
HK$'000 HKS' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TiEn TiEn T Tin TR Fan Thn TiEn TiEn T T
At 1 January 2022 R=2--%-A-A 3,870 932,470 (140,742) 27702 25021 5188 7 1,755,856 (2,415,089) 443,748 26,970 470,718
Profitoss) for the year Engfl/ (B8 & i = 3 5 = = = (904 904) 1,605 701
Other comprehensive (losslfincome for ~ £RE {2 & (F#R)/ Kh&:
the year:
Changes in fair value of financial assets BATHEBEMZANEARZ
at fair value through other SHEEZATEED
comprehensive income - 4 (32,917) = & - - . 2 (32,917) - (32,917)
Exchange differences on translation of ~ REBNEBBELEXZE
foreign operations h - - - i (35,835) = b i (35,835) (1,565) (37,390)
Total comprehensive (loss/income FR2E(BR)/ hEEE
for the year i - (32,917) i 5 (35,835) . - (904) (69,656) 50 (69,606
Transfer of fair valug reserve upon REERATEABEH2ANEA
disposal of equity investments at BIRERERERDTERE
fair value through other
comprehensive income = = ,365 = = = = b (11,365) - - -
Shares issued in respect of prepayment  SiEMEHEME TR H
of consultancy fee 387 19,350 = o S < = S = 19,737 = 19737
At 31 December 2022 RZZZZf+-B=+-R 4,257 951,820 162,294) 27702 25021 (30,647) n 1765856 (2,427,358) 393,829 21,020 420,849
& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of & ZERERE SR AR BRRAZEEEMFEE
HK$398,849,000 (2022: HK$389,572,000) in the consolidated statement of 398,849,00014% (= & = = 4 :389,572,000/%

financial position. TT) ©
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of shares at a
price in excess of their par value per share and is not distributable but may
be applied in paying up unissued shares of the Company to be issued to
the shareholders of the Company as fully paid bonus shares or in providing
for the premiums payable on repurchase of shares.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve represents cumulative gains and losses arising from
revaluation of equity instruments at FVTOCI that have been recognised in
other comprehensive income, net of amounts reclassified to profit or loss
when those equity instruments at FVTOCI are disposed of or are
determined to be impaired. Gains and losses arising from revaluation of
equity instruments at FVTOCI will not be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus arose in the previous years represented the net
effect of the capital reduction, the share premium cancellation and the
elimination of accumulated losses of the Company. Under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if: — it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or — the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium accounts. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as
at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Company did not have any reserve
available for distribution to shareholders.

PRC statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the People's
Republic of China (“PRC"), the PRC subsidiaries are required to provide for
PRC statutory reserves, including enterprise expansion fund and general
reserve fund, by way of appropriations from its statutory net profit (based
on the PRC statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries) but
before dividend distributions.

All appropriations to the funds are made at the discretion of the board of
directors of PRC subsidiaries. The board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries shall decide on the amounts to be appropriated based on its
profitability each year.

The enterprise expansion fund may be used to increase registered capital
subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities. The general reserves
fund may be used to offset accumulated losses or increase the registered
capital subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share options reserve

The share options reserve represents the fair value of unexercised share
options granted by the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy of share-based payments set out in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Bt 2 -

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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Year ended 31 December 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

\\/\ -II-E kv //Ibi%%

Year ended 31 December 2023
HE-ZT-=F+-RA=+—HILFE

2023 2022
=T S —EFE-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FA& T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KRETHHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 25 A1 g A 4,745 9,323
Adjustments for: TP SIBEL 2 FHE:
Bank interest income RITH B WA (132) (144)
Finance costs Bh & X A 1,936 83
Dividend income B B A (9) o
Depreciation of property, plant and M BERZETE
equipment 394 658
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 6,940 3,550
Impairment loss of loan and interest FEWE R RAEREEEFE
receivables, net 3,269 (11,077)
Impairment loss of trade receivable, JE s BR SRRk 18 /85 48 5 BB
net 24 9
Impairment loss of other receivables, b i€ Ug 5% T8 i (B /&5 18 /% 58
net 2,406 39,374
Net proceeds from bad debts ZRWE 2 TS RIEFE
recovery (30,000) =
Share of results of joint ventures EBREECEZHE 79 1,628
Fair value (loss)/gains on investment WEMEZATFE(EER), s
properties (1,070) 314
Written off of plant and equipment I 5 B S K 7% - 455
Impairment loss on goodwill of EEPECHERESE
joint ventures = 433
Loss on withdrawal of joint venture BEGEPtEEIAE = 202
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale LEAHEECHEE BB
financial assets 15 i
(11,403) 44,808
Decrease in loan and interest JE W B 5K R F) B
receivables 17,066 22,576
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FE®D(Em) 1,286 (3,134)
Increase in trade receivables JE s BR 5K 38 A0 (1,511) (703)
Increase in deposits, prepayment and & - A 3K I8 K& H fth & I ZIE
other receivables 30 (13,158) (43,916)
Decrease/(increase) in trade payables  J& 1 BR Xt 4 (38 hn) (882) 833
(Decrease)/increase in other payables  HEMEMNZKIEREFEZRCORLD),/
and accruals 3N 1,235 (1,312)
Increase in contract liabilities BHAEEM 545 22,536
(Decrease)/increase in amount due W R AR KB R D),
from/to related companies 30 24,397 (29,488)
Cash generated from operations KEMF 2R E 17,575 12,200
Income tax refund/(paid), net EE (BB F5E (501) 98
Interest element on lease liabilities HMEABEZMETLE (1,346) (334)
Net cash generated from operating KB TTETSIR & F R
activities 15,728 11,964
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mMEREMER

Year ended 31 December 2023
BE—ZE-_=F+=-HA=+—HItEE

2023 2022
—E-=F =l =
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt i FHET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B U F & 132 144
Investment refund from joint ventures A& & D EMNIEEER
due to withdrawal = 3,371
Dividend received BB B 9 =
Purchase of property, plant and BEME BERZE
equipment 15 - (1,030)
Proceed from disposal of financial HEEATESEBHAM
assets at fair value through other 2EHK=ARZ ©R
comprehensive income BEEFGBHRE 241 14,102
Net cash generated from investing REEHBIREFRE
activities 382 16,587
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Repayment on lease liability BEEHEBE (6,628) (3,696)
Repayment of borrowing EEEK (5,377) -
Repayment of interest B A (590) -
New other borrowing raised FrES 2 HAMEK 4,068 3,168
Issuance of share capital BITR 14,567 =
Advanced to a director —REEFIN (16) =
Repayment to director ERTES = (6,926)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEEFTA), i’
financing activities IR &5 EE 6,024 (7,454)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER

Year ended 31 December 2023
BHE—_ZT-_=fF+-A=+—HIt&E

2023 2022
—EBE-=HF =E = =k
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B it FE T FH& T
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH FARERHAESZEEY
EQUIVALENTS FOR THE YEAR # 50 58 22,128 21,097
Cash and cash equivalents at FPzEEeRREEEY
beginning of the year 60,069 19,437
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEETE RS E) v B
changes (1,122) 19,5635
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEZREASEEY
AT END OF THE YEAR 81,075 60,069
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF HREeRBREZSEYH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: D
Cash and bank balances & &IRT1T & &% 24 81,075 60,069
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

re W mARN G

GENERAL INFORMATION

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited (formerly known
as Asia Pacific Silk Road Investment Company Limited) (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). In the
opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
and ultimate holding company of the Company is Zhong Ji
1 International Medical Group (Hong Kong) Limited,
incorporated in Hong Kong. As 31 December 2023, the
directors of the Company consider the ultimate controlling
shareholders of the Company is Mr. Yan Li, who is also the
chairman of the Company. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the corporate information section to the annual
report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) are as follows:

° Longevity science business

° Money lending & Financial Advisory

o Securities and other investments

° Property investment

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong

Kong dollars (“"HK$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

31 December 2023
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2023
=F ==t Bl ==

2.

94

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group's
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2023 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to Definition of Accounting

HKAS 8 Estimates
Amendments to Deferred tax related to assets and
HKAS 12 liabilities arising from a single

transaction

International Tax Reform — Pillar
Two Model Rules

Insurance Contracts (new
standard)

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKAS 12
HKFRS 17

Amendments to

HKFRS 17
Amendments to Initial Application of HKFRS 17
HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 — Comparative

Information

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material effect on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and prior
periods and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

In addition, the Group has not applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not
yet effective, in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as

HKAS 1 Current or Non-current!
Amendments to Non-current Liabilities with
HKAS 1 Covenants'’
Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and
HKFRS 16 Leaseback’
Hong Kong Presentation of Financial
Interpretation 5 Statements — Classification by
(Revised) the Borrower of a Term Loan

that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause’

Amendments to Supplier Finance Arrangements’
HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKAS21

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28

Lack of Exchangeability?
Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.
9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all the new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.

2.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.

96

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

users.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

income,

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

For financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement

date;
o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are

observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Material accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

98

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B 5 R

31 December 2023
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. SREMEBRRGHREEREAGH

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 EXgHBEWE)
Investments in a joint ventures REELEZRE

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in joint ventures are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group's share of net assets under the equity
method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of joint ventures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated other comprehensive
respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of joint ventures is included as
part of the Group's investments in joint ventures.

income,
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3.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared
with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

i

) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(il) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

i

) the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv)] one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

102 Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
2023 Annual Report

3. RAMBBRRANEERERSH

B (#)

32 EXSHEEHE)
BBE
UTELHEEERNEES B :

(a)

%

ERAREATRREALZE
EBEB Bz AL

(iii)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

B
i

foey
el

HBASERERZEG IR
[F] 422 il 4

UARBABEALE
RE

RAEBEHEFRAZE
R—2TEEEAR:

TREETIMEMGHEZ
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e el | el = e =
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #E8UBBRERGEEERE KRS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BE®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 EXgHBEWE)
Related parties (Continued) BB (&)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following b) BEAZAFTETNIEMAMIESHZ
conditions applies: (Continued) T (&)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled (vii ZEBH@EBEREZATLT
by a person identified in (a); 2 I 5k 2k R 2 5l

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) @NEREZATHZE
influence over the entity or is a member of ﬁgﬁiﬁggﬁ DECUN
the key management personnel of the i%?ﬁf%&(‘kux?ﬁgz
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and HARNEBEEEREZ2—%

KE: &

(vii) the entity, or any member of a group of (viii) ZERREMBEE ZEM
which it is a part, provides key KERE BASEHAE
management personnel services to the B2BARRMBEZEEEA
Group or to the parent of the Group. R -

Plant and equipment BERZE

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less BMERZEREANRZTERE
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. MBEBEAR- - KENIKKZEIEER
The cost of an item of plant and equipment CHRABREEBEABULBEESR
comprises its purchase price and any directly REERERMEERERE ZE
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working A E BN

condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of plant and BMERZBEEHERAEERMES
equipment have been put into operation, such as MEERRESZRY BERESEH
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the MEEERR - MFEERELE
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is BAlEEARE RIS RZEE
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria ZEEEA%E;§$TK7%EEQE o i
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is BERZEZEEH ZE\ TEREE
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a AIAEEERZEHNrERRE L
replacement. Where significant parts of plant and BE UREFTZAEBFHRE
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, ITHREFE -

the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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3.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Leasehold Over the shorter of period of the
improvements lease terms and 20%

Medical machinery 20%

Furniture, fittings 20% to 33%
and equipment

Motor vehicle 25%

Where parts of an item of plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives
and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B 5 R

31 December 2023
e el | el = e =
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #E8UBBRERGEEERE KRS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BE®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 EXSHBEEW®E)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of
the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the statement
of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2023
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #SZAUBHRGREEREKRES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BE )
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 EXgHBEE)
Leases (Continued) HE (&)
The Group as a lessee KEEFERAHEA
(a) Short-term leases and leases of low-value a) EHHEEREKEEBEBEEMEE
assets
The Group applies the short-term lease HREHBME BB A2
recognition exemption to leases of buildings that BEAXUTEYERSHEE R
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the EEMNEFHE AX£EEER
commencement date and do not contain a HHHERRHARE - AEEN
purchase option. It also applies the recognition HEEBEEEHEEAERA
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease o MHBEERKEBEEEM
payments on short-term leases and leases of ENHENRIZEGSEESH
low-value assets are recognised as expense on HEGEENHAHANER AR
a straight-line basis or another systematic basis X o
over the lease term.
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) EREEE
The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FREEEMNK AR :
0 the amount of the initial measurement of . HEBGENNPTES
the lease liability; o
. any lease payments made at or before the . 7 F s B #i sk 2 B fE 8
commencement date, less any lease FEEBEENR  BEME
incentives received; WHERSE:
. any initial direct costs incurred by the o AEBEEANEMNBE
Group; and B &
o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the . & B R 4y EH) [ 5R 7B AR
Group in dismantling and removing the BE BREBEEME
underlying assets, restoring the site on S EREBEEER
which it is located or restoring the BRI AR AT AR E Bk
underlying asset to the condition required LT EE AR BB AN b & o
by the terms and conditions of the lease.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life
and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS
9”) and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

REVBRBREREEREAGH
B (#)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 EXgHBEE)
Leases (Continued) HE (&)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) AKEEFIERAHEANA(BE)
(d) Lease liabilities (Continued) d HEBRGE

The lease payments include: HENREE:

fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement
date;

amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

e RBEENKEBEEEMEHN
[ 7 1~ 50 8L fa] & W 7

EEE:

s BIEEELERME A
HEHENK  KAMHA
HIm B L RETNS

e

e REMNHKEEERBEHAX
SERMO SR

e RASEABETITER
BERENBEEITERE:
54

e REMRRAEEEGITRE
EERKIIHEER - RIE
A& HAE R &K o

After the commencement date, lease liabilities REBEEZ  HEAERE
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease FMEEREEENKELDA
payments. o
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HREMBERREHUEEREKREF
BE®)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 EXgHBEWE)

Leases (Continued) HE (&)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) AKEEFIERAHANA (BE)

(d) Lease liabilities (Continued) d HEABG@E
The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and EZAENUNTERL ANEEHMHE
makes a corresponding adjustment to the related EaB(UHEENEREEE
right-of-use assets) whenever: EITHERAR)EITENT =

the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following a market
rent review/expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate.

s HMHEMEHHTEEE
BEERNFGEEREZ
ERBRT HEAEER
EEBEREHFMEAY
M IS RT BRI R AL IR L&
RIHENRMEHE -

. MENRETSELOE
BRBEROTHBELES
B, AEREBEETY
i A REHT LR
B EUERT  ABA
% £ 7 {5 7 4746 B R B
48 5 B B Y KT T

e

AEEERATH R RET
RESRABAEBHEBAZS -

The Group presents lease liabilities as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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3.

110

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"))
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(@)  Financial assets
(i)  Classification and subsequent

measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is
achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(a)  Financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Classification and subsequent

measurement of financial assets
(Continued)
All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term;
or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a

portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging
instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that are
required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial
assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period. If the credit risk
on the credit impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer
credit impaired.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #SREUBHERGREERE KRS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BE )
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

114

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(a)  Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Equity instruments designated as at
FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at
FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other
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comprehensive income and accumulated in FEMEZEKEAAER
the fair value reserve for financial assets at VTEZAFEEBEME

FVTOCI; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal of the equity investments, and will
be transferred to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in
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equity instruments are recognised in profit MUR ZEERTAR
or loss when the Group's right to receive BHRENRBERPER
the dividends is established, unless the B FE AR B EARE 45 M B B

dividends clearly represent a recovery of WERA - REFTAEZR

part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the other income
line item in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment
assessment under expected credit loss
(“ECL") model on financial assets at
amortised cost which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL
for trade receivables. The ECL on these
assets are assessed individually for debtors
with significant balance or collectively
using a provision matrix with similar credit
risk characteristics based primarily on the
debtors’ aging profiles.

For all other instruments, the Group
measures the loss allowance equal to 12m
ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognizes
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based
on significant increases in the likelihood or
risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(@)  Financial assets (Continued)
(iv) Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets

(Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

(Continued)

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that result
in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(@)  Financial assets (Continued)
(iv) Impairment of financial assets

(Continued)
Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets

(Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

(Continued)

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

° it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

REVBBRREREERERSH
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3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(a)  Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default
and loss given default is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using
a provision matrix taking into consideration
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables
are considered on a collective basis taking
into consideration past due information and
relevant credit
forward-looking macroeconomic
information.

information such as
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes
into consideration the following
characteristics when formulating the
grouping:

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors;
and

° External credit ratings where
available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit
impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade
receivables, where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. e BEHRGREEREARET

122

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(a)  Financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the assets expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in
equity instrument which the Group has
elected on initial recognition to measure at
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previously accumulated in the fair value NFEEBEMEERE
reserve for financial assets at FVTOCI is ARZERMEECATE

not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to accumulated losses.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(b)  Financial liabilities and equity

(i)

(iii)

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
either as financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group's financial liabilities including
trade payables, other payables, borrowing,
lease liabilities and amounts due to related
companies are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZEHEBRRFREERE RS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BR (%)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 EXgHBEE)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect
of the time value of money is material).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. SREMEBRRGHREEREAGH

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 EXgHBEWE)
Income tax T 12

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax
because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease liabilities,
the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets
or the lease liabilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #E8UBBRERGEEERE KRS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BE®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 EXSHBEEW®E)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes requirements to the
leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on
right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the
principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #E8UBBRERGEEERE KRS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BE®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 EXSHBEEW®E)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance
obligations (including allocation of
transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price
to each performance obligation on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or
service underlying each performance obligation is
determined at contract inception. It represents the
price at which the Group would sell a promised good
or service separately to a customer. If a stand-alone
selling price is not directly observable, the Group
estimates it using appropriate techniques such that
the transaction price ultimately allocated to any
performance obligation reflects the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
goods or services to the customer.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition on performance
obligations for contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue from the following
major sources:

Revenue from rendering of financial and investment
consulting services are recognised at the point in time
when the related financial and investment consulting
services are delivered to the customers.

Revenue from provision of diagnostic and medical test
services are recognised at the point in time when the
diagnostic and medical test services are rendered to
the customers.

Revenue from sales of health and medical products is
recognised at a point in time when the control of the
health and medical products have been transferred to
the customer.

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’'s estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment of
all relevant non market vesting conditions. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options
reserve.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #E8UBBRERGEEERE KRS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BE®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 EXSHBEEW®E)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)
When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to service providers
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where
that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case they are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the entity
obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the
service. The fair values of the goods or services
received are recognised as expenses (unless the
goods or services qualify for recognition as assets).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a first-in, first-out/weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs
directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
asset, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #E8UBBRERGEEERE KRS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BE®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 EXSHBEEW®E)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recognizes as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct
or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme"”) are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Retirement benefit obligations

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the
employer MPF contributions expected to be offset as
a deemed employee contribution towards the LSP
obligation in terms of HKAS 19.93(a) and it is
measure on a net basis. The estimated amount of
future benefit is determined after deducting the
negative service cost arising from the accrued
benefits derived from the Group’s MPF contributions
that have been vested with employees, which are
deemed to be contributions from the relevant
employees.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits
the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual

leave) a after deducting any amount already paid.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that\ period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Ownership of investment properties

The Group’s management needs to assess whether the
Group has the ownership of the investment property in
Saipan was valid. The judgements the Group used in
determining if it has ownership over the investment
property in Saipan detailed in Note 16.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the directors of
the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group's
investment properties in the PRC are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. As a result, the management of the Group has
determined that the presumption that investment properties
measured using the fair values model are recovered
through sale is rebutted and the Group estimated the
deferred tax on the basis of recovering through use.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Provision for ECLs on loan and other receivables

The allowance for ECLs on the loan and other receivables
is estimated based on assumption about the risk of default
and credit risk of respective receivables. The loss allowance
amount is measured at difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows with the consideration of expected future credit
loss of the respective receivables. Such assessment
involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty. When
the actual future cash flows are less or more than
expected, a material ECLs or material reversal of ECLs may
arise, accordingly.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision for ECLs on loan and other receivables
(Continued)

The following significant judgements are required in
applying the accounting requirements for measuring the
ECIL:

Significant increase of credit risk

As explained in Note 3, ECL are measured as an allowance
equal to 12-m ECL or lifetime ECL for respective
receivables. An asset will use lifetime ECL when its credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.
HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant
increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk
of an asset has significantly increased, the Group takes into
account quantitative and qualitative reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information including available
customers’ historical data and existing and forecast market
conditions.

Model and assumptions used

ECLs on the loan and other receivables which are not
assessed to be credit impaired are estimated using a
calculation model using observable data as at the end of
the reporting period, including the difference between (i) the
effective interest rates of interest charged by the Group for
similar categories of the loans and other receivables; and (ii)
the risk-free rate, and adjusted by forward looking
information, for example, GDP growth, etc. Judgements is
applied in identifying the most appropriate ECL model as
well as for determining the assumption used in the model,
including those relate to key drivers of credit risk.

The Group's allowance for ECLs on loan receivables may
also take into account the subsequent settlement, collateral
valuation and the management’'s judgement on the
effectiveness and marketability of the collateral properties
and customers’ capability of payment at the estimated
valuation and the actual valuation may differ from the
estimation.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group's loan and
other receivables are disclosed in notes 21, 23 and 39.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers.
The determination of the fair
assumptions of market conditions which are set out in
note 16.

value involves certain

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the
Company have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions. Whilst the Group considers valuations of
the Group's investment properties are the best estimates,
the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic has resulted in greater
market volatility depending on how the Covid-19 pandemic
may progress and evolve, which have led to higher degree
of uncertainties in respect of the valuations in the current
year. Changes to these assumptions, including the potential
risk of any market violation, policy, geopolitical and social
changes or other unexpected incidents as a result of
change in macroeconomic environment or other unexpected
incidents would result in changes in the fair values of the
Group’s investment properties and the corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the
Group’'s investment properties is approximately
HK$25,295,000 (2022: HK$24,411,000).

4.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B 5 R

31 December 2023

S S F =T —E

ERERESTHERATIRERRZEN
FERRGE)

REMEZ2DFE
REVMEDRBEBLEXGEMET 2
BRAFEINR BEAFERIRET
mREER - FIEHENEE6

REKBEERER  AARNEFTSIELH
B YEABETEIRRABHR - &
EAKRERRASERENENEELSR
EflbE ERENHERARBEERE
R TI5KE) - ARFHEMARIEOE
RERBEAME <SAFEMBENTRE
EMEM - ZFBRENEH(BREAEE
REREMERETMMBER - BUR - b
BEOARH e BB R EMEIN 4B

REEMEIIEH BEHARERE
MENDFEEFLHEABREZREME
HRER 2RO WS HEIE S EIEHEE

B

R-ZE-_=F+=-A=+—H ' x&E£B%
B ¥ BRTEE A #%)25,295,000/8 T (= F
— 124,411,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R e

31 December 2023
—T-=F+=R=+—H

5. REVENUE 5. W
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) =2 ER
2023 2022
—E-=F == =k
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH& T
Revenue from contracts with customers % ;& Bf 7§ % & % 8|
within the scope of HKFRS 15 F15FEERZ
REEFEHNZ
W =
Sales of health and medical products HERREREE
= m 4,447 17,550
Provision of diagnostic and medical test REDE & EE
services B3 AR 15 26,879 26,370
31,326 43,920
Timing of revenue recognition within EAMEREER
the scope of HKFRS 15 E15HFEERZ
W £ 72 52 B R
Point in time basis T 5 {18 B F) B 31,326 43,920
Revenue from other sources H fth 2R W =
Loan interest income B3 F B M A 33,663 45,748
33,663 45,748
Total revenue recognised during FABRA 2B W=
the year 64,989 89,668
(ii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (i) ?EFEFEHARGBHNZEN
performance obligation for contracts with REER
customers
The Group has applied the practical expedient in REBE A5 EH B IR E LRI FE155
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its contracts for sales FI2IBNERET HAEANENE
of health and medical products, provision of diagnostic ERRARBE REZDELEEA
and medical test services and rendering of financial HAREUARREHRS R EKXEBEBR
and investment consulting services such that the % At - EAERSEE LRSS
above information does not include information about BErERTAEBERGEHEA —F
revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it HERCANBTIIBRBEORK T
satisfies the remaining performance obligations under BREERMN K = E R -

the aforesaid contracts that had an original expected
duration of one year or less.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision-makers (“CODM"), review the Group's
internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. Information reported to the chief
operating decision makers, for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment, focuses on the
types of goods or services delivered or provided.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
commenced the business of provision of diagnostic
consultation, health and medical testing and checking as
well as distribution of healthcare supplements, and it is
considered as a new operating and reportable segment by
the CODM.

The Group's reportable and operating segments are as
follows:

(@)  Longevity science business: provision of diagnostic
consultation, health and medical testing and checking
as well as distribution of cancer prevention &
immunity healthcare supplements;

(b)  Money lending and financial advisory business:
provision of loan financing for earning interest income
and provision of financial advisory and management
services rendering various loans fees;

(c)  Securities and other investments: holding of equity
investments, investment in short to long-term financial
assets for dividend income; and

(d)  Property investment: investment in properties for rental
income and/or for potential capital appreciation.

No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at
the above reportable segments of the Group.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B 5 R

31 December 2023
e el | el = e =

REsHEH

ARABMITEE X BEERRA(E
BELBEREAD)  BAAKEZAE®RSE -
NEFERBALDEER - LERDE R
REFEMAETRZLERRAERZEH
EFRFARXNIAMERZERIRSE R
Al e

RE-P-=F+-A=+—ALFE &
SEBREEDESN  REBEARAR
BANRRESHH  HBEBRERRE
AR BHHEERA2EH -

REFBWNA2RELLEDEOT

(@) EBEMBXEY: BRUDPEHEH BF
B R S N AR A B B B R & AR
oo

by EENEMEMAMEL: REEXRE
LAE%HX%’J:%\HQJ\&TE{ %H‘ﬂuu u@&
ERRGAREEBEERER:

) FEFREMEE:FERAKRE &
HERNEMEEREARREE
WA R

(d) PERE: RERYENRIRES K
AR/ RIEBEEAREE -

BHEAEE AR BHLES HE

5 H .
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NOTES

TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RAMEE

31 December 2023

— = —

=

6.

140

EEF=ZA=F—8
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s loss before tax
except that bank interest income, loss on disposal of plant
and equipment, share of results of joint ventures, finance
costs as well as head office and corporate income and
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude tax recoverable and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax
liabilities and other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

i

7 EE R E)

SELBBERI KR ZRERFERR

EREHME
o PBEBRNERAL

RAEEERLE S H 2 FE
R 200 A /(Eﬁ

1B)RHE - BIUAGREBERBAEHN, (BE)
AE - MAEAERBAEN (BB ZFE
TERAEEBHAERZFAETZER

—HERENERS

R R 1T A 2R

A HEBEERRBEBER BHESELE

ZHEB MBRAARBHRER R AR

ARRX -

P B0 AT M5 3 A TR A K E At 2R 0 B 48 M SR R

RRARBEENEEEELESE @ ﬁ‘%é

ETBRRZEFEE -

E\Eﬁﬁﬁ BB IR BE N R EA R
ReRERMARABIREEEEE

ﬁ BoOMEBETEREZERE -

Money lending

Longevity and financial Securities
science advisory and other Property
Year ended 31 December 2023 business business investments investment Total
RE EER EFHR
BE-Z-=f+-A=t-HLEE NEEE SRENER Httz & NERE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TER TER TET TER
Segment revenue 2 56 2
Revenue from external RENREFPZM
customers 31,326 33,663 = = 64,989
Segment results S HER (24,016) 25,354 (1) 1,070 2,407
Reconciliation: ik
Bank interest income fﬁﬁﬂ SRLON 132
Finance costs B 7% B AR (1,936)
Share of loss of joint ventures fE{h & %ﬁ%@ﬁﬁ (79)
Corporate and other unallocated 22 & & £t K D
expenses, net HX 58 4,221
Profit before tax BR Bt A0S A 4,745
Other segment information: Ht2HEH :
Fair value losses on investment & ¥ % 2 AFE
properties BB - - - (1,070) (1,070)
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEENE
assets 6,940 = = = 6,940
Depreciation of plant and BEREETE
equipment 394 - - - 394
Impairment losses under EHREEERERNT \Z
expected credit loss model, ik EE&TE B B
net of reversal = 5,699 = = 5,699
Capital expenditure* N = = = = =
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B 5 R

31 December 2023
—T = =F = el

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. RETER (8
(Continued)

Money lending

Longevity and financial Securities
science advisory and other Property
Year ended 31 December 2022 business business investments investment Total
R& _ fER ke Al ,
e et e B = e = Y e MEXE SRAAER Hiriz & MERE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THTL THTL THL THL THT
Segment revenue 2 k&
Revenue from external RENREE 2 W2
customers 43,920 45,748 5 - 89,668
Segment results DHEE 8,957 30,913 (17) (314) 39,535
Reconciliation: ik
Bank interest income RATH BHA 144
Finance costs B 5 B AR (417)
Share of loss of joint ventures fEfh A & % EE (202)
Corporate and other unallocated 27 & Efth R 5 &
expenses, net FX 58 (29,737)
Profit before tax BR %1 AT R 9,323
Other segment information: H# 5 HEH
Fair value losses on investment R &Y ¥ v AT &
properties 518 = = = 314 314
Depreciation of right-of-use FTREAENE
assets 318389 o = - 3,389
Depreciation of plant and BERSETE
equipment 1,092 o 3 - 1,092
Impairment losses under BHEEBBREALTY
expected credit loss model,  HEFIE - MK AL
net of reversal (1,056) 29,362 = = 28,306
Capital expenditure* EXREX* 1,030 = = = 1,030
@ Capital expenditure consists of additions to plant and equipment and k2 BARYBREAEBERZEARKEYE -
investment properties including assets from the acquisition of assets EhBRKRBEEERBEIWNBERRAMEE
and liabilities or subsidiaries. E e
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRME

31 December 2023
=F ==t Bl ==

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. RESTERHE
(Continued)
Money
lending and
Longevity financial Securities
science advisory and other Property
31 December 2023 business business investments investment Total
RE BER BEHER
== =S = DNEXEKE LBBREL HRE MERE st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
TR TR Ti#R T#% T#
Segment assets PWEE 81,154 353,932 5,847 25,295 466,228
Reconciliation: R -
Corporate and other unallocated NAREMARD B EE
assets 43,026
Total assets AELE 509,254
Segment liabilities AEHEE 26,726 13,574 = = 40,300
Reconciliation: E 3
Tax payable A 16,638
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIE B E 1,238
Corporate and other unallocated AR REMAHE AR
liabilities 20,613
Total liabilities aEEE 78,789
Money
lending and
Longevity financial Securities
science advisory and other Property
31 December 2022 business business investments investment Total
RE EE R ®HF R
—E-_—%+=-A=+-—H MEBXLE SRBAED Hihik & MERE #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Segment assets PHEE 40,992 371,080 11,125 24,411 447,608
Reconciliation: Hk -
Corporate and other unallocated AR R EM KD EEE
assets 37,231
Total assets AELE 484,839
Segment liabilities S HEE 24,174 7,485 = — 31,659
Reconciliation: E 3
Tax payable A 15,531
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIEEE -
Corporate and other unallocated ARAREMRDEERE
liabilities 16,800
Total liabilities aE®E 63,990
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31 December 2023
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Lo BER )

(

A

3

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. 7
(Continued)

R

& & R

Geographical information

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REIREF 2R = FREEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E_=F === —E-=F B oo o

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FHET FET FA& T
Hong Kong BB 15,158 14,657 17,640 12,643
Mainland China HRE A i 49,831 75,011 155,479 151,941
The Island of Saipan ERE - = 12,664 10,685
64,989 89,668 185,783 175,269

The revenue information is based on the location of
customers. The non-current assets are based on the
locations of the assets and exclude equity investments

WHEHATFPREMREKE - ERBE
EREEMEHRRERTEREERR
AVFEEEEMEE KRGS AKRZBEAE

designated at fair value through other comprehensive & o
income.
Information about major customers EBEXTEEFZEH

A summary of revenue earned from each of the individual
customer with its corresponding segment, which
contributed over 10% of the Group's revenue for the year is

KEEREBEFARZI0% A EZED B
BRI EFPzWEHMEHIMT :

set out below:

2023 2022
= = = ===

Money Money

lending and lending and

financial financial

advisory advisory
business Total business Total

EER BE R
SRl B et o S #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET FH& T FA& T
Customer A BFH 8,090 8,090 8,570 8,570
Customer B XEZ - - 6,788 6,788
8,090 8,090 15,358 15,358
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31 December 2023
=F ==t Bl ==

7. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 7. HMWARKRFHE

2023 2022

—E_= e
HK$000 HK$'000
FExT F& T
Bank interest income RITF B Uk A 132 144
Proceeds from bad debts recovery I =] 52 BR /Y P 15 SRR 30,000 -
Exchange gain and (loss), net MEH W K (B 18) F 58 84 (367)
Government grants* I8 7T %8 Bh * - 532
Others H 142 -
30,358 309

The government grants include subsidies received under the

Employee Support Scheme of the Government of Hong Kong

Special Administrative Region. There were no unfulfilled conditions

or contingencies relating to the subsidies.

BEHDERRETBEITHRERNZIMR

REIG BRI Z R - W EAMZEMAZ

RERIGHEHHIAEIR -

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WEMA
2023 2022
—E_= s T2

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET T IT

Interest on other borrowings H b & & F & 590 83
Interest on lease liabilities (note 77(c)) HEBERNBHZE17() 1,346 334
1,936 417
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31 December 2023
e el | el = e =

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

9. BRBLADEGF

AEBEZBRBAEFPRME, (ER)AT

(crediting): B ER:
2023 2022
—E_=% =FE==
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Depreciation of plant and equipment R = & 5% s 3T & 394 658
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 6,940 3,339
Impairment loss of goodwill in EETEBBZREEIE
joint ventures = 433
Loss on withdrawal of joint ventures HE&EREEE = 202
Impairment on/(reversal of impairment of) JEUW & 3 & A ERE
loan and interest receivables Rk (B £ @) 3,269 (11,077)
Impairment on trade receivables JE U BR SRR B 24 9
Impairment on other receivables H b, JiE W 5k I8 R (E 2,406 39,374
Impairment losses under expected credit FEEI{E EEBEL 2
loss model, net of reversal WEBE  NRER 5,699 28,306
Auditor’s remuneration % B Al B & 1,400 1,400
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EERAAX
directors’ and chief executive’s (TEREEEkES
remuneration) (note 17) T A8 Z 5 )
(H7a£11)
— Wages and salaries — TEKk%H® 12,614 9,817
— Pension scheme contribution — RINEET 8 K 517 396
13,131 10,213
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31 December 2023
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10. FTEREAX

2023 2022
—g=-= e
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Current tax: Bl AR
Hong Kong BB
Charge for the year FREZH = o
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") R EATIS
((Z¥mBH])
Charge for the year FREZH 1,608 8,685
1,608 8,685
Deferred tax iR 3E i 18 614 (63)
Total tax charge for the year FARIE X H AR 2,222 8,622

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime in Hong Kong,
the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of the
qualifying corporation in the Group are taxed at 8.25%, and
assessable profits above HK$2 million are taxed at 16.5%.
The assessable profits of corporations in Hong Kong not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will

continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The two-tiered profits tax rates regime is applicable to the

Group for both years.

Under the Law of the EIT and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%

for both years.
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31 December 2023
—T = =F = el

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FIB8BiMAXE)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to FAMSHASTEHGAER R EMEE
the profit/(loss) before taxation per consolidated statement WHEROBRBATEF (EBER)HEK - A8
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as (1
follows:
2023 2022
A —_F-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER F& T
Profit before tax BR A A1 g A 4,745 9,323
Tax at the statutory tax rate RAEBEFEZHIE 3,031 20,203
Expenses not deductible for tax AR H0R A 7,591 1,882
Income not subject for tax BARE KA (4,746) (2,793)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods h /8 i@ 7 HA {5 %% 18 & 18 (5,703) (15,567)
Tax losses not recognised RAERHIEEE 2,049 4,897
Income tax expense for the year FRNFTE TR X 2,222 8,622

TPERSHEBKERRAT 147
ZRC=EER




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B B R e

31 December 2023

=F ==t Bl ==

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 1.
REMUNERATION

EERRETBRAEHMH

REBEERLETRAREBERRGRIEE
FRAEERKRSITHRABHFMAOT

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

148

Salaries, Pension
allowances and scheme Total
Fees  benefits in kind contribution remuneration
23 1.1 RikE 53
re RENEAF #R Fan
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx T#Ex THEx THx
2023: —EC-=EF:
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. YAN Li S = 1,200 18 1,218
Ms. CAO Xie Qiong Exat - 600 18 618
Mr. LI Xiaoshuang = IN- T ¥ - 600 18 618
Mr. YAN Yi Fan B—lEE 1,200 - 18 1,218
Non-executive directors: EHTES:
Dr. HE Yiwu Al hE Bt = = = -
Mr. LYN Changsheng BREEE = = = =
1,200 2,400 72 3,672
Independent non-executive directors: BUEHTES:
Mr. LEE See Barry FREE 240 = = 240
Mr. WANG Ning ITELE 240 = = 240
Prof. HUANG Ci Bo BERAK 240 - - 240
720 - - 720
Total Foy 1,920 2,400 72 4,392
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31 December 2023
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 1. EERERSTHRAEHFMHE)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
Salaries, Pension
allowances and scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind contribution remuneration
- RIS E
Hne RENEF f#HR ZHaE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx THT THx THx
2022: 2= =k
Executive directors: ROTES:
Mr. YAN Li EhvAs - 600 18 618
Ms. CAO Xie Qiong B2t - 600 18 618
Mr. LI Jiuhua (resigned on FhERERZTZZF
8 April 2022) WA\ B EHE) - 749 5 754 !
Mr. LI Xiaoshuang TNERE = 600 18 618
Mr. YAN Yi Fan (appointed on B-MEE(R-B-—F
8 April 2022) NANBEZT) 876 - - 875
Non-executive directors: FUTES:
Ms. CHOI Ngai Wah (resigned on BEELT (W%
3 August 2022) NAZRET) 141 - - 141
Dr. HE Yiwu MIRE B+ - - - -
Mr. LYN Changsheng (appointed on ERBEE(RZT=ZF
1 August 2022) NA—REZE) = - 3 = §
E
1,016 2,549 59 3,624
Independent non-executive directors: BUERTES:
Mr. LEE See Barry (appointed on FRAEE(RZT=ZF
31 March 2022) ZA=+-BEZ{) 181 = = 181
Mr. WANG Ning (appointed on TERE(M-F-F
8 April 2022) mE/\BEEE) 175 - E 175
Prof. HUANG Ci Bo (appointed on BERAR(M-Z=2F
8 April 2022) MANBEZT) 175 - - 175
Mr. TAM Ho Leung Simon (resigned on BERLE(RZE=Z
11 April 2022) MmA+—AEE) 80 = = 80
Ms. WANG Weixia (resigned on FTEERT(RZZ==%F
7 April 2022) MA+HET) 65 = = 65
Mr. Chai Nan (resigned on ErE(RZTZ2FN
7 April 2022) AEABMT) 65 - - 65
741 - - 741
Total st 1,757 2,549 5 4,365
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1.

12.

150

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 1. EERRSTHRAEHFMH®)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were LI TESHEETEUNEERERER
mainly for their services in connection with the RAIRAEB EBAMIREMNRE - £33
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group. HTESTHNeFTZRRNBSZEERAF K
The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above EWBAREEMRHEMRE - L5BL
were mainly for their services as directors of the Company EHTEEMEETEZFERBFEEALA
or its subsidiaries. The independent non-executive directors’ EEMEENRS
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company.
There was no arrangement under which a director or the FRAVETVESI RS THRABERI
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration BEIRERBEEAFMH 2 LEH(ZF=
during the year (2022: Nil). ZE )
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 12. ZEBEHFES
The five highest paid employees during the year included FRNAGERT EEFREMBES(ZF
two directors (2022: two directors), details of whose ZZF - MBEB)EFHFBEE R LEX
remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of the Ha11) e B =T :=8)1
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2022: FARFBEFXZRTHRABEZ&Z= HE
three) highest paid employees who are neither a director EFAZHFMEFBOT
nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:
2023 2022
—_E-= =R = =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA& T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e FUREMER 3,862 2,515
Pension scheme contributions RIS 5 EI R 39 51
3,901 2,566
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31 December 2023
— = =F =t

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) 12. IEBREHEEHE)
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest HFMNTUNTHBE ZEEZNIEES TR
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the AEZESHEEAZEDT

following bands is as follows:

Number of employees

AE
2023 2022
—ZE_-= ===k
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001/ 7T £1,000,000/8 7T 2 3
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ Jt £2,500,000/ JT 1 =
3 3
There were no non-directors and non-chief executive FAMEREEENIFERITHRAEBEZ &
highest paid employees being granted share option during SHEEREHERECSZ_F &)
the year (2022: Nil).
13. DIVIDEND 13. ®RE
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders HE-_Z_=-F+-_A=Z=+—HLEFER
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2023, I £ ) AR F) AR AR ROR S sk & s R
nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the B BREHRURIMEZZRSER
reporting period (2022: Nil). B B(Eem == ) o
14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 14. ERERN (EE)
The calculations of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per BEREAREE(ER), BN BERTY
share are based on: FHEEHE:
2023 2022
—F_-= —F-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Profit/(Loss): wBAL(BE) -
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to BARFTESREARE S
owners of the Company, used in the BFA(BBRIZEBR
basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per ARRHEEAZER
share calculations wm Al (B 1E) 2,313 (904)
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14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)

14. ERER (FE#E) &)

Number of shares

152

g 4
2023 2022
—E-=F —T=-=
(Restated)
(&=E=7)
Shares: g
Weighted average number of FABETERK
ordinary shares in issue during the year hn#E 15 2 455,441,300 425,711,300
Mandatorily convertible notes oR Bl MR IR R 1,091,200,000 1,091,200,000

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year used in
the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per

ARG ESRERNR#EE
B,/ (BR)ZFN
BERITEARRMEFDH

share calculation

1,546,641,300 1,516,911,300

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
have been adjusted for the number of ordinary shares that
will be issued upon the conversion of the mandatorily
convertible notes as the convertible notes were mandatorily
convertible into ordinary shares. Hence the ordinary shares
that will be issued upon conversion are included in the
calculation of basic and dilute earnings per share from the
date the contract is entered into.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
year ended 31 December 2022 for the purpose of basic and
diluted loss per share has been adjusted retrospectively for
share consolidation on the basis that every ten (10) issued
and unissued then existing shares be consolidated into one
(1) consolidated share (the “Consolidated Share(s)”) and
completed on 2 August 2023 (the “Share Consolidation”).

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s share options outstanding since
their assumed exercise would result in a decrease in loss
per share.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
2023 Annual Report
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15. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. BERRE

iR B BB R M R

31 December 2023
—T = =F = el

Furniture,
Leasehold Medical fittings and Motor
31 December 2023 improvements machinery equipment Vehicles Total
HENF B £8
== sl £ BREM &L AE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT THERT THERT
At 1 January 2023 R-——ZE-=%#—Hf—R8:
Cost PR 1,030 815 864 62 2,1M
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (103) (279) (808) (62) (1,252)
Net carrying amount REFE 927 536 56 - 1,519
At 1 January 2023, net of RZZE_=%f-H—-8" =
accumulated depreciation BMBRERTE 927 536 56 - 1,519 f
Depreciation provided during FRRTE
the year (206) (163) (25) - (394)
At 31 December 2023, net i —
of accumulated depreciation r=ESr=0 -
BHKZATE 721 373 31 - 1125
At 31 December 2023: RZZE=-=F
T= A==
Cost B A 1,030 815 864 62 2,171
Accumulated depreciation BitiE (309) (442) (833) (62) (1,646)
Net carrying amount R F 721 373 31 - 1,125
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15. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. BMERRE (&)

154

Furniture,
Leasehold Medical fittings and Motor
31 December 2022 improvements machinery equipment Vehicles Total
HEWME B KB
—E--_#+-A=t-H K& BERM R AE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TET TAET THT FTET
At 31 December 2021 and R-ZB-—%
at 1 January 2022: TZHAET=BER
=BG f=F
Cost A = 815 1,769 1,142 3,726
Accumulated depreciation ZME = (116) (1,529) (429) (2,074)
Net carrying amount REFE = 699 240 713 1,652
At 1 January 2022, net of R-_E-_—F—F—H"
accumulated depreciation BMBREHTE = 699 240 713 1,652
Additions NE 1,030 - = = 1,030
Depreciation provided during FRFRITE
the year (103) (163) (102) (290) (658)
Written off B = = (74) (381) (455)
Exchange realignment B &, 38 & = - (8) (42) (50)
At 31 December 2022, net R=ZZ==
of accumulated depreciation T=HEF=FH -
BMRRFE 927 536 56 = 1,619
At 31 December 2022: R-ZZ-—F
T=H=ET=F
Cost BA 1,030 815 864 62 2,771
Accumulated depreciation 25t E (103) (279) (808) (62) (1,252)
Net carrying amount REFE 927 536 56 = 1,619

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. BEWE
2023 2022
—E=-= I —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Carrying amount at 1 January iR — 5| — Zﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁ 24,411 26,001
Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments AFEFHZBUWZ (EE)
H 1,070 (314)
Exchange realignment PE i 58 (186) (1,276)
Carrying amount at 31 December = =—=1EZ
fRE S 25,295 24,411
Note: As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group's investment Kt RZE-_=FR-_ZF-_—_F+=-A=+—8"

properties consist of two commercial properties, and one residential
property in Mainland China and one leasehold land in the Island of
Saipan. The directors of the Company have determined that the
investment properties consist of three classes of assets, i.e.
residential properties, commercial properties and leasehold land,
based on the nature, characteristics and risks of each property.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
Company has discovered that the leasehold interest of the
Property was assigned by its indirect subsidiary Keen State
Global (CNMI), LLC (“Keen State Global Saipan”) to AC
Pacific Development, LLC and Katarina Saipan 1, LLC
pursuant to an Lease assignment dated 28 August 2022,
being recorded and executed under File No0:22-1362 at
Commonwealth Recorder’s, Saipan (“Lease Assignment”)
without any knowledge and authority of Zhong Ji, the
ultimate holding company of Keen State Global Saipan.

On March 2023, the Company conduct internal enquiries
including with ex-company internal legal counsel and ex-
Chairman whom remained until end of March 2023 as the
sole director of Keen State Global Limited BVI, parent
holding of Keen State Global Saipan.

AEBZBRENERELRN T REAMZWIAR
EMER-—BEEMEARCRERS 218
HELH ARFERET  ERBTRREY
XzUE FBEREAR REVEEBE=EZ
ERR - BEEWE MEDEREELH -

HE_T-_=FRZZFE-__F+ZA=+
—ALEFE ARAZEHEEFREZENB AT
Keen State Global (CNMI), LLC ([Keen
State Global Saipan)) B EHH A2 —F —
—FNAZH N\ AN EE RS ZMEN
Tl E #2583 TAC Pacific Development,
LLC X Katarina Saipan 1, LLC * Z &
i E I B A B R BE (Commonwealth
Recorder’s, Saipan) ([ € & 2 |) $22-
1362 X T etk R HE L HEEZE -
Keen State Global Saipan #J & %X 2 J& A &)
REWTAE - INERE -

RZZBZ=F=Hf ' ARR#ETABER -
BRERMAAGRANBEEZEMRANER(E
E-F = =F= BIE{1AKeen State Global
L|m|ted BVI (Keen State Global SaipanZ

RENDZME—FR)ETHNIER °

EESHEREARAS 155
—Eo=EFR




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VAN
RA

B 75 AR T R

31 December 2023
=F ==t Bl ==

16.

156

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

All these internal enquiries confirmed none of Company
staffs or directors or ex-directors have effectuated any
changes to this unlawful and unauthorized assignment of
leasehold interest. At same times, Hong Kong and Saipan
law firm were engaged in conduct extensive company and
property search on Keen State Global Saipan, has revealed
and reported in conclusion:

(i) without meeting filed by Keen State Global Saipan with
Department of Commerce on 15 August 2022
removal of ZHENG Dong Ting as director of Keen
State Global and appointed Mr. CHI Howyo as new
director; whereby the said ZHENG Dong Ting was
signing as the director of Sole member, Keen State
Global BVI, such action and consent was unlawful and
unauthorized (“First Forged Consent”) because Mr.
ZHENG was not sole director of sole member Keen
State Global Limited BVI and has no authority to
appoint Mr. CHI Howyo as director of Keen State
Global Saipan to execute any sale.

(i) without meeting filed by Keen State Global Saipan with
Department of Commerce on 15 August 2022, by Mr.
CHI in connection with the sale of its interest in the
Property. (“Second Forged Consent”).

This CHI Howyo purported to signed on behalf of the sole
member of Keen State Global Saipan. Yet, in the signature
section the sole member is referred to as “Keen State
Global (CNMI) LLC" and the said Howyo CHI was signing
on behalf of the sole member.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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FTEZEANDERNOER  AAAIE Tk
EENNESHMELS N EIEERRERE
MEERERERELEMER - HILF
B BERENSEMEHFT{EKeen State
Global Saipan# 77 7T E 2 M QA &k 8 E &
R WHEERTEBERRS:

(i)  Keen State Global Saipani R =& = —
FENATHBREREFH PIRIAKRL
TZRENXH RAE @ LK
ZHENG Dong Ting 7 Keen State
Global #) & %= B 7%+ ¥t % £ CHI
Howyo St £ A¥TE £ B it - Lt
ZHENG Dong TinJ5AME— 5k B A &)
Keen State Global BVIZEE=H & 7 %
E  ZTHRREEBIEERREERE
([BE—tmHEEREE]) ' ARBZHENG
% A& 37 3E M — K B 2 Al Keen  State
Global Limited BVIKI M —ZE = - IR
# Z& {E£ CHI Howyo 5t 4 A Keen State
Global SaipanZE ZE A ITEMHE -

(i)  Keen State Global Saipani A =ZF = —
FN\ A+ B R 5B % B iR AR A
ERRAENXH  ATABHEHEER
ZWEER(BE-HRERE

gD

CHI Howyoltt AE 8 X & Keen State Global
Saipan W ME—K B AR EE o A £5F
ZEy 0 ME—RK B A 17 A [Keen State
Global (CNMI) LLC] - 18 EiftHowyo CHIJ)
REE—KERFEE -



16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The said ZHENG Dong Ting and Howyo CHI have never
been known to ZhongJi and other members of the
subsidiaries of ZhongdJi. Such Lease Assignment was
therefore a document forged by the alleged director of Keen
State Global Saipan, who was never lawfully and properly
appointed as director of Keen State Global Saipan. The First
Forged Consent and the Second Consent are also forged as
the Signatory on behalf of Keen State Global BVI has no
capacity to act for Keen State Global BVI, thereby this
transfer was unlawful and unauthorized transaction.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
has authorized the Saipan law firm commence legal actions
for invalidate this forged Lease Assignment, recover
possession of leasehold interest, trace the consideration
provided by the assignees under the Lease Assignment;
rectify the record of Keen State Global Saipan filed with
Department of Commerce; and report the case on behalf of
ZhongJi to the Police of Saipan or other appropriate
authority. Up to the date of the approved consolidated
financial statements, the Saipan law firm has provided legal
action plan to the Group and commenced the legal actions.

As at 31 December 2023, in view of director of the
Company, the Group still have the ownership of the
investment properties was still valid.

16.
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BREWE®E)

£t ZHENG Dong Ting & Howyo CHIfE &
ARENPENRBAREMK ST -
It - % M & #& & J) Keen State Global
Saipan W FTBESHENXH - ZESK
BENEE i EZ T AKeen State Global
Saipan M EE - E— M REREEREZ
MAEERBHE - AR KKeen State
Global BVIH % & A I £ 88 1 X & Keen
State Global BVITTE + Ak % % B 3%
MAERERENRS -

HE_ZT_=F+_A=+—HLEFE =&
ARRAIEREZENESEMELEMEREER
A AEZEENHEE EEY - WEH
ERZNEER  BEMIEABRERESR
ZIRME AR E 4 1EKeen State Global
SaipanfE =R BB R 8 R K
PEMERSZE K EMMBEIDPPIHRE -
HEMESREAGPKRREE  EHRSEAM
EXERNASBRERREZTHAELE
FERITH o

NR-TE-—=F+=-H=+-—H8 ' AAF=ES
RE AEEHKREDNENEAREDAS
2 o
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16.

158

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group's investment properties in Mainland China and
Island of Saipan were revalued on 31 December 2023
based on valuations performed by Prism Advisory Limited,
an independent professionally qualified valuer. The
properties in Mainland China were revalued at
RMB11,480,000 (equivalent to HK$12,631,000) (2022:
RMB12,300,000 (equivalent to HK$13,725,000)) and the
leasehold land in the Island of Saipan was revalued at
USD1,624,000 (equivalent to HK$12,664,000) (2022:
USD1,370,000 (equivalent to HK$10,686,000)). Each vyear,
the Group’s management decide, to appoint which external
valuers to be responsible for the external valuation of the
Group's properties. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group's
management has discussion with the valuers on the
valuation assumptions and valuation result when the
valuations are performed for financial reporting purpose.

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties are as
follows:

16.

BREWEE)

=B == == » A E
B A R EIRS 2% E Y EE T EPrism
Advisory Limited (B B & &KL EE)
T ZEEEG LR PEA 2 WET
#Z A R #11,480,0007T (48 & 712,631,000
BILI(ZEZZF : AR %12,300,0007T
(#8%5 5813,725,0007 70) ) = fly © M AL 1A =
B 2 FAE +#h J53%1,624,000%E T (FHE R
12,664,000/ JL)(=Z & = = 4 : 1,370,000
% 7t (48 2 110,686,000/ JT)) B 14 °
FOAEBECZEBEBREZEIINEGBEM
BEETAEBYE 2 EE - KER
EREMBNH BE BUMEEL#
BEEEZE - AFECEEED EGHEM
AmAVERREMNETHER ZHER
& KA E &

AEEREMEZFHBWT

Attributable
interest of the

Location Use Tenure Group
EERAEE

B A ZizR: 2w

Units 101 and 102, Block 7, No. 18, Chengshousi Commercial Medium term lease 100%
Middle Road, Fengtai District, Beijing City, Mainland
China

FEIERTEARKEFTRISHIREIE101KX102 HHE THEE

Unit 604, Block 33, Shiyuan Southern District, Shunyi  Residential  Long term lease 100%
District, Beijing City, Mainland China

FREE R ES = A B 335 E6/E 158 T604 (E= RHEIHE

Tract Numbers 22845-6 located in Capitol Hill, the Residential  Medium term lease 100%

Island of Saipan
fiZ 7 Capitol Hill, the Island of SaipanZ *
Hh 3R 4 5% 22845-6

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B 5 R

31 December 2023
—T = =F = el

REWME®
[FEEBR

TRETASEKREMECLATEFTEE
A

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2023 using

R=B-=#+-A=t+-HERTIEEZAVEIE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
bt EXTHE EXRTTEER
5 RE BWAEE BAHE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E—4) (E=8) (E=4) @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Recurring fair value REMATEAE:
measurement for:
Commercial properties HENE = - 7,823 7,823
Residential property FEEME = - 4,808 4,808
Leasehold land HELi - - 12,664 12,664
= = 25,295 25,295
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2022 using
RZBEZZF+ZA=+-HBERATIHBEEZATEHE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
B ERABE EATTHER
s E HAZE BARR
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E—#) (E=&) (B=&) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT TET TEL THET
Recurring fair value BEMATFEAEZ:
measurement for:
Commercial properties EEXES = - 9,184 9,184
Residential property FEENE = = 4,542 4,542
Leasehold land MELH = = 10,685 10,685
= = 24,411 24,411

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of
Level 3.

HE-_ZT-_=—FRk=-_F-_—_F+=-A=+
—BLFE AVFEFEF—REF_L
2EWESER  IESASERE=F -
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. BEWHE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AEEERE)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised RAFEFEERE=ZBRNI>E 2 AF¥E
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: ATEH R
Commercial Residential Leasehold
properties property land Total
BENE EEyE HE L @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THET THEL THET
Carrying amount at R-ZE=--%—H—H
1 January 2022 zﬁﬁﬁégﬁ 8,773 4,478 12,750 26,001
Net loss from fair value REEERERZATE
adjustment recognised in RAEZEBFHE
consolidated profit or loss 1,261 490 (2,065) (314)
Exchange realignment P 38 B (850) (426) = (1,276)
Carrying amount at NS ===
31 December 2022 and =t+t—-BR-_B-_=%F
1 January 2023 —A-BzEEEHE 9,184 4,542 10,685 24,41
Net loss from fair value REEEEERZATE
adjustment recognised in RAEZEBFSE
consolidated profit or loss (1,241) 332 1,979 1,070
Exchange realignment I (120) (66) - (186)
Carrying amount at RZZE-_=F+_4
31 December 2023 =t-HBzHRALHE 7,823 4,808 12,664 25,295
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. BEWE(E)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AFEEERE)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and KEMEGREMAGBERNTR EZH A

the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: BEENT

Range or
Investment properties Valuation Significant weighted Relationship of
held by the Group techniques unobservable inputs average input to fair value
HEN wWAHRE

REERMBEREDE i 18 B fi BANAE R A BB MHEFE EATEZBEER

Units 101 and 102, Block 7, Sales comparison Estimated market price 38,408- The higher the
No. 18, Chengshousi method per square meter 47,410 market price, the
Middle Road, Fengtai (RMB) (2022: higher the fair
District, Beijing City, 44,000— value
Mainland China 60,814)

FEIERTERRE 84 &t BUE HEBFERATE 38,408- MEHE ~ATE
X 58 <F 51855 755 12 (AR®) 47,410 H®E
1/E101 52102 (=

44,000-
60,814)

Unit 604, Block 33, Sales comparison Estimated market price 25,928- The higher the
Shiyuan Southern District, method per square meter 26,098 market price, the
Shunyi District, Beijing (RMB) (2022: higher the fair
City, Mainland China 27,600- value

30,433)

B R B & = iH & L BUX et B FERATE 25,928- MEMS H AFE
AEFER33E (AR®) 26,098 #&
6/E1%¥ 1604 (ZE - —4F:

27,600—
30,433)

Tract Number 22845-6 Sales comparison Estimated market price 222-283 The higher the
located in Capitol Hill, method per square meter (2022: market price, the
the Island of Saipan (US$S) 199-218) higher the fair

value

{iZ 7 Capitol Hill, the Island #5& kb &% EErBER AT E 222-283 MEME  AF¥E
of Saipan Z i 5% 47 5% (E7T) (ZFEZZF: e
22845-6 199-218)

Fair value of the Group's investment properties are REBEREMEZAFE—RERBEUY

generally derived using comparison approach based on X¥CMBRELREBNALEBES/E °

market comparables of similar properties.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. REWHE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AEEERE)
The sales comparison method is adopted by making HELBOEDBEBRAHRENFEATE
reference to comparable market transactions in the R2Z0ELBRMBERSGEKA - ZAET
assessment of the fair value of the investment properties. LUMERGBEECEMNRREEEZRE
The approach rests on the wide acceptance of the market e ITHRELEERXRZAH BEERER
transactions as the best indicator and pre-supposes that FARBURNNERAEREZE  HETSER
evidence of relevant transactions in the market place can be SBRBAERAREUDE -
extrapolated to similar properties, subject to allowances for
variable factors, including the transaction date, level of
floor, environmental atmosphere, size of apartment and etc.
LEASES 17. HE
The Group as a lessee KEBEREABEA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of office AEBERSERAYEENIEBIEHEE
property units which generally have lease terms of 2-3 B4 HH—RAE2-3F - —KRMs ' A%
years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and EHRHTERAEBUAINEZERSHME
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. EEE -
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) RAEEZE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use AEEFRAEEEZC KA R E
assets and the movements are as follows: BT
2023 2022
=2ii=2= == =k
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER F& T
At 1 January ®n—B—H 1,265 4,832
Additions NE 16,441 =
Depreciation e (6,940) (3,550)
Exchange realignment bE W 38 & (98) (17)
At 31 December RTr=AZ=ErF=E 10,668 1,265

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
2023 Annual Report



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr B B S HR MY

31 December 2023
—T = =F = el

17. LEASES (Continued) 17. HEW®)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) rEBEREABAE)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEGRE
2023 2022
=R —T=-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FE& T
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEEBE:
Within one year —F A 6,978 1,472
Within a period of more than one —FUEENBBMRE
year but not more than two years 2 HAfE A 4,209 &
11,187 1,472
Less: Amount due for settlement with J& : i B EE |
12 months shown under Fr 1218 A A 2 5
current liabilities 41 B IR (6,978) (1,472)
Amount due for settlement after 12 FERFHABE
months shown under non-current Fr R 1218 A 1% 2| HA
liabilities &R RE 4,209 =
The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease HERANHEaBEESEE%XE9.18
liabilities range from 9.18% (2022: 11.8%). BE(ZZEZ=F:118E) -
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17. LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in relation to leases are as follows:

17. &)

AEBEZEBAGE)

(c) REERGFAEaRERAZESEN

T:

2023 2022

=REEaE —EE = —eE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET F &I

Interest on lease liabilities HEAEBEF A 1,346 334

(d) Total cash flow for leases

(d) HEHRLRHEE

Total cash outflow for included in the SAGEREeERERZHEERESR
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: H@gENT:
2023 2022
—E_= =EET =

HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within operating activities KETEBA 1,346 334
Within financing activities BEEBA 6,628 3,696
7,974 4,030
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18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. REELE R
2023 2022
Sl = = ks T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Share of net assets EHEFEEE = 80
Goodwill on acquisition W B B 2 P = -
= 80
The Group's loan and interest receivable balances due from AEERKEELEZEREFBEHRN
the joint ventures are disclosed in note 21 to the AP BRERWF21HEE -
consolidated financial statements.
Particulars of the Group's joint ventures are as follows: AEEEELEZFBOT:
Place of
Particulars of issued registration and Percentage of
Name shares held business ownership interest Principal activities
=g FBERTRAFEE ZBRREEHE RERERFIE FEEK
2023 2022
—B-=F Z—ZE-—f&F
Chongging Juguan Business RMB1,020,000  PRC/ 5l 51* Business Information
Information Consulting Co., Limited Mainland China Consulting
(“Chongqing Juquan”)*
ERERABEESBAERAA AR #1,020,000t  REREA BHELSA
((EEER] "
Wuxi Juguan Outsourcing Service RMB1,020,000 PRC/ 51* 51* Business Information
Co., Limited (“"Wuxi Juquan”)* Mainland China Consulting
EHERNBRBERAR AR ¥1,020,000t  FEHE R 575 15 B 7
(MEspER]) "
The above investments are indirectly held by the Company. RAAGIREERE FMKRSE -
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of
loss of a joint venture, Chongging Juquan because the
share of loss of the joint venture exceeded the Group’s
interest in that joint venture and the Group has no
obligation to take up further losses. The amount of the
Group’s unrecognised share of loss of this joint venture for
the current year and cumulatively were of approximately
HK$1,028,000 (2022: approximately HK$1,028,000) and
HK$3,155,000 (2022: approximately HK$3,155,000),
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the goodwill of
joint venture of approximately HK$433,000 was impaired
due to poor performance of Wuxi Juquan.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the investment
in Mailyard Health Technology was withdraw and the loss
of withdrawal in joint venture was of approximately
HK$202,000 was recognised in the consolidated income
statements.

The Group’s joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method.

Note: Tian Xing Tianjin was deregistered on 6 September 2021.

# The English name of the Chinese entitle is translation of the Chinese
name and is included herein for identification purpose only.

b Under the joint venture agreement, none of the joint venture partners
has unilateral control over the economic activities of Chongging
Juquan, Wuxi Juquan, Tian Xing Tianjin and Mailyard Health
Technology and hence, the Group's interest is accounted for as joint
ventures.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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18. REELE RS (H)

AEBERIBREELEEECXEES
RZEE RAABEZAELEZER
BBAEERZEELEZERD MAS
BUrEESBEmE—PEE AEBEARF
EREBMZAERELRZALCLEBERES
D RI4) 51,028,000 T(ZTE-—F: 4
1,028,000 7T ) %.3,155,000/8 L (=T = —
£ 493,155,000 7T) °

BE = —k = B =r—BIEEEE
HREGERSRBERE G0 EHER

{8 #7433,0007 JT °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B 5 R

31 December 2023
—T = =F = el

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 18. R—BEELEZEREE
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TERBINEEER  BHERTRKTRER
information of Chongaing Juquan, Wuxi Juguan, Tian Xing TRRERBRECUBEN (BERmES
Tianjin and Mailyard Health Technology, adjusted for any ARREEFABEYHEERMBRE KA
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the REEEKR) :
carrying amount in the financial statements:
Mailyard
Tian Xing Health
Chongging Juquan Wuxi Juquan Tianjin  Technology
iER
EFER ERER RITRE BENH
2023 2022 2023 2022 2022 2022
el DS Tods —uE SLIS =k Shde SdE —od= S phde o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET THT AT AT AT
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 2,113 2,143 1,430 1,450 = =
Other current assets HihRBEE 10,908 11,063 7,957 9,599 - =
Total current assets MBEELE 13,021 13,206 9,387 11,049 - -
Non-current assets ERBEE 65 65 35 - = =
Goodwill on acquisition of the KEBAL ¥R
joint ventures HE - - - = = =
Current liabilities mEaE (20,766) (21,0861) (9,422) (10,893) = -
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfERR)/EERE (7,680) (7,789) 0 156 = =
Net (liabilities)/assets, (BfERE)/BE
excluding goodwill FE O TERERE (7,680) (7,789) 0 156 - -
Reconciliation to the Group's  EAEERA L E
interest in the joint venture: 2R
Proportion of the Group's AEEHEFEL
ownership 51% 51% 51% 51% 51% 30%
Group's share of net assets of ANEBEEAELE
the joint venture BEFE - = - 80 - -
Share of net assets included in FFAREHRELEZ
carrying amount of the BEFEE
investment = - - 80 - =
Revenue W & = = = = = =
Tax IR = = = = = .
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FAEERZHEBELAE
loss for the year = (2,259) - (1,137) - -
Dividends paid to the Group ENAEERE = r = = - =
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19.

20.

168

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

19.

BRATEHZEBHMZEREAKRZ
TREE

2023 2022
el S
HK$°’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAETT
Listed equity investments, at fair value EARAKRE  RZATFE 5,847 9,859

The above equity investments are investments in
companies listed on the Stock Exchange and were
irrevocably designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

During the vyear, Group sold certain of its equity
investments as these investments no longer coincided with
the Group's investment strategy. The fair value on the
dates of sale was HK$209,000 (2022: HK$14,102,000) and
accumulated loss recognised in other comprehensive gain of
HK$2,272,000 (2022: HK$11,365,000) was transferred to

HRASER ERREBRA EMAFZ K
ARESREMERE  MHRFERESTA
BEEEREAFEEBEMEEK S
N

FRN AEEBLERTRAKE  FAA
ZEBERETEHFAAEE 2 RERE o
REEEHZAFEA/2090008 T(ZF
114,102,000 L) - MAEMLEE
EiEER 2 25t 252,272,000 T (=&
11,365,000 L) EEE = 2515

accumulated losses. 8 o
INVENTORIES 20. 78
2023 2022
SEEAEE i T S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Health and medical products fi B & B B E
— Finished goods — 2K @ 2,523 3,809
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21.

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 21. EWEREFE
2023 2022
—_=E_= = T
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T IT
Non-current R
Loan and interest receivables B E K KA B
— corporate loans — EERK 157,823 150,434
Loan and interest receivables B E K EF B
— personal loans — BAER = =
157,823 150,434
Less: Impairment AR E
— Stage 1 — BEx1 = =
— Stage 2 — EER2 (14,975) (12,299)
— Stage 3 — FEERS3 = =
142,848 138,135
Current E
Loan and interest receivables U E K KA B
— corporate loans — EEX 422,070 421,222
Loan and interest receivables B E K KEF B
— personal loans — BAER 239,562 247,747
661,632 668,969
Less: Impairment AR E
— Stage 1 — BER1 = =
— Stage 2 = [ %2 (4,556) (3,729)
— Stage 3 — FEER3 (622,192) (631,086)
34,884 34,154
177,732 172,289
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21.

170

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The terms of loans entered with its customers are on
credit. The credit period is generally within four years,
extension can be made after monitoring assessment and
further creditworthiness analysis on the debtors reviewed
by senior management. The loan receivables carried interest
at fixed interest rate ranging from 6%-18% (2022: 6% to
18%) per annum. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group held
collateral or other credit enhancements over certain of its
loan and interest receivable balances. Please refer to note
39 for concentration of credit risk.

The Group's loans and interest receivable, which arise from
the money lending business under corporate and personal
borrowers loan business model of providing corporate and
personal loans in PRC and Hong Kong and the carrying
amounts approximate their fair values.

Except for loan and interest receivables of HK$654,459,000
(2022: HK$660,634,000) which are unsecured, loan and
interest receivables are secured by collateral provided by
customers, bear interest and are repayable with fixed
terms.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, nil amount of
loan and interest receivables have been written-off (2022:
Nil).

Included in the Group's loan and interest receivables are
amounts due from the Group’s joint ventures of net
carrying amount of HK$27,520,000 (2022: HK$25,230,000),
which are unsecured, bearing interest at 12% (2022: 12%)
per annum and repayable in between 2024 to 2025.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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21.

BHRERRME @

REBHREFIIVZERGERATE - &
HERBEANE  SoREEBUHES
ANEBETERTFERE-— T EAIMENE
K- -BUREFRZEAEFANEN T6EE18E
(CZE-—F:6EZI18E) - AEEH N
HAWB 2 BKRGBHEFIHREEE TS
LEEEeTHENARES  c AEE R
ETRKEREF B EHiTEEFRNE
iz EnaatEiE o 52 BEKE39 © AT R
EERBEPZFHS -

AEENEREREMNEXRBETERE
BREERREAERAEREFE LR H#
CERBEAEFNEEXR  FEERHE
NFEMEE -

Br 654,459,000/ JL(= T — = #F:
660,634,000/8 70) MEWE R & F 8 & &
WIFIN  BIWEREF EHUARFIRHERN

myEs =ea s ShEae s B =0 e Sl [EEslER g
EREWEREFECEEME (==
FE)o

AEBREREZFREFEFBIERERKAER
A& ERIE - BREMEFEA27520,000%5
T (=T = —4 : 25,230,000/ 7T) * BEE
HREFNERE(ZE - —F:128) &t
B WHERZEZNEE-_T-_RFHEHE -



21.

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:
As at 31 December 2023, the balances included:

(i) Loan and interest receivables amounting to HK$117,362,000 (31
December 2022: HK$112,903,000), which are secured by share
charge of borrowers, carried at fixed interest rate at 6% (31
December 2022 6%) per annum;

(ii) Loan and interest receivables with net carrying amount of
approximately HK$1,457,000 (31 December 2022: HK$1,304,000),
which are secured by financial assets, carried at fixed interest rate
at 15.6% (31 December 2022 15.6%) per annum;

(iii) Loan and interest receivables amounting to HK$51,249,000 (31
December 2022 HK$58,125,000), which are unsecured, carried at
fixed interest rate ranging from 6% to 15% (31 December 2022:
6% to 15%) per annum.

21.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr B B S HR MY

31 December 2023
—T = =F = el

BERERRIE(E)
Mt -
R-ZTE-_=ZF+-A=+—HB &4 8

() BREREFEEFEHH117,362,000% (=
T-—#+-H=+—H :112,903,000%& 7T)
ERAZBRGAZEERR  BEFHNER6
B(ZZE-——F+-A=+—R:68) :

(1) FE W B R R A B AR EFE 491,457,000 7T (=
T —&F+-_HA=+—H:1,304,000%T) * K
TREEFER BEFMNERILEE(ZFT=
—F+=-HA=+—HB:1656E) :

(lny  EWREFRF S $5EAE51,249,0008 T (=T =
—&#+=-HA=+—H:58,125,000/ T) ' & &
BR - BEFHNENTERBE(ZT=ZF
+=—A=+—HB: N F6EEILE) -
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21. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. BWEREF B (&)

The breakdown of the gross loan and interest receivables RAARBEERERELE SN ERER K
by loan type as of the dates indicated is as follows: MEEREBAADT

As at 31 December

INT=E=ETr=E
2023 2022
S = —ETE-—F
Number Number
of loan of loan
accounts HK$'000 % accounts HK$'000 %
B B®
REH FET % BRPE & T3 %
Corporate Loans TEER 9 579,893 71 9 571,657 70
Personal Loans &8 AE 5 239,562 29 5 247746 30
Total 48 5t 14 819,455 100.0 14 819,403 100.0
The table below set out the average loan size of our loan TREFHEE—_E-_=FER T - —F+
product during the year ended 31 December 2023 and “A=+—BILHEFEEREMERERNTY
2022: BREE:

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—BLEE

2023 2022

—_E_-= —_=EF- -
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET F& T
Corporate Loans TEER 64,433 63,517
Personal Loans & ANE R 47,912 49,549
Overall 45 58,533 58,528
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LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. BWE R R F E (&)

TEBUBE T _=FKF T - —_F+
“— A=+ HUEFERDRAAEEHE :

The table below summarizes the range of interest rates that
charged during the year ended 31 December 2023 and
2022:

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1+t—HLEE

2023 2022
-t = . ——
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FE T
Corporate Loans TtEER 6% to 18% 6% to 18%
6% £18% 6% 2£18%
Personal Loans & A E & 10% to 15% 10% to 15%
10% £15% 10% £15%
Overall Bt 6% to 18% 6% to 18%

6% £18%

6% £18%

An ageing analysis of loan and interest receivables based

RUREFEHNERIBANKEIHTNOT :

on maturity date is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—-HLEE

2023 2022
—E_=F R —

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET & T

Corporate Loans TEEX
Current B &1 983 667
1-180 days 1-180K~ 2,887 1,999
181-365 days 181-365K 2,919 1,998
Over 365 days 366K M £ 573,104 566,993
579,893 571,657

Personal Loans BAERK
Current BN EA - -
1-180 days 1-180% — £
181-365 days 181-365K = -
Over 365 days 366K M £ 239,562 247,746
239,562 247,746
819,455 819,403
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21. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. BWE R R F E (&)
ERPTR] M B R e 2 B tA B & &t A

BURAELEBHENAGRER  BRE
REMERBEMRZRE DM

An ageing analysis of the loan and interest receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the
commencement of loan agreement entered and the date of
interest income accrued, and net of provisions, is as
follows:

2023 2022

—E=-= S S e
HK$’000 HK$'000
TE T FH& T
Within 30 days 30K A 983 667
31-90 days 31E90K 2,887 1,999
91-180 days 912180k 2,919 1,998
181-365 days 181 £ 365K 4,790 3,829
Over 365 days 365K A & 166,153 164,296
177,732 172,289

AEBEA—RAEUREABHREES
BAERKEREME - A EEER
B R AR DA SRR IR G 0B - 1R 2 HITEHA(E
EEEREE -

The Group applies the general approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a 12-month basis ECL
for loan and interest receivables. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since origination,
the allowances will be based on the lifetime ECL.

RUEERRMEBREBERER 2E8HM

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of

loan and interest receivables are as follows: N

2023 2022
—_=E_= = Sl

HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FE T
At beginning of year =) 647,114 636,740
Impairment losses, net (note 9) WIEBEFEW L) 3,269 (11,077)
Exchange realignment PE W 3 2 (8,660) 21,451
At end of year RER 641,723 647,114
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21.

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The table below shows the credit quality and maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's internal credit
rating system and period-end stage classification. The
amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B 5 R

31 December 2023
—T = =F = el

21. ERERERE )
TRITERAEEAREEFTRRELGR

HARABBRIBEZEEERERRAEER
RikA - 2SR ARMEREARE -

12-month ECLs

31 December 2023
=®—_=%+=A=+—H
Lifetime ECLs

128 B 5
FEEER HEHEERFRE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1BE R F2M B E3MEER @Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET TET FERT
Loan and interest receivables J& U & X &l &
Performing (good) (i) & %4 (R 1F) (i) = = - -
Performing (bad) (ii) B4 (TR (i) = 188,328 = 188,328
Non-performing (iii) & 49 (ii) - - 631,127 631,127
Total Bt = 188,328 631,127 819,455
31 December 2022
—E__f+-_H=+—H
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 78 B
EEEIE >HBBHEEEIE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1PE & FE2MER FEIME & #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FA T FA& T FAT
Loan and interest receivables & W E X K& 7 8
Performing (good) (i) B H (R 4F) () = = = =
Performing (bad) (i) B# (T R) (i) = 188,445 - 188,445
Non-performing (iii) & £ (iii) = = 630,915 630,915
Total By = 188,445 630,915 819,360
(i) Performing (good) (i) refer to exposures which credit risk has not (i) BA(RE) (VEFEHZEERRBE Y6 ER

increased significantly since initial recognition.

(ii) Performing loans (bad) refer to exposures which credit risk has
increased significantly.

(iii) Non-performing loans refer to exposures with objective evidence of
impairment.

LAY B E LT o

(il RBHEFRAR)IEFEHSZEERREREL
FT.

(i) TEHAEFELHEZBREEERZAR -
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LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

21.

176

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and
the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to loan and
interest receivables is as follows:

21. EWERKFE (&)

EIE ARG

Bz HERRESR

BzaMARBBEEEER
EBEERENT:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tota
1M R H2MER HIRER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHB T F& T F& T FHE T
At 1 January 2022 [y —
—A—H 141,521 52,910 660,173 854,604
New 3% = 14,641 = 14,641
Derecognised (excluding BRIEER(TBE
write-off) 1 8H) = = (37,217) (37,217)
Transfer to Stage 2 i EoMRER (135,034) 135,034 - =
Transfer to Stage 3 RS EIMEER = (17,715) 17,715 -
Exchange realignment & 5 3 & (6,487) (3,425) (2,756) (12,668)
At 31 December 2022 RZTZ=F
and 1 January 2023 FT=H=+—=18
RZTZ=F
—F =g = 181,445 637,915 819,360
New Foil - 11,659 - 11,659
Repayment Eg - - (1,551) (1,551)
Exchange realignment DEE 56, 5 B - (4,776) (5,237) (10,013)
At 31 December 2023 RZE-_=F
T=H=EF=E = 188,328 631,127 819,455
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21.

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group determines the provision for ECL by exercising
significant judgements to evaluate the collectability from
individual loan and interest receivables after taking into
account their creditworthiness, whether they have financial
difficulties, experience of default or delinquency in interest
or principal payment, ageing analysis and forecast of future
events and economic conditions which may impact the

recoverability of loan and interest receivables.

Movements in allowance for ECL are as follows:

21.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B 5 R

31 December 2023
e el | el = e =

EWERRF L (&)

AEEEREAHBETRYEEBRER
- FHEE B B E R RS 2 AT E 1
ETFALEGE ETEYVBRE - E
HWEHRANEBH RS NRER - Rk DT
VA B #1788 2 2 B W B 5% e A BRI W | 1
ZAREHEREEBR B -

BHMEEERBENEFHNT

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FE1PE R F2M R H3ME ER @E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FAET FAT
At 1 January 2022 REEE =
—JEl— 2,277 2,618 631,845 636,740
Net charge of the A L F R
impairment = 25,011 = 25,011
Derecognised BUH & R = = (36,088) (36,088)
Transfer to Stage 2 B S FORKER (2,830) 2,830 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 RS EIRE = (16,028) 16,028 -
Exchange realignment b 5, 38 & 553 4,608 16,290 21,451
At 31 December 2022 R=F==
and 1 January 2023 ==
R_ZBZ=%F
=JEl=g o 19,039 628,075 647,114
Net charge of the A L F R
impairment = 1,995 1,274 3,269
Derecognised BUH #E R = = (1,551) (1,551)
Exchange realignment B 5 38 & = (264) (6,845) (7,109)
At 31 December 2023 P —
TZA=E+=—8 = 20,770 620,953 641,723
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21.

22.

178

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. BERERKFE (&)
The Group has sent numerous demand letters to the AEB B Z X AMERA &R AW
borrowers and guarantors but the loan and interest BHEEHARRKREREFBINARSEEES
receivables were still outstanding and in default position, WERELMAE  NEBBFESEZRER
the Group will continue to demand repayment from the ARERAER - REB IS ZFEEAD A
borrowers and guarantors. The Group has engaged the BARARERAZHEMNE  2RAOEEL
lawyer to issue legal letters to the borrowers and NAREEEXREMNE - AEBEBERHAEE
guarantors demanding for immediate payment of B MZAERARERAZLHENS
outstanding loan and interest. The Group has commenced Mo AEBRESKERZMZER - UN#E
legal proceeding and issued the Writ of Summons to TERREFREFARBRAEERER
several borrowers and guarantors. The Group is currently BEZHEBE-
seeking advice from the lawyer to proceed with legal
procedures for taking over the ownership of pledged assets
from the borrowers and guarantors.
TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. EWERR
2023 2022
—E_=F = o
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Trade receivables JE U BR 5K 2,174 663
Less: Impairment BB (33) (9)
2,141 654

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period is generally 30 to 90 days (2022:
30 to 90 days) for its trade receivables. For the Longevity
science business, the Group generally requests for deposits
in advance from customers (note 29). The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to
minimise credit risk and overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.
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22.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables, based on the

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr B B S HR MY

31 December 2023
— = =F =t

22. EWERF (&)

ERBEZAMFAERRAGERBR B

invoice date and net of provisions, was as follows: BRARERBR DA T -
2023 2022
—B-=fF o S

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA& T
Current to 30 days BlHi==+H 8 23
31-90 days 31&£90H = =
91-180 days 91%180H = 8
181-365 days 181£365H 2133 623
2,141 654

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of EWERREEEFEE 2 ESHMOT

trade receivables are as follows:

2023 2022
—E_= st o

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT T

At beginning of year R E A 9 13,432

Impairment losses, net (note 9) BB B 18R EE (71 9) 24 9

Amount written off as uncollectible #fl § Z& ~ 0] Y B = & %8 - (13,432)

At end of year RER 33 9
The Group applies simplified approach to measuring NEBMABEEWERERBLA:TE=E

expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss HE=EEE BT B EEREE -
allowance for all trade receivables. The Group determines ZXE@ﬁﬂH—M“EH ML 2 FEURBE T D

the provision for expected credit losses by grouping
together trade receivables with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessing them for likelihood
of recovery, taking into account prevailing economic
conditions.

MERFHRE AN  UEEEBE
E)Eﬂaﬁéﬁ EPERERKERE -
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. BWERR(E)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk REEEBERS 2 AEEEKEREREER
exposure on the Group's trade receivables using a provision BRI
matrix:
As at 31 December 2023 R-ZB-_=F+=-A=+—H
Past due
B
Not Less than 30 to 91 to 181 to Over
past due 30 days 90 days 180 days 365 days 365 days Total
91% 181 365K
KREH DH0KX 300K 180k 365X Uk M
Expected credit losses rate RHEEBEE 0% 0% 0% 0% 1.54% 0%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) #Em £ 5
(FET) 8 = = = 2,144 22 2,174
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) FEHIZ EE 18
(FHEx) = - - - 33 - 33
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZZB-_Z_+=ZA=+—H
Past due
bl -t
Not Less than 30 to 91 to 181 to Over
past due 30 days 90 days 180 days 365 days 365 days Total
IMNE 181& 365K
K@E 2LMI30K 30FE90K 180K 365K LA E B
Expected credit losses rate EHEEBEX 0% 0% 0% 0% 1.42% 0%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 428k HE € 58
(FET) 23 = = 9 631 = 663
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) TFEHI{ZEEE
(FA&7TT) . = = = 9 - 9
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DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23. & -FEARNRERAEMERIIE
RECEIVABLES

2023 2022

—w== T ol

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FA& T

Prepayments T 3k 1E 30,828 34,824

Deposits e 3,000 3,025

Other receivables — personal loans via
strategic partners by 100% contribution

Hib BURIE — BB
B RS B ER H100%

HE B EAE K 159,671 138,675
Other receivables — personal loans via Hith R RIE — B iR
strategic partners by 10% contribution IS IERH10%
HESEAER 47,571 46,385
Other receivables — others Hfth fE YR TE — H A 52,107 54,187
Less: Impairment B RE
— Stage 1 — B Ex1 - =
— Stage 2 — FEER2 (87,622) (86,306)
— Stage 3 — B ER3 (8,953) (6,807)
(96,575) (93,113)
196,602 183,983

Deposits and other receivables under
non-current assets portion

FERBEEFDZ
%2 N Bl UK IR - =

Current assets portion

ok

MEEEILD 196,602 183,983
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23.

182

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Deposits mainly represent rental deposits and deposit paid
for a trust investment. Given the Group has not
experienced any significant credit losses in the past, the
directors of the Company considered that the allowance for
expected credit losses for these deposits are not
significant.

Other receivables mainly represent the receivables from an
independent third party with net carrying amount of
approximately HK$90,364,000 (2022: HK$78,482,000)
which are secured, carried at fixed interest rate from 8.4%
to 16.8% (31 December 2022 8.4% to 15.6%) per annum.

The Group’s other receivables, which mainly arise from the
money lending business under Strategic Partners Business
Model of providing personal loans in PRC by 100%
contribution and 10% contribution via the strategic partners
act as direct lender with the Group as co-manager, and the
carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

Except for other receivables of HK$52,017,000 (2022:
HK$54,187,000) which are unsecured, other receivables are
secured by collateral provided by customers, bear interest
and are repayable with fixed terms.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, nil amount of
other receivables have been written-off (2022: Nil).

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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(&)

ReTERHeRS RER —BERARE
Xz E  c ERAKEBEI RARFIE
MBREERX ARAEERRIZT
BeRZ2ABEERRBERELTEX -

HEMmEWRBEEREEK—BBIYE=F
X 78 R T F (B #4990,364,0008 T (- T = —
F 178,482,000 ) - AFEIE - EZEE
FHKRBA%E16.8% (—ZE-_—_F+-A=
+—H:84%%E15.6%) st 8 °

AEBMEMERURKAETEREERSE
BHEBEATHNEEES  BERBEMN
100% HHE R10% HEH T AR HBEAE
R BBRAEBRHEREEERA AL
BESKREEA EFREERQFER
3 o

F252,017,0007% T (== = — 4 : 54,187,000
7 70 ) B9 E fth E YLK IE A E IR IR AN - B b e
WHRIBEBHNRPRENERRIEERR - 5
B RiZEEHRERE -
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23. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23. & -FEARNRERAEMERIIE
RECEIVABLES (Continued) (&)
The breakdown of the other receivables by loan type as of R FT~ B B3R B S A 2 8 55 19 H b 8 U 5k
the dates indicated is as follow: THBRAT -
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—E== — g
Number Number
of loan of loan
accounts HK$'000 % accounts HK$'000 %
B BER
EFH FER % BKFEH TAR %
Personal loans via strategic ~ BBE A EBH
partners by 100% 100% i & &9
contribution BAER 185 159,671 77 185 138,675 74
Personal loans via strategic B i@BEEE S (EHE
partners by 10% contribution 10% H & )
(BN 233 47,571 23 233 46,385 26
Total Mt 418 207,242 100 418 185,060 100

The table below set out the average loan size of our loan
product under strategic partners business model during the

year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:

TREINEE_E_=ZFER_T - _F+
A=+t BLEEERMBBEAIEREE
BEATHERERNFHERE:

Year ended 31 December

BE+tZA=t—-HLEE

2023 2022
—E=—= ol —

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE T

Personal loans via strategic partners by BB S ERH100%
100% contribution & /B A B 863 750

Personal loans via strategic partners by BRABESERHEI0%

10% contribution &R EAE K 204 199
Overall FE 496 443
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23. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23. & FANREREMEKRIKIE
RECEIVABLES (Continued) (&)
The table below summarizes the range of interest rates that TERBMBEE_ESE_=FEF T - —F+
charged during the year ended 31 December 2023 and “A=t+—HBILEFEREAHFEEHE :
20022
Year ended 31 December
BE+-B=+t—HLFE
2023 2022
—EB-=F i = v i
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TH T
Personal loans via strategic partners by BREBEAIEEZEH100% 8.4% to 19.2% 8.4% to 19.2%
100% contribution & m E A B &K 8.4%%19.2% 8.4%Z%E19.2%
Personal loans via strategic partners by BBEBEASEERNTI0% 12% to 18% 12% to 18%
10% contribution & 1) & A B R 12% Z18% 12% £18%
Overall #Et 8.4% to 19.2% 8.4% to 19.2%
8.4% £19.2% 8.4% %£19.2%
An ageing analysis of other receivables under strategic BREASERHEBRER T HEMEWRRIER
partners business model based on maturity date is as AR ERR DT T :
follows:
Year ended 31 December
BE+-—B=t+t—HLEFE
2023 2022
—B-=fF e T o
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH& T
Personal loans via strategic partners by EiBH K4 /EE £100%
100% contribution HEWNEABERK
Current B &4 1,921 1,469
1-180 days 1-180K 11,342 8,674
181-365 days 181-365K 11,280 8,627
Over 365 days 365K A £ 135,128 119,905
159,671 138,675
Personal loans via strategic partners by EBEKS/FEE H10%
10% contribution HENEAER
Current B[ 2A 202 160
1-180 days 1-180K 1,213 943
181-365 days 181-365K 1,210 938
Over 365 days 365K A £ 44,946 44,344
47,571 46,385
207,242 185,060

184
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23. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23. B FEAAREREMEKRRIE
RECEIVABLES (Continued) (&)
The movements in impairment allowance of other HtmER R EREEE c ZF80T:

receivables are as follows:

2023 2022
—=s== et
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At beginning of year RE ] 93,113 57,056
Impairment losses (note 9) BB B 18 (A7 2£9) 2,406 39,374
Exchange realignment PE 5 3 & 1,056 (3,317)
At end of year R E R 96,575 93,113
Expected credit losses on the other receivables balances HEMERRIEE#R 2 TEREEBRIDER
are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with EXASERTE s BELHREREABIEE)
reference to historical loss record of the Group. The loss EEr - BEERS/ERAE  URBERNKRL
rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and R AR RAEEMR N 2 TER (WER) - K=
forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate. The T - =+ -_A=1+—HZEEEXAE348%
loss rate as at 31 December 2023 was 34.8% (2022: (ZE =% :38.9%) °
38.9%).
24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24 BERBREEEY
2023 2022
S —_ET—-_
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA& T
Cash and bank balances ¢ Rk 174 & 81,075 60,069
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 24. BeRREEEYWH)

25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. EFER
2023 2022
=g == o T
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FH& T
Trade payables FE 15 BR =X 206 1,087
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on invoice ENERFIRZEZAME SRR OITHAT
date, is as follows:
2023 2022
e -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Current to 30 days BNEIZ=30H - 923
31 to 60 days 31£60H 112 12
61 to 90 days 61290H = 9
Over 90 days 90H M + 94 143
206 1,087
186 Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated in
RMB amounted to HK$79,348,000 (2022: HK$14,360,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for others currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rate based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
period of seven days depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interests at the
respective short term time deposits rates. The bank
balances and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

RIPEER  AEBAARESFEZE S
N iR 17 45 82 DA K & HA 15 30 /579,348,000
JTL(ZZ = — 4 : 14,360,000/ L) - AR
TAERARAEMEYR  BREFBER
o 9N B IR AR ) R A BE - B IE R A [EE IR
HE ANEBEARTEAEENSINE
BZRITHARBEBMABEMEK -

RITARSLBRRITHE RN EFREUZEF
B BRHETHERATAKENERET
Z GBRPERLE REBEHETHEX
I R ERENAH B o SR1T 48R S TE i fF 5K A7 K

ROy EROLEBEBAIE R -
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. HhENSREREFTEHR
2023 2022
N e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAE T
Other payables H & {5 3018 3,061 4,611
Accruals BT EH 9,485 6,700
12,546 11,311
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an HWENREBEAR2E  FHHRA—FA
average term of less than one year or on demand. PR EK ©
BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 27. BRITRHEMEE
The loans are obtained from independent third parties to ERREAEE " ZBBILE=ZFH K
the Group of principal amounts of approximately & % o Al 4 £6,602,000/8 T (4 A R #&
HK$6,602,000 (approximately to RMB6,000,000) (2022: 6,000,0007T) (=% = — 4F : 6,695,000/ 7T)
6,695,000) and HK$nil (2022: HK$3,168,000) are REZET(ZF Z_F - 3,168,000/ 7T) -
unsecured, bearing interest of 5% and 25% per annum REEWT - 5 5% F F Eo/E R25[E F &
which denominated in RMB and HK and payable on (AAREERBITEE) * WEKREKEE -
demand, the unsecured HK$3,168,000 loan for only 6 B 37 7 B A% 5k T B B ER R 2 OS E A IR
months during the COVID-19 city isolation period has been R E /3,168,000 T E KRB E T = =
repaid during the year ended 31 December 2023. As at 31 FT+Z A=+ HLEFEEE -RZ-ZZ=
December 2023, the Group also incurred PRC bank loan of =F+_A=+—H8 AEETELF
HK$2,068,000 (RMB1,880,000), which is unsecured, #R 17 & 32,068,000/ 7T (A K #1,880,000
bearing interest of 4.25% per annum and payable within TL)  REEIR R ENEK4EEE A
one year. R—FRNEE-
AMOUNT(S) DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED 28. W () BEEAT —RESBNE

COMPANIES/A DIRECTOR

The amount(s) due from/(to) related companies/a director
were unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed term of
repayment.

Mr. Yan Li is a director and beneficial owner of the related
companies.

Y (BB AR, —REERERE
ER 2B REBEEERY -

BYREREBARNEERESRES
A 5
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29.

30.

188

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. EHEE
2023 2022
e et = o
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FE T
Provision of diagnostic and R 2B &
medical test services g5 8 5 bR 75 24,207 23,662

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance
consideration received from customers for provision of
diagnostic and medical test services, for which revenue is
recognised at point in time. This will be recognised as
revenue when the diagnostic and medical test services are
provided to the customers.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are
as follows:

AEHMBEETEEREHRD

i % 88 508 AR 7%

MERFPKRB AN REGR  HhamR
E—EARSEEHEER - HER2HRER
ARRGREETEPHER S -

30. EEHIEES

R E BB A 2 8

BT

Fair value

adjustment of

investment

properties

REWMEZ

AFEFAER

HK$'000

T3 T

At 1 January 2022 == =e==E =g 766
Credited to profit or loss FFAE = (63)
Exchange realignment ME H B (66)
At 31 December 2022 R—_E_—_F#+-_HA=+—H 637
Credited to profit or loss A B &= 550
Exchange realignment & 5 38 & 49
At 31 December 2023 e = S = - —H 1,236
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31.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

The Group has tax losses of HK$33,167,000 (2022:
HK$36,324,000) that are available for offsetting against
future profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of
these losses as the utilisation of these tax losses is
uncertain.

MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE NOTES

In October 2015, the Company issued zero coupon rate
mandatory convertible notes with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$2,400,000,000 (“MCN"), for the purpose of
satisfying the consideration of HK$2,400,000,000 (subject
to adjustment) pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement
dated 20 May 2015 entered into between the Company,
the controlling shareholder of the Company (the “Vendor")
and the guarantor, under which the Company acquired 96%
equity interest of the Katar Global Group.

The MCN bear no interest and will mature on 19 October
2020 (the “Maturity Date"”). The Company may not redeem
the MCN at its option while the holder of the MCN has the
right to convert their MCN into shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.2 per share at any time during the
issue date to the Maturity Date, and the MCN is freely
transferrable by the holder of the MCN provided that they
may not be transferred to any connected person of the
Company without written consent of the Company and
compliance of any applicable Listing Rules. Any outstanding
MCN at the Maturity Date will automatically convert to
shares of the Company.

The summarised information of the MCN is set out as
follows:

20 October 2015
Maturity date 19 October 2020
Original principal amount HK$2,400,000,000
Coupon rate 0%
Conversion price per ordinary share HK$0.2

Issuance date

Further details regarding the principal terms and conditions
of the MCN are contained in the circular of the Company
dated 29 September 2015.
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30. EEHREEME (A

31.

AEEBFEEE33,167,0008 T(ZF =
—4F 1 36,324,0007%8 7o) 7] A A K 8H E A IS
BRAIZARKET - HRELBEEZEMN
BEENSABRL  WHERZEEER
RIELEFTBE E ©

MEMETRRREE

R_E—AF+A RRAIETAELAHE
/#2,400,000,0007% 7T 2 = B.58 il 1% AT 42 f%
ZR((REAMETRREE])  UWREARQ
RIEAQRZERBRE(ES])RERARMN
FAIVESA-E—FRFRAA-THZEE
Wiz (AN A BRI W BB IR B E E 2 96%
fi% #E) 1 <t X {8 2,400,000,0007 7T (7] ¥ 3

=) .

BHMEARREEIABYLER_F_F
F+ATABTRHAEDEH - KRFAH
REEEBEDRBIETRERE - MR sl
HARREESBAABERZTHERH
FHMEAERZERESR2ETH
HBFMARRERER R ARRRD -
HaflEAaBkREREATEAEER
HMETHRRER  EEREARREER
ERETEMERLTRAUNZBERLT &
BEETARAEMNEAEAL - -REHA
ERARRTEZRHETREEERED
BHASARRRRG -

BEIERRBEREBE CEMB RSN T

1T H —E—RAF+A=+H
2| H A —E-FF+A+A1H
[N 2,400,000,0007 7T

ZHEE X 0%
SREBRERE 0.2/8 7T

5 % T 41 S B R R M M2
S HERNAATAEA-T—HE
jlﬂ:—i—jlazﬁl)_(l o
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31.

190

MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The MCN was classified under equity and no present value of
the fixed interest payment was represented during the life of
the MCN, therefore, no effective interest for the financial
liability element being calculated. The acquisition of the Katar
Global Group was completed on 20 October 2015 and on the
completion date, the fair value of the MCN was
HK$2,341,896,000, based on valuation performed by BMI
Appraisals Limited, independent qualified valuer.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the MCN with
a nominal value of HK$217,600,000 was converted into
1,088,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.2 per share. Immediately after
the conversion, the outstanding principal amount of the
MCN amounted to HK$2,182,400,000, with its fair value
of HK$2,129,564,000 was included in equity component of
convertible notes as at 31 December 2016 and 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
and the Vendor entered into the modification deed dated
27 August 2016 (as amended and supplemented by the
supplemental modification deed dated 4 October 2016 and
the second supplemental modification deed dated 7 June
2017) pursuant to which the Company and the Vendor have
conditionally agreed to amend certain terms of the MCN
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$2,182,400,000
(the “Amended and Restated MCN").

The summarised information of the Amended and Restated
MCN is set out as follows:

Issuance date 31 August 2017

Maturity date 20 April 2020
Principal amount HK$2,182,400,000
Coupon rate 0%
Conversion price per ordinary share HK$0.2

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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BEIERRREEENERET  XER
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|

EYHE RUBAFEcHEBEDLICE
BHRZ - WEMERKEBR —FEER=_F
—hAETAZTAZER BREBALESER
HERMPMPBRFTEERABETMHE -
B EEN KBS ZAFEEE
2,341,896,0007% 7t °

I E e = s eSS RIS S E R A
€ ™ 18217,600,0007% JT Z 58 i 14 7] i
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31.

MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Further details regarding the principal terms and conditions
of the Amended and Restated MCN are contained in the
circular of the Company dated 5 July 2017.

The fair value of the Amended and Restated MCN was
HK$1,228,455,000, based on the valuation performed
by BMI Appraisals Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuer. During year ended 31 December 2018, the
board of directors passed a resolution on 16 March 2018
to approve that the difference of HK$901,109,000 between
the fair value of the Amended and Restated MCN and the
fair value of the MCN with outstanding principal amounted
to HK$2,129,564,000, was transferred from the equity
component of convertible notes to accumulated losses. As a
result, the fair value of HK$1,228,455,000 was remained in
equity component of convertible notes as at 31 December
2019 and 2018.

On 20 April 2020, the Amended and Restated MCN was
extended for four years and the maturity date shall be
extended to 20 April 2024. Save for the automatic
extension, all other terms and conditions of the Amended
and Restated MCN remain unchanged.

The fair value of the Amended and Restated MCN on 20
April 2020 was HK$1,755,856,000 based on the valuation
performed by Royson Valuation Advisory Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuer. The difference
of HK$527,401,000 between the fair value of the Amended
and Restated MCN after extension and the fair value of the
Amended and Restated MCN before extension amounting
to HK$1,228,455,000, was transferred from the equity
component of convertible notes to accumulated losses. As
a result, the fair value of HK$1,755,856,000 was remained
in equity component of convertible notes as at 31
December 2023 and 2022.
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R R R R ()

BREEIIREI A EATRBRREER
R RGEZE—TFBHARARRAH
RIE—TFLtARBRZABR-

LB EEE B ERD AR (A
ERDARIZHBEZR  KEFTREF RS
MR R B 2 A F1E A1,228,455,000%8
TeREBEE_ZTE—/\F+_A=+—H1
FE - BEeE T N\F=ZA+ HE
1B R B E LIS ET R E 5 58 &l 1 AT AR
EE AT EHEKREZARNESEE2,129,564,000
Bz slERTRREEATFEZENE
%8901,109,000/8 T AT IR 2 4k 2 25 &
PEBREZRGEE B R-ZE—hF
B===N\EE= 5 == » Ealik=
Bz RSB R B A F(E1,228,455,0007%
5T o

R-E-ZEMA-+H GETRE
eH MR IRREREHNE - HHATE
ZE_Z-_MEMA=-+H - BETHEEI -
ST B G| E| A R EE Y B A
IR TR R AR M H T o

RZE_TEFMA-_+tH ERBVHE
AERMGEMERTGZAEGR AR E
TZIEE - K185 R E 558 5 14 7] 2 ik =
B 2 A F{E &1,755,856,0008 7T ° &£1E 5T
REHRGIEATRBEEERESHEZA
(B B LS 5T & & 5 58 il M AT i AR B 4
I 83 AT 2 A F {E1,228,455,00078 T 2
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32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. A
2023 2022
= e el
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHBx T T
Authorised: EE
400,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.001 400,000,000,0000% & I&
each T {80.0017% 7T 2 & 400,000 400,000
Number
of shares Share
in issue capital
BT
BB EE [N
‘000 HK$'000
T 1% FAEL
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 January 2022 RNoB = —sE—=F=F 3,870,102 3,870
Shares issued in respect of prepayment of BRENERREEMETRD
consultancy service fee (Note (a)) (Kt it (a) 387,010 387
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 REE-Z—_F+-A=+—HK
=S =eE—E =g 4,257,112 4,257
Issue of new shares (Note (b)) BT A (M b)) 297,307 297
Effects of share consolidation (Note (c)) B e btz & it(c) (4,098,978) =
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=F+=A=1+—H 455,441 4,554
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 24 June 2022, the Company entered into the consultancy services
agreement and the settlement agreement with the consultant, an
independent third party to the Company. Pursuant to the settlement
agreement, the consultant agreed to settle the prepayment of
consultancy fee by way of issuing the shares of the Company
subject to the conditions and on the terms contained in the
settlement agreement. The prepayment of approximately
HK$42,571,129 have been paid by way of Shares and 387,010,265

shares were issued at price of HK$0.055 per share.

The final
payment was on 31

settlement of such prepayment shares and residual
December 2024 pending to this consultant

organised and/or introduced sale revenue.

On 2 May 2023, a total of 297,300,000 new shares were issued
through placing at the placing price of HK$0.049 per share.

On 14 July 2023,
consolidation to the shareholders that: every ten issued shares of
HK$0.001 each to be consolidation into one consolidated share of
HK$0.01 each the share consolidation has become effective on 2
August 2023.

the Company made a proposal of share
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32. RA(#)

Hiat

(a)

(c)

RZZEZZFXAZ1+WA  AARHEER (A
AARMBLE=F)I BB RBHERE
% - BEBELE S HE - BRREAEITAR
AR B 5 = - R 4 A5 19 AT A A AR 1 R IR K
HENBEREONBENRE BEFfRELD
425711298 T E B B A A K & m
387,010,265/ 17 12 & 1% 0.0557 7T 1T °

BRENTIERG R F S ROREENHR
—E-ME+-A=+—H ARFUERAL
% /HEIAHERA -

R-ZTE-_=FRAA-H BHMEEEEESR
0.049% 7T # T B & B It ¥ 178 #
297,300,000 % 7 f% {5 °

R-ZZT_=F+tA+HMB ' AARAKREEZ
BHeo B+RER00IBITHEETR
BEMHE—BRERNBITHE BN - KD
AHER-_BE_=ZFNA-BEERK-
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33.

194

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the annual general meeting held on 12 June 2012
(the "AGM"), the shareholders of the Company duly
approved the relevant resolutions to adopt a 2022 Share
Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) by authorising the directors
to allot and issue up to the 10 percent of the issued share
capital of the Company under the Scheme. The directors or
an authorised committee were authorised, at their/its
absolute discretion, to grant options to any person,
subjected to the selection criteria, being an employee,
officer, agent, consultant or representative of the Group,
including any executive or non-executive directors, in order
to provide incentives to the guarantee to contribute to the
Group and to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre
employees and attract resources that were valuable to the
Group. Under the Scheme, the Company might grant
options to any participant, in the absolute discretion of the
Board, who had made valuable contribution to the business
of the Group. The subscription price would be a price
determined by the Board and at least the highest of (a) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of grant of
the option, which must be a business day; (b) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and
(c) the nominal value of the shares.

On 29 July 2022, the Company adopted of a 2022 Share
Option Scheme of the Company (the “2022 Share Option
Scheme”). 2022 Share Option Scheme was set up for the
primary purpose to enable the Group to motivate the
participants of 2022 Share Option Scheme to utilise their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group and
to attract and retain or otherwise maintain an ongoing
relationship with the participants whose contributions are or
will be beneficial to the long term growth of the Group, it
is important that the Group should be permitted to provide
them, where appropriate, with an incentive by offering
them an opportunity to obtain an ownership interest in the
Company and to reward them for contributing to the
success of the business of the Group.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
2023 Annual Report

33.

BREE

R-_B——FRNAT-HETZBRRAF
Re(RREAFAE)D L AARKRLE
ABEHRBRER  URH T - —F8
PergEst B ([5H81))  REEFREF SA
BRBETARRZEBHITRAREZ10% °
EXYRREZECRERE 2RNE
REBEFRERATMALRLBRE &
FATARAEEEERS  SMBE  KHE
A BEREIRKR(BEEMRITHIFRTE
B) EEMARAREERMASEEZ £
B YEASENRSHASEREEL
SEREERBMER - REE - AR
AAMEZe2RNERSUAKRERY
FHEERRMZ2ENZ2EALREER
B -RBECHEFZBEERTIBERT
JiZme: QFXLEREZR(LWEARE
ERBMIXAERRERMBROEHIE:
PIEERFRHBREZAMAEZEABR
PrEBRmERMARBNDFHKTE: K
BpmEE -

RZZEZ—_FtA=-+NB ' ARAIEH
ARl —BH_TZ_FEKREFE(T=2
TCEBRESNED BRIY_T__FE
BHETENEZEENEFEEARKE LN
B —EREFENZ2HEENAER
MERESRNEEET - WRSIFMRE S
EM A N FEge Mg s ANEE R
BRBEEZEMMNB2EENER - HA
SEmME  WAFREE R AR H®
HEBEEEE  HEBABAHRHESAR
RAIFfMBEREERNKE  BREHHARFHN
EBRNEEB AR °



33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 33.

The following share options were outstanding under the

Scheme during the year:
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BRERS W

ATBRERFEARERRIESTTE:

2023 2022
—E_=fF T o il
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
hnAE 35 hnEFEHT
THEE BREZE FE BREZHE
HK$ per HK$ per
share ‘000 share ‘000
BRET ¥ 14 BRAET T4
(restated) (restated)
('e&E5) (©eE5)
At 1 January N =H=H 4.0 3,868 4.0 38,680
Cancelled during the year F AN = - 4.0 (34,812)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 4.0 3,868 4.0 3,868

No share option was granted during the years ended 31

December 2023 and 2022.

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Company had 3,868,000 (2022: 3,868,000)

share options outstanding under the Scheme,

which

represented approximately 1% (2022: 1%) of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date.

AR EER T ShE G == Sk = B = o
—BIEFE I E R R

RAGAETHHRERI AEBE  HARBES
BT 2 AN A R EE RS E A3,868,00015
(ZZ = —%:3,868,00010) - #HERAKXRQ
AIEAEBTRMNI% (ZZT ==

1%) °
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34.

196

=F+=-A=+—H

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

34. BARZFHE

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ARRIEEWBAR ZFBET :
follows:
Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/
registration and registered share Percentage of equity attributable
Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
iRy BERTEE/
L A RE R ERYEN ARAEEEBED FTEXB
Direct Indirect
=8 Gk
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-=f —T-- SRS=EN T
Best Harvest Asia Limited British Virgin Islands United States Dollars 100% 100% - - Securities trading
("BVI")/Hong Kong ("USD") 1
EBEENERAA KBRELEE/BH 1ET EHEE
Joy Wealth Finance Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Dollars 100% 100% - - Money lending
("HK$") 1
EMUBERAA BB BT e
Shanghai Yugong Financial People’s Republic of Renminbi (“RMB") - - 96% 96% Money lending
Consulting Co., Limited*! China (the "PRC") 1,050,000
LBENHBHRAERAR FEARANE A R#1,050,0007C EE
(@)
Beijing Huiju Wealth Management ~ PRC RMB50,000,000 = = 96% 96% Money lending
Consultant Company Limited
("Beijing Huiju")
TREZHEEEZAGRAA HH AR #50,000,0007C =
([ mER])
Sky State Holdings Limited BVI usD1 = = 100% 100% Investment holding
ABERERAA RBRIEE (E REZER
Tian Xing Ji Yuan (Beijing) Financial PRC RMB12,069,500 - - 100% 100% Provision of financial and
Consultancy Limited*? investment consulting
services and property
investment
AARTOLR) MEEN i AR #12,069,5007C RALH R E B REIA
1 NG RETHERE
Keen State Global (CNMI) LLC North Mariana Islands uSD100 - = 100% 100% Property investment
LEETRES 1003% 7T NERE
Blooming Faith Development Hong Kong HK$1 = = 100% 100% Health consulting service
Limited and medical product
trading
REERERAF 0 BT BEFANBRERES
RTHRERRMEZERAA PRC RMB5,000,000 - - 100% 100% Health consulting service
and medical product
trading
B AR #5,000,0007T BEAALBEERES
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34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

35.

o The English names of the Chinese entitles are translation of their
Chinese names and are included herein for identification purpose

only.

. These entities are registered as limited liability companies under PRC
law.

28 These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises

under PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions
(i) During the vyear, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of HK$16,441,000 and HK$16,441,000
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements
for leasehold land and buildings.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B 5 R

31 December 2023
— = =F =t

34. MBRB 2B E)

35.

£ RNAMGE  TEER EXEZRAET XA
ZWE EHEA -

1. ZEERBRBETRZEEMAERAEEAH -

2. ZEERRBEFRARZZMRIBBELE -

EREINARBDZMBLAAER  EER
5 FRANBARRIEFEAEEFR
REIBRAKEFEECEAD - &
ERB HINEMHBAR ZFHBEEESR

RERERERME

(a) FEHFBEEXRS
) FAR - AEEFHAEEELAE
EBBEZHEBERED A
16,441,000 7T 16,441,000/
T EREEL M REF
HEZH -
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

. REBRERERMFE(E)

(b) REEFBHFELEBEZE2H

activities
Other Lease Amount due
borrowings liabilities to a director
EA—2
Hihfg & HEAE EENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T T T T T
At 1 January 2022 IR = == —F 7,740 5,190 6,926
New borrowings/leases HEE /HE = = =
Changes from financing cash &t & IR & i &
flow 3,168 (3,695) (6,926)
Interest expenses M ERX 83 334 -
Interest paid classified as DEAKER TR
operating cash flows B A A (334) -
Exchange realignment P& o 38 & (701) (23) =
At 31 December 2022 and WR-_Z_-_—_&F+_HA=+—H
1 January 2023 == =4 =F=g 10,290 1,472 =
New borrowings/leases NEE e 4,068 16,343 -
Changes from financing cash @t & IR & ik & &)
flow (5,377) (6,628) =
Interest expenses M E R 590 1,346 -
Interest paid classified as DEARKER TR
operating cash flows B A A (590) (1,346) -
Exchange realignment P& o 38 & 29 - -
At 31 December 2023 REB === F =75 9,010 11,187 -
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

(a)  During the year, loan interest income of HK$1,981,000
(2022: HK$2,161,000) and HK$997,000 (2022:
HK$1,088,000) were receivable from Chongging
Juguan and Wuxi Juquan respectively, the joint
ventures of the Group.

(b)  Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i) The Group had approximately HK$2,549,000 of
outstanding balance due from Zhong Ji
International Medical Group (Hong Kong), being
a related company as the chairman and
execution direct Mr. Yan Li held a 90.76%
beneficiary interest, as at 31 December 2023.

(i)  The Group had approximately HK$765,000 of
outstanding balance due from Chongging Juguan
as at 31 December 2023. The Group had
approximately HK$2,943,000 outstanding
balance due to Wuxi Juguan as 31 December
2023, Both were joint Ventures subsidiaries with
51% held by the company wholly owned Beijing
subsidiary and the rest 49% held by
independent third party.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

In the opinion of the directors, the directors and chief
executive represented the key management personnel
of the Group and details are included in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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36. MBI RS

BRAMBHREREMBIFL 2R HIN - K
SERFRNERBIETATEARS

@ FAR BUAEEEGEBEEE
ERREREHEIZERFE K
% 51,981,000% ;L (Z T = =
2,161,000 JT) & 997,000 L (= =
— — 4 :1,088,000/% L) °

- > R

(b) REEZEBEBT &R

i) MW-ZE-_=F+=-—A=+—8"
R EE B e W B P 5 B R B
BEEE(HERRATESHT
S AEEH90.76% B iER 2
BARDZAEBEEHRO A
2,549,000/%8 It °©

iy, M=ZF==F+=A=+—8-

AEERNEEER ZKRER
8R4 5765,0008 7 c R-F
—=f+—HA=+—8H ' ~KE
JENEHIE R 2 REEBREL
2,943,000 7T - B A AYH
BEECENBAR AR
WBARZ2E#EE 2 A8 kB
Y E =725 B B5% &
49% o

©) AEBETFTEEBEABZHE:
EEZRR EERESTRABRER

SEITEEEAER  BHEABIHNEK
EMBmRMEN -
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. ZERESZE/MIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REmERRSHI M T A ZERESED
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as T
follows:
2023 =B
Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive Financial assets
income — Equity at amortised
Financial assets investments cost Total
BAFEEBHEM
ZEBEARZ
SHMEE REHRETAR
SRMEE - BABE ZEMEE 5t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FER FEx
Financial assets at fair value through other EZAFEBZBHME2®
comprehensive income W ARZEeRmEE 5,847 - 5,847
Loan and interest receivables JE W & 5 KA B - 171,732 171,732
Financial assets included in deposits, FFAES - BERAHRE
prepayments and other receivables R Eo A & W R IE 2
TREE = 196,602 196,602
Amounts due from related companies g ) NG = 2,549 2,549
Trade receivables JE W2 BR 3K = 2,141 2,141
Cash and cash equivalents RekBRE&EEY - 81,075 81,075
5,847 460,099 465,946
Financial
liabilities at
Financial liabilities amortised cost
% 8 85 R AR
El- =N ARZzeRAE
HK$'000
FET
Trade payables FE 1+ BR 3K 206
Other payables A JE 5 3R 3,061
Other borrowings HEMEE 9,010
Lease liabilities HEAE 6,978
19,255
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. REHESZEMIAH)
(Continued)
2022 =his==

Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income — Equity

Financial assets
at amortised

Financial assets investments cost Total
BAFEBREM
2HEWREFARZ
SRHEE REHKAAR
SREE — BRAKE CERMEE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 |
FET FET FHET j
|
Financial assets at fair value through other AT EEBEMEZME
comprehensive income K ARz eRmEE 9,859 = 9,859
Loan and interest receivables e E R KA A = 172,289 172,289
Financial assets included in deposits, AR S - BAFRIE
prepayments and other receivables REMERZIEZ
STREE = 183,983 183,983
Amounts due from related companies & Uit 8 Bt 1 8] 5K TR = 23,183 23,183
Trade receivables JE W BR 3K = 654 654
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkFEEEEY = 60,069 60,069
9,859 405,354 415,213
Financial
liabilities at
Financial liabilities amortised cost
22 8 Bk AN
TRIBE ABEZeRBE
HK$'000
THT
Trade payables J& - BR 3K 1,087
Other payables H & < 30IE 4,611
Other borrowings HEmEE 10,290
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,472
17,460
hERSRNEBEEAFARAT 201
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38.

202

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed the fair values of the Group's
financial assets and financial liabilities are approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short maturities of
these instruments.

The Group’s finance department is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance
department reports directly to the directors and the audit
committee. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
directors. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices.
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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EMIAZAFERAFERH
(1)

D ERB
TRELAEESHMTAZAFEFER
Al :

BAVEFAEZEE:

Fair value measurement using

RATIGABBZAVETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
As at 31 December 2023 markets inputs inputs
& BT 5 EATEBE EXTAEER
R=B==%+t=H=+=H HBE BWAHE WAHE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—-%H) (B=%8) (B=%#4) # et
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET THERT TET
Financial assets at fair value = BZAFEEBEMD
through other comprehensive 2 H M &= A &
income ZEMEE 5,847 = = 5,847
Fair value measurement using
KATH@ASE AT EF=E
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
As at 31 December 2022 markets inputs inputs
Vi BR T 3% ERAEHE ERTAER
RZEZZ4+-H=+—H wE N6 & A\ BUR
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F—%4%) (F=%®/) (F=5%) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FET FAET
Financial assets at fair value  BZAFEEBEMD
through other comprehensive 2 4 & A B
income ZEMEE 9,859 = = 9,859

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for the financial assets
(2022: Nil).

REER_E_=FK_FT— _—_F+—H
=t HYEFNRAFEFEZEHE

f& e

FR REeMEBEEMs  HMEREF—ZFH
BE EZHWERNTEFE  NEEA
FEHE=FER(ZT__F 1 8£F)-
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39.

204

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments are used to raise
finance for the Group's operations and investments. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as loan and interest receivables, trade and other
receivables, trade payables, other payables, other
borrowings, amount due from/to related companies, amount
due to a director and lease liabilities which arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, equity price risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’'s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-
bearing financial assets and liabilities. Interest-bearing
financial assets of the Group are the loan receivables and
deposit with banks. Interests on deposits with banks are
based on deposit rates offered by bank while interests on
loan receivables are based on fixed rates set out in the loan
agreements. Interest-bearing financial liabilities of the Group
are the other borrowings. Interest on other borrowings are
based on fixed rate. Therefore, changes in interest rate
would not affect the profit or loss of the Group.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The Group's listed investments are
listed on the Stock Exchanges and are valued at quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. B EREEAEERBEK(E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Equity price risk (Continued) RAEE R (E)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every TRETETMBRAEEZAFEEELYS (&=
5% (2022: 5%) change in the fair values of the listed T F 5% EHRIBRE (A EM
equity investments, with all other variables held constant BYRBFTERRFTATABRBEE)
and before any impact on tax, based on their carrying ERERRCEESETE - RADTA -
amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the HAARLATFEZRBEMEERZ AR
purpose of this analysis, for the listed equity investments PREECLETRAKEMS  HESX
included in financial assets at fair value through other FEZFEEBEALATEMEE (I AER) -

comprehensive income, the impact is deemed to be on the
fair value reserve (non-recycling).

Carrying Decrease
amount of Change in other
equity in profit components
instruments before tax of equity
KRATEZ R Bt Al H fih £ &
RE<E i Fl 2 B i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH& T FAET
2023 —E-=
Equity investments listed in:  RLA T 5 £ Z A
®E:
Hong Kong — EE —
Financial assets at fair value ZAFEBBEME2ME
through other WHmARZEREE
comprehensive income 5,847 = 293
2022 —B-CF
Equity investments listed in: R LA T J5 E71 2 B AR
®E:
Hong Kong — BAE—
Financial assets at fair value IZAFEBZEBEMEE
through other WEARZEREE
comprehensive income ©) EB7 = 21,652
The Group’s management manages the above exposure by REBEREEEBEREZZLIECEE
maintaining a well-diversified investment portfolio. HeEIE LERE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to the loan and interest
receivables, trade receivables and other receivables. In
order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has established
policies and systems for monitoring and control of credit
risk. The management has delegated different divisions
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring processes to ensure that
follow up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, management reviews the recoverable amounts of
loan and interest receivables and trade receivables and
other receivables individually or collectively at each
reporting date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
management considers that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk on loan and interest
receivables as 81% (2022: 85%) and 100% (2022: 100%) of
the carrying amounts of loan and interest receivables were
in relation to the Group's largest loan borrower and the five
largest loan borrowers, respectively.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr B B S HR MY

31 December 2023
—T = =F = el

39. BEREEEERBE®E)

EERME)
R=-®==F+=A=+-H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 B 78 88
FEER 2HEHGEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—BE EoRE B &b & st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 i
T8 T8 TR T8 Ti# 5 i
Trade receivables* JE Uy BR 3R+ = = = 2,174 2,174
Loans and interest FEWE 3 R F A
receivables = 188,328 631,127 = 819,455
Amounts due from related & Uk 3 Bt A 7] 3K 1B
companies
— Normal** — [EF** 2,549 = = = 2,549
Financial assets included AARE - B
in deposits, prepayments 3 I8 K& H i fE UL B
and other receivables RBEZEREE = 250,520 9,458 = 259,978 E
Cash and cash equivalents H& KB E&EEY 81,075 - - - 81,075 B
83,624 438,848 640,585 2,174 1,165,231
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. i EREEEERBKEK (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) EEREE)
As at 31 December 2022 R-F—-_—_F+-F=+—H
12-month
EClLs Lifetime ECLs
121E A 78 &
FEEEE > HBEHMEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FE—PEER EPKER F=FER KPS FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FH T FHE T FAT FH T
Trade receivables* JE LT B 51 = = = 663 663
Loans and interest FE W E R R A A
receivables = 181,445 637,915 = 819,360
Amounts due from related  J& U B8 Bt 2 7) 3K 18
companies
— Normal** — MEEF &% 23,183 == - o 23,183
Financial assets included STAKES B
in deposits, prepayments I K& H i fE UL
and other receivables REZERMEE
= [Nemmmalf~* — MEEF = 149,159 bt 5 - 149,159
— Doubtful** — RAER** = 84,259 8,854 = 93,113
Cash and cash equivalents B4 NBELZEY 60,069 = = = 60,069
232,411 265,704 646,769 663 1,145,547

2 For trade receivables to which the Group applied the simplified X HRASEEERABEREEZERERNS
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix ERBEEEZEHRES BB HRENE22
is disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements. B -

o The credit quality of the financial assets at amortised costs, financial il MR EHENAAR Z 2B EE A RFTAEBRNRK
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables and T8~ R K E i FE UK TE DA K B UK RA Bt 2 R AR
amounts due from related companies is considered to be “normal” HrsMEEMABBRETEENBRENA
when they are not past due and there is no information indicating BRAUAREHEEZEERRAEEN - BIZ
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk EEMEECEEERHERIER] TRl -
since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial CRMEEZEFEEEZHERAIRIE] -

assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. B RMEEEEZERBKE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERRE)
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure REBRZSERFEBEELECEERRZ
to credit risk arising from these receivables are disclosed in E—TECEBREEVBREME21R
notes 21 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements. 221 % o
Liquidity risk REEE @R
Internally generated cash flows are the general sources of NEEEZEESRE TN ANEH S E BN
funds to finance the operations of the Group. The Group Be 72— MEESRR - AEBEHBRFTHE
regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure it FEEEeNRN  UBREERHVHEEIRE
has adequate financial resources in meeting its financial THBEE AEBEEEEBEFAIHEE
obligations. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding AZEREEEERTBIRITER R
by keeping committed credit lines available and sufficient RESZEEE  NENERHREFE -
bank deposits to meet its short term cash requirements. AEBEzRnBESRREEBREZ LILH
The Group's liquidity risk management includes diversifying B SRR o
the funding sources.
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the REBEZEGHARMBAREBEE S ZEMEBE
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual RIBEHR 2 BB RAT
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2023 —Eg2=-=
Weighted Total
average  On demand contractual
effective or within One to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate one year two years cash flow amount
REREHN
19 REXRT BeRE
ERFIE R—ER —-EWME B REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART TART TART TART
Trade payables JE < BR 3K - 114 93 206 206
Other payables Ho b fE 1 3IE - 3,061 - 3,061 3,061
Other borrowing Hipfa & 25% 9,010 = 9,825 9,010
Lease liabilities HES 11.8% 6,978 4,209 12,120 11,187
19,163 4,302 25,212 23,464
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39.

40.

210

AND POLICIES (Continued)

BRREEEEERBKE®E)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESER(E)
2022 —E- -
Weighted Total
average On demand contractual
effective or within One to  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate one year two years cash flow amount
REHRAH
INHE 53 RENRY Reng
BBRA & R—FRX —EMEF mE AREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FET FHT
Trade payables & R 3K - 1,087 - 1,087 1,087
Other payables H ot FE 15 508 = 4,611 = 4,611 4,611
Other borrowing Hifg & 25% 11,221 = 11,221 10,290
Lease liabilities HERE 11.8% 1,500 = 1,500 1,472
18,419 - 18,419 17,460
Capital risk management EXERER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
cash and cash equivalents and total equity comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associate with each class of capital,
and take appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s capital
structure.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(i) On 26 February 2024, Shenzhen Zhong Ji Health
Science Company Limited* CRYIT R EEERIZ2ER
‘A7) (“Zhong Ji Health”, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) entered into a joint venture
agreement (the “JV Agreement”) with Chengdu
Guandetang Biotechnology Group Company Limited
(KB EEEYE R EEBRAF) (“Guandetang”)
in relation to the establishment of a joint venture (the
“Joint Venture”) in the PRC, which, upon
establishment, will be owned as to 51% by Zhong Ji
Health and 49% by Guandetang. The Joint Venture
will be principally engaged in the provision of trading
of biomedical products in the PRC. For details, please
refer to the Company's announcement (the “JV
Announcement”) dated 26 February 2024.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 41. XA R Z & AR R |k
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the ARRRBERRZMBEMRAFRER D
Company at the end of reporting period is as follows: s @
2023 2022
=L = EE i i
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T3 T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Plant and equipment R = & 5% 15 5 20
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 10,668 1,265
Investments in subsidiaries RWBRAR Z®E 15,288 15,288
Interest in a joint venture REELEZER - -
Due from subsidiaries & U B J8 A B 3k 18 - 22,749
Amount due from a related company fE W — il B Bt 8 B 5RIB 582 13,680
Financial assets at fair value through other EAVFEEBEMEE
comprehensive income W ARZERMEE 100 146
Total non-current assets EmBEELE 26,643 53,148
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Deposits and prepayments e kBN HIE 22,019 20,985
Cash and cash equivalents HeRkREeFEYD 1,317 12,008
Total current assets mMBEERBE 23,336 32,993
CURRENT LIABILITIES mE B E
Other payables and accruals H fth JE A I8
Est &R 9,306 5,499
Due to subsidiaries FE A MY B A Bl 5K IE 271,030 285,705
Amount due to a director B —RESHE = i
Amount due to a related company FE S — ) B Bt B) 3k B = =
Lease liabilities HERE 6,978 1,472
Other borrowings HEMmEE - 3,251
Total current liabilities mEBEARE 287,314 295,927
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEEFHE (263,978) (262,934)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EE#4ERABAE (237,335) (209,786)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES E(RBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE (4,210) -
Total non-current liabilities EREBEERT = =
NET LIABILITIES EEFHE (241,545) (209,786)
EQUITY & =5
Share capital A% 4,554 4,257
Reserves (note) R (57 ) (246,099) (214,043)
Capital deficiency &N A (241,545) (209,786)
Yan Li Yan Yifan
5[y B —1h
Director Director
EZE EE
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 41. &A@z MR RIFExR(E)
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: it -
A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: ARBZEEHRELT -
Equity
Share Share  component of
premium Fair value Contributed option convertible Accumulated Total
account reserve surplus reserve notes losses reserves
R 45 TERREEZ )
BER DTEFERE BE4BRH BRERR RS 2 ER RERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHER THET THER THET FHET T
1 January 2022 R-_F__%-A-H 932,470 (63,851) 277,102 72 1,755,856 (3,110,858) (209,209)
Loss for the year FRER = = = = = - -
Other comprehensive (loss)/ FRE M 2E (EE),/
income for the year: iz
Changes in fair value of BRF E?ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬁl&fm
equity investments at fair ARZBRAIAZATE
value through other 28 (RHiE)
comprehensive income,
net of tax = (24,184) & - - = (24,184)
Total comprehensive loss FRZEBBELEE
for the year . (24,184) £ = o 3 (24,184)
Shares issued in respect of 5 711 B B M % 17 & {7
prepayment of
consultancy fee 19,350 = = = = = 19,350
Transfer of fair value reserve RHERRATFEEB
upon disposal of equity Hip 2@k A B ZRA
investments at fair value REBBRATERRE
through other
comprehensive income = 11,365 = = - (11,365) =
At 31 December 2022 RZE==F+-RA=t-H 951,820 (76,670) 277,102 72 1,755,856 (3,122,223) (214,043)
Loss for the year FRERE = = = = = (46,396) (46,396)
Other comprehensive (loss)) FREW2E (FE),/
income for the year: Wz
Changes in fair value of BERATEEREMR2EKE
equity investments at fair AEZBRATIAZATE
value through other 28 (RH%)
comprehensive income,
net of tax - 70 - - - - 70
Total comprehensive loss FRE2EBEELEE
for the year = 70 = = = = 70
Placing of shares &R D 14,270 - - - - - 14,270
Transfer of fair value reserve RHERRAFEE B
upon disposal of equity Hio 2 mE s AR 2 RAR
investments at fair value RERERATEER
through other
comprehensive income - (24) = = = 24 =
At 31 December 2023 R-Z-=§+-A=+-H 966,090 (76,624) 277,102 72 1,755,856 (3,168,595) (246,099)
212 Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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